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GENERAL RISK

Investors are advised to read the Disclosure Document carefully before taking an investment decision in this
Issue. For taking an investment decision the investor must rely on his examination of the Issuer and the offer
including the risks involved. The Issue of Debentures has not been recommended or approved by Securities and
Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) nor does SEBI guarantee the accuracy or adequacy of this document. Special
attention of investors is invited to the statement of Risk Factors in this Disclosure Document.

ISSUER’S ABSOLUTE RESPONSIBILITY

The Issuer confirms that, as of the date hereof, this Disclosure Document contains all information that is material
in the context of the Issue and sale of the Debentures in the context of the issue as required under Schedule | of
SEBI (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 as amended from time to time (“SEBI Debt
Regulations”) is accurate in all material respects and does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state any material fact necessary to make the statements herein, in the light of the circumstances under
which they are made, not misleading.

CREDIT RATING

CRISIL Ratings has assigned “CRISIL PPMLD A+ r /Negative”” for the principal protected market linked debentures
programme of Rs. 200 crore of the Issuer.

The rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and investors should take their own decision.
The rating may be subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating agency and each rating
should be evaluated independently of any other rating. The rating agency has a right to suspend or withdraw the
rating at any time on the basis of factors such as new information.

LISTING

The Secured, Redeemable, Taxable, Principal Protected, Market Linked, Non-Convertible Debentures will be listed
on the Wholesale Debt Market (WDM) segment of the BSE Limited (“BSE”).

Registrar

Link Intime India Private Limited

C 101, 247 Park,

L B S Marg, Vikhroli West,

Mumbai 400 083.

Tel: +91 22 49186000

Fax: +91 22 49186060
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Email: bonds.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in
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Issue Closes on: As mentioned in the Term Sheet
annexed herewith as Annexure A



tel:912249186000
mailto:rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in
mailto:bonds.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in
http://www.linkintime.co.in/

This Disclosure Document is not a Prospectus under the Companies Act. This
Disclosure Document is prepared in conformity with (i) Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 issued vide circular
No. LAD-NRO/GN/2008/13/127878 dated June 06, 2008 as amended from time to
time (together “SEBI Debt Regulations”); (ii) relevant provisions of the Companies Act
and rules made thereunder; and (iii) Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial
Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 dated September 01, 2016 - Annexure XXII,
updated as on February 17, 2020 and as amended from time to time (iv). SEBI circular
Cir./IMD/DF/17/2011 dated September 28, 2011 titled ‘Guidelines for Issue and
Listing of Structured Products/Market Linked Debentures”.;

#The lssuerreservestherighttochangetheissue closing date andin such an event,
the Deemed Date of Allotment for the Debentures mayalso be revised by the Issuer
atits sole and absolute discretion.

The Disclosure Document is dated February 27, 2021
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SECTION I - IMPORTANT NOTICE TO THE INVESTORS

GENERAL DISCLAIMER:

THIS INFORMATION MEMORANDUM (“DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT”) IS NEITHER A
PROSPECTUS NOR A STATEMENT IN LIEU OF PROSPECTUS. THIS DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT IS INTENDED FOR PRIVATE USE AND SHOULD NOT BE CONSTRUED TO BE
A PROSPECTUS AND/OR AN INVITATION TO THE PUBLIC OR A SECTION OF THE
PUBLIC FOR SUBSCRIPTION TO DEBENTURES UNDER ANY LAW FOR THE TIME BEING
IN FORCE. NEITHER THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT NOT ANY OTHER INFORMATION
SUPPLIED IN CONNECTION WITH THE CONTEMPLATED ISSUE SHOULD BE
CONSTRUED AS LEGAL, TAX, ACCOUNTING OR INVESTMENT ADVICE.

APART FROM THIS INFORMATION MEMORANDUM, NO OTHER OFFER DOCUMENT OR
PROSPECTUS HAS BEEN PREPARED IN CONNECTION WITH THE OFFERING OF THIS
ISSUE NOR IS SUCH A PROSPECTUS REQUIRED TO BE REGISTERED UNDER APPLICABLE
LAWS. ACCORDINGLY, THIS INFORMATION MEMORANDUM HAS NEITHER BEEN
DELIVERED FOR REGISTRATION NOR IS IT INTENDED TO BE REGISTERED.THE ISSUER
DOES NOT UNDERTAKE TO UPDATE THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT TO REFLECT
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF THIS MEMORANDUM AND THUS IT SHOULD
NOT BE RELIED UPON WITH RESPECT TO ANY SUCH SUBSEQUENT EVENTS WITHOUT
FIRST CONFIRMING ITS ACCURACY WITH THE ISSUER. NEITHER THE DELIVERY OF THIS
DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT NOR ANY SALE OF THE NCD MADE HEREUNDER SHALL,
UNDER ANY CIRCUMSTANCES, CONSTITUTE A REPRESENTATION OR CREATE ANY
IMPLICATION THAT THERE HAS BEEN NO CHANGE INTHE AFFAIRS OF THE ISSUER SINCE
THE DATE HEREOF.

This Disclosure Document is for private placement of Debentures and has been
prepared in conformity with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and
Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 issued vide circular no. LAD-
NRO/GN/2008/13/127878 dated June 06, 2008 (as amended from time to time), 2, and
SEBI circular no. CIR/IMD/DF/18/2013 dated October 29, 2013, and the SEBI (Listing
Disclosures and Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and section 42 of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Second Amendment
Rules, 2018 and the RBI circulars on the subject and relevant laws, rules and
regulations. As per the applicable provisions, copy of this Disclosure Document has not
been filed or submitted to SEBI for its review and/or approval.

This Disclosure Document has been prepared to provide general information about the
Issuer to potential investors to whom it is addressed and who are willing and eligible
to subscribe to the Debentures. This Disclosure Document does not purport to contain
all the information that any potential investor may require. Neither this Disclosure
Document nor any other information supplied in connection with the Debentures is
intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation and any recipient of this
Disclosure Document should not consider such receipt a recommendation to purchase
any Debentures. Each investor contemplating purchasing any Debentures should make
its own independent investigation of the financial condition and affairs of the Issuer,
and its own appraisal of the creditworthiness of the Issuer. Each recipient of this
Disclosure Document acknowledges that such person has not relied on the Issuer or
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any of its affiliates, shareholders, directors, employees, agents or advisors in
connection with its investigation of the accuracy of such information or its investment
decision and such person has relied solely on its own examination of the
creditworthiness of the Issuer and the merits and risks involved in investing in the
Debentures. Potential investors should consult their own financial, legal, tax and other
professional advisors as to the risks and investment considerations arising from an
investment in the Debentures and should possess the appropriate resources to analyze
such investment and the suitability of such investment to such investor’s particular
circumstances.

No person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representation
not contained or incorporated by reference in this Disclosure Document or in any
material made available by the Issuer to any potential investor pursuant hereto and, if
given or made, such information or representation must not be relied upon as having
been authorized by the Issuer.

This Disclosure Document and the contents hereof are restricted for only the intended
recipient(s) who have been addressed directly and specifically through a
communication by the Issuer and only such recipients are eligible to apply for the
Debentures. All investors are required to comply with the relevant
regulations/guidelines applicable to them for investing in this Issue. The contents of
this Disclosure Document are intended to be used only by those investors to whom it
is distributed. It is not intended for distribution to any other person and should not be
reproduced by the recipient.

No invitation is being made to any persons other than those to whom application forms
along with this Disclosure Document being issued have been sent by or on behalf of
the Issuer. Any application by a person to whom the Disclosure Document has not been
sent by or on behalf of the Issuer shall be rejected without assigning any reason.

Each person receiving this Disclosure Document acknowledges that:

Such person has been afforded an opportunity to request and to review and has
received all additional information considered by it to be necessary to verify the
accuracy of or to supplement the information herein. Each such person (i) is a
knowledgeable and sophisticated investor; (ii) have the expertise in assessing the
credit, market and all the other risks involved in purchasing the Debentures; (iii) has
done its own independent assessment and analysis of the Issue; (iv) understands that,
by purchase or holding of the Debentures, it is assuming and is capable of bearing the
risk of loss that may occur with respect to Debentures, including the possibility that it
may lose all or a substantial portion of investment.

The Issuer does not undertake to update the Disclosure Document to reflect
subsequent events after the date of the Disclosure Document except as required under
law.

Neither the delivery of this Disclosure Document nor any sale of Debentures made
hereunder shall, under any circumstances, constitute a representation or create any
implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Issuer since the date
hereof.
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This Disclosure Document does not constitute, nor may it be used for or in connection
with, an offer or solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction in which such offer or
solicitation is not authorized or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such an
offer or solicitation. No action is being taken to permit an offering of the Debentures
or the distribution of this Disclosure Document in any jurisdiction where such action is
required. The distribution of this Disclosure Document and the offering and sale of the
Debentures may be restricted by law in certain jurisdictions. Persons into whose
possession this Disclosure Document comes are required to inform themselves about
and to observe any such restrictions. The Disclosure Document is made available to
investors in the Issue on the strict understanding that the contents hereof are strictly
confidential.

It is the responsibility of investors to ensure that any transfer of the Debentures is in
accordance with this Disclosure Document and the applicable laws, and ensure that
the same does not constitute an offer to the public.

The information and data contained herein is submitted to each of the recipient of this
Disclosure Document on a strictly private and confidential basis. By accepting a copy
of this Disclosure Document, each recipient agrees that neither it nor any of its
employees or advisors will use the information contained herein for any purpose other
than evaluating the subscription to the Issue or will divulge to any other party any such
information. This Disclosure Document must not be photocopied, reproduced,
extracted or distributed in full or in part to any person other than the recipient without
the prior written consent of the Issuer.

DISCLAIMER OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA

This Disclosure Document has not been filed with the Securities & Exchange Board of
India (SEBI). The securities have not been recommended or approved by SEBI nor does
SEBI guarantee the accuracy or adequacy of this document. This document should not,
in any way, be deemed or construed to have been cleared or vetted by SEBI. SEBI does
not take any responsibility either for the financial soundness of any scheme or the
project for which the Issue is proposed to be made, or for the correctness of the
statements made or opinions expressed in this document. The issue of Debentures is
being made on a private placement basis and, therefore, filing of this document with
SEBI is not required, however SEBI reserves the right to take up at any point of time,
with the Issuer, any irregularities or lapses in this document.

DISCLAIMER OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE

As required, a copy of this Disclosure Document shall be submitted to the BSE for hosting
the same on its website. It is to be distinctly understood that such submission of the
document with BSE or hosting the same on its website should not in any way be deemed or
construed that the document has been cleared or approved by BSE; nor does it in any
manner warrant, certify or endorse the correctness or completeness of any of the contents
of this document; nor does it warrant that this Issuer’s securities will be listed or continue to
be listed on the exchange; nor does it take responsibility for the financial or other soundness
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of the Issuer, its promoters, its management or any scheme or project of the Issuer. Every
person who desires to apply for or otherwise acquire any securities of this Issuer may do so
pursuant to independent inquiry, investigation and analysis and shall not have any claim
against the exchange whatsoever by reason of any loss which may be suffered by such
person consequent to or in connection with such subscription/ acquisition whether by
reason of anything stated or omitted to be stated herein or any other reason whatsoever.

DISCLAIMER IN RESPECT OF JURISDICTION

The private placement of Debenture is made in India to Companies, Corporate Bodies, Trusts
registered under the Indian Trusts Act, 1882, Societies registered under the Societies
Registration Act, 1860 or any other applicable laws, provided that suchTrust/ Society is
authorised under constitution/ rules/ bye-laws to hold debenture in a Company, Indian
Mutual Funds registered with SEBI, Indian Financial Institutions, Insurance Companies,
Commercial Banks including Regional Rural Banks and Cooperative Banks, Provident,
Pension, Gratuity, Superannuation Funds as defined under Indian laws. The Disclosure
Document does not, however, constitute an offer to sell or an invitation to subscribe to
securities offered hereby in any other jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to
make an offer or invitation in such jurisdiction. Any person into whose possession this
Disclosure Document comes is required to inform him about and to observe any such
restrictions. Any disputes arising out of this issue will be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction
of the courts at Bangalore.

DISCLAIMER BY RESERVE BANK OF INDIA:

THE COMPANY IS HAVING A VALID CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRATION DATED MAY 17, 2011
BEARING REGISTRATION NO. B-02-00250 ISSUED BY THE RESERVE BANK OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 45 IA OF THE RESERVE BANK OF INDIA ACT, 1934. HOWEVER, RBI DOES NOT ACCEPT
ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR GUARANTEE ABOUT THE PRESENT POSITION AS TO THE FINANCIAL
SOUNDNESS OF THE COMPANY OR FOR THE CORRECTNESS OF ANY OF THE STATEMENTS OR
REPRESENTATIONS MADE OR OPINIONS EXPRESSED BY THE COMPANY AND FOR REPAYMENT
OF DEPOSITS/ DISCHARGE OF LIABILITY BY THE COMPANY.

DISCLAIMER BY DEBENTURE TRUSTEE:

The Debenture Trustee, "ipso facto" does not have the obligations of a borrower or a principal
debtor or a guarantor as to the monies paid / invested by Debenture Holders.
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DISCLAIMER BY CREDIT RATING AGENCY:

CRISIL rating reflects CRISIL's current opinion on the likelihood of timely payment of the
obligations under the rated instrument and does not constitute an audit of the rated entity by
CRISIL. CRISIL ratings are based on information provided by the issuer or obtained by CRISIL from
sources it considers reliable. CRISIL does not guarantee the completeness or accuracy of the
information on which the rating is based. A CRISIL rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell, or
hold the rated instrument; it does not comment on the market price or suitability for a particular
investor. All CRISIL ratings are under surveillance. CRISIL or its associates may have other
commercial transactions with the company/entity. Ratings are revised as and when
circumstances so warrant. CRISIL is not responsible for any errors and especially states that it has
no financial liability whatsoever to the subscribers / users / transmitters / distributors of this
product. CRISIL Ratings rating criteria are available without charge to the public on the CRISIL web
site, www.crisil.com.
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

All statements in this Disclosure Document that are not statements of historical
fact constitute “forward looking statements”. All statements regarding the Issuer’s
expected financial condition and results of operations, business, plans and
prospects are forward looking statements. These forward looking statements and
any other projections contained in this Disclosure Document (whether made by
the Issuer or any third party) are predictions and involve known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors that may cause the lIssuer’s actual results,
performance and achievements to be materially different from any future results,
performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward looking
statements or other projections. The forward looking statements, if any, contained
in this Disclosure Document are based on the beliefs of the management of the
Issuer, as well as the assumptions made by and information available to
management as at the date of this Disclosure Document. There can be no
assurance that the expectations will prove to be correct. The Issuer expressly
disclaims any obligation or undertaking to release any updated information or
revisions to any forward looking statements contained herein to reflect any
changes in the expectations or assumptions with regard thereto or any change in
the events, conditions or circumstances on which such statements are based.
Given these uncertainties, recipients are cautioned not to place undue reliance on
such forward looking statements. All subsequent written and oral forward looking
statements attributable to the Issuer are expressly qualified in their entirety by
reference to these cautionary statements.
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DEFINITION/ ABBREVIATIONS

Term

Description

“Issuer”, “the
Company” and “our
Company”

Samasta Microfinance Limited, a company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956
and registered as a Non-Banking Financial Company with the Reserve Bank of India under
Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Act / Companies Act

The Companies Act, 1956 or Companies Act 2013 (such sections which have been
notified by the Government) as amended from time to time, whichever is applicable.

AOA / Articles /
Articles of Association

Articles of Association of our Company

Board / Board of
Directors

The Board of Directors of our Company and includes any Committee thereof

Debenture Trust Deed

The debenture trust deed dated June 22, 2020 entered into between the Company and
the Debenture Trustee pursuant to which the Company shall settle the trust in favour
of the Debenture Trustee acting on behalf of the Debenture Holders

DIN

Director Identification Number

Equity Shares

Equity shares of face value of Rs.10 each of our Company

MIS Management Information System of our Company

Memorandum / MOA | Memorandum of Association of our Company

/ Memorandum of

Association

NBFC-MFI Non-Banking Financial Company as defined under Section 45-IA of the RBI Act, 1934
NBFC-ND-SI Non-Deposit Accepting / Holding Systemically Important NBFC

NPA Non-Performing Asset

Promoter IIFL Finance Limited

*/ Rs./ INR / Rupees

Indian Rupees

Receivables

Identified receivables of the Company in form of book debts, loans and advances and
current assets of the Company, that are in existence as on the date of this Deed, which
represent the Receivables charged in the nature of hypothecation exclusively in favour
of the Debenture Trustee on behalf of the Debenture Holders, as more specifically
described in the Debenture Trust Deed

Statutory Auditors /
Auditors

Our statutory auditors being V Sankar Aiyar & Co., Chartered Accountants

”We", llusll and ﬂourn

Our Company and/or its Subsidiaries, unless the context otherwise requires
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SECTION II - RISK FACTORS

An investment in this type of security involves a certain degree of risk. The investor
should carefully consider all the information contained in this disclosure document,
including the risks and uncertainties described below, before making an investment
decision. The risk factors set forth below do not purport to be complete or
comprehensive in terms of all the risks that may arise in connection with our business
or any decision to purchase, own or dispose of the Debentures. Additional risks, which
are currently unknown, if materialises, may in the future have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition and results of operations. The market prices of the
NCDs could decline due to such risks and you may lose all or part of your investment.

Risks Relating to Our Business

The following are the risks envisaged by the management. Potential investors
should consider these risk factors carefully for evaluating the trading or
profitability of the Company and its business before making any investment
decision. Unless the context requires otherwise, the risk factors described below
apply to the Company only.

The Investors must rely on their own examination and investigation of the
Company and its business, their promoters, associate companies and the Issue
including the risks and uncertainties involved.

The Company and its business are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions,
internal as well as external, and could materially affect the performance of the
Company. The following are some of the important factors that could cause actual
results to differ materially from the Company’s expectations:

We deal with higher risk clients and provide unsecured loans. Hence our business is
exposed to risk of NPAs.

The majority of our loans are unsecured and the clients of these unsecured loans are
of the high risk category and if we are unable to control the level of non-performing
loans (“NPAs”) in the future, or if our loan loss reserves are insufficient to cover future
loan losses, our financial condition and results of operations may be materially and
adversely affected.

A majority of our loans are unsecured and the clients of these unsecured loans are of
the high risk category. There is uncertainty on the client’s ability to fulfil its loan
obligations as MFI clients typically do not have bank accounts or proper income proof
verification so it can be difficult to verify all client details and assess the risk. Such non-
performing or low credit quality loans can negatively impact our results of operations.

The Issuer has various procedures and process controls in place to mitigate the risk. All
group lending loans are provided under the Grameen Model and based on the joint
liability of the group.

We cannot assure you that we will be able to effectively control and reduce the level
of the impaired loans in our total loan portfolio. The amount of our reported NPAs may
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increase in the future as a result of growth in our total loan portfolio, and also due to
factors beyond our control, such as over - extended member credit that we are
unaware of. If we are unable to manage our NPAs or adequately recover our loans, our
results of operations will be adversely affected. Our current loan loss reserves may not
be adequate to cover an increase in the amount of NPAs or any future deterioration in
the overall credit quality of our total loan portfolio. As a result, if the quality of our
total loan portfolio deteriorates we may be required to increase our loan loss reserves,
which will adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations. Our
customers/borrowers are poor and, as a result, might be vulnerable if economic
conditions worsen or growth rates decelerate in India, or if there are natural disasters
such as floods and droughts in areas where our customers live. Moreover, there is no
precise method for predicting loan and credit losses, and we cannot assure you that
our monitoring and risk management procedures will effectively predict such losses or
that loan loss reserves will be sufficient to cover actual losses. If we are unable to
control or reduce the level of our NPAs or poor credit quality loans, our financial
condition and results of our operations could be materially and adversely affected.

Further, while we believe that our security interests are perfected and legally
enforceable, they might not be deemed as such in an Indian court.

Our business operates through a large number of rural and semi urban branches and
is exposed to operational risks including fraud.

We are exposed to operational risks, including fraud, petty theft and embezzlement,
as we handle a large amount of cash due to high volume of small transactions. This
could harm our operations and our financial position.

As we handle a large amount of cash through a high volume of small transactions taking
place in our network, we are exposed to the risk of fraud or other misconduct by
employees or outsiders. These risks are further compounded due to the high level of
delegation of power and responsibilities our business model requires. Given the high
volume of transactions processed by us, certain instances of fraud and misconduct may
go unnoticed before they are discovered and successfully rectified. Even when we
discover such instances of fraud or theft and pursue them to the full extent of the law
or with our insurance carriers, there can be no assurance that we will recover any such
amounts. In addition, our dependence upon automated systems to record and process
transactions may further increase the risk that technical system flaws or employee
tampering or manipulation of those systems will result in losses that are difficult to
detect.

To mitigate the above risk, we maintain an internal audit process to ensure the
operations team follows the defined procedures and reports any deviations to the
operations staff and management team. We also have a MIS system able to generate
data analysis that can be used to monitor financial and operational performance.

Loans due within two years’ account for almost all of our interest income, and a
significant reduction in short term loans may result in a corresponding decrease in
our interest income.

All of the loans we issue are due within approximately two years of disbursement. The
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relatively short- term nature of our loans means that our long-term interest income
stream is less certain than if a portion of our loans were for a longer term. In addition,
our customers may not obtain new loans from us upon maturity of their existing loans,
particularly if competition increases. The potential instability of our interest income
could materially and adversely affect our results of operations and financial position.

We are exposed to certain political, regulatory and concentration of risks and plan
to expand into newer geographic locations.

Due to the nature of operations, we are exposed to political, regulatory and
concentration risks. We believe a mitigant to this is to expand its geographical
reach and we are consequently expanding operations in different geographies.

If we are not effectively able to manage such operations and expansion, we may
lose money invested in such expansion, which could adversely affect our business
and results of operations.

Large scale attrition, especially at the senior management level, can make it difficult
for us to manage our business.

If we are not able to attract, motivate, integrate or retain qualified personnel at
levels of experience that are necessary to maintain our quality and reputation, it
will be difficult for us to manage our business and growth

We depend on the services of our executive officers and key employees for our
continued operations and growth. In particular, our senior management has
significant experience in the micro-finance, banking and financial services
industries. The loss of any of our executive officers, key employees or senior
managers could negatively affect our ability to execute our business strategy,
including our ability to manage our rapid growth. Our business is also dependent
on our team of personnel who directly manage our relationships with our
members. Our business and profits would suffer adversely if a substantial number
of such personnel left us or became ineffective in servicing our members over a
period of time. Our future success will depend in large part on our ability to
identify, attract and retain highly skilled managerial and other personnel.
Competition for individuals with such specialized knowledge and experience is
intense in our industry, and we may be unable to attract, motivate, integrate or
retain qualified personnel at levels of experience that are necessary to maintain
our quality and reputation or to sustain or expand our operations. The loss of the
services of such personnel or the inability to identify, attract and retain qualified
personnel in the future would make it difficult for us to manage our business and
growth and to meet key objectives.

Our business and results of operations would be adversely affected by strikes, work
stoppages or increased wage demands by our employees.

Our employees are not currently unionized. However, there can be no assurance
that they will not unionize in the future. If our employees unionize, it may become
difficult for us to maintain flexible labour policies, and we could incur higher labour
costs, which would adversely affect our business and results of operations.
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Our insurance coverage may not adequately protect us against losses.

Successful claims that exceed our insurance coverage could harm our results of
operations and diminish our financial position.

We maintain insurance coverage of the type and in the amounts that we believe
are commensurate with our operations and other general liability insurances. Our
insurance policies, however, may not provide adequate coverage in certain
circumstances and may be subject to certain deductibles, exclusions and limits on
coverage.

In addition, there are various types of risks and losses for which we do not maintain
insurance, such as losses due to business interruption and natural disasters,
because they are either uninsurable or because insurance is not available to us on
acceptable terms. A successful assertion of one or more large claims against us
that exceeds our available insurance coverage or results in changes in our
insurance policies, including premium increases or the imposition of a larger
deductible or co-insurance requirement, could adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations. We do not have director ‘s and officer
‘s insurance which could impact an individual ‘s decision to serve on our Board of
Directors.

Micro credit lending poses unique risks not generally associated with other forms of
lending in India, and, as a result, we may experience increased levels of NPAs and
related provisions and write-offs that negatively impact our results of operations

Our core mission is to provide loans to fund the small businesses and other income
generating activities of our customers. Our customers are typically poor and
illiterate women living in rural India, who have limited sources of income, savings
and credit histories, and who cannot provide us with any collateral or security for
their borrowings. We also disburse non-interest bearing loans to our customers in
the event of emergencies, such as pregnancy, funerals and natural disasters. In
addition, we have extended loan repayment moratoriums of two to three weeks
to customers who have been victims of flood conditions. While we do extend such
moratoriums on a case by case basis, extensive flood conditions could adversely
affect the ability of our customers to make loan payments on time and in turn
negatively impact our results of operations. As a result, our customers pose a
higher risk of default than borrowers with greater financial resources and more
established credit histories and borrowers living in urban areas with better access
to education, employment opportunities, and social services.

In addition, we rely on non-traditional guarantee mechanisms in connection with
our loan products, which are generally secured by informal individual and group
guarantees, rather than tangible assets. As a result, our loan products pose a
higher degree of risk than loans secured with physical collateral. Due to the
precarious circumstances of our customers and our non-traditional lending
practices we may, in the future, experience increased levels of non-performing
loans and related provisions and write-offs that negatively impact our business and
results of operations.
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A credit enhancement happens by way of guarantee of loan to an individual
member of a group by all the other members of the group. The ability to repay the
loan is taken care of by internal credit evaluation and intention to repay is taken
care of by the mutual guarantee of group customers.

We require certain statutory and regulatory approvals for conducting our business
and our failure to obtain or retain them in a timely manner, or at all, may adversely
affect our operations.

NBFCs in India are subject to strict regulation and supervision by the RBI. Pursuant
to the Master Circular- ‘Non-Banking Financial Company-Micro Finance
Institutions’ (NBFC-MFIs) — Directions dated July 1, 2014 (as updated from time to
time, the NBFC-MFI Directions) issued by the RBI, we are required to maintain our
status as a Non-Banking Finance Company — Micro Finance Institution (“NBFC-
MFI”) in order to be eligible for categorizaOon as priority sector advance for bank
loans. See risk factor titled — ‘Current Micro-finance Industry Challenges’ for
details. We require certain approvals, licenses, registrations and permissions for
operating our business, including registration with the RBl as a NBFC-MFI. Further,
such approvals, licenses, registrations and permissions must be
maintained/renewed over time, applicable requirements may change and we may
not be aware of or comply with all requirements all of the time. Additionally, we
may need additional approvals from regulators to introduce new insurance and
other fee based products to our members. In particular, we are required to obtain
a certificate of registration for carrying on business as a NBFC-MFI that is subject
to numerous conditions. In addition, our branches are required to be registered
under the relevant shops and establishments laws of the states in which they are
located. The shops and establishment laws regulate various employment
conditions, including working hours, holidays and leave and overtime
compensation. If we fail to obtain or retain any of these approvals or licenses, or
renewals thereof, in a timely manner, or at all, our business may be adversely
affected. If we fail to comply, or a regulator claims we have not complied, with any
of these conditions, our certificate of registration may be suspended or cancelled
and we shall not be able to carry on such activities. If we fail to comply with the
NBFC-MFI Directions and fail to maintain the status of NBFC-MFI, we will not be
eligible for priority sector loans from the Indian banking sector and may also
attract penal provisions under the RBI Act, 1934 for non-compliance.

We may be required to increase our capital ratio or amount of loan loss reserves,
which may result in changes to our business and accounting practices that would
harm our business and results of operation.

We are subject to the RBI minimum capital to risk weighted assets ratio
regulations. Pursuant to Section 45 -IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934, every
NBFC-MFlI is required to create a reserve fund and transfer thereto a sum not less
than 20 percent of its net profit every year, as disclosed in the profit and loss
account and before any dividend is declared. We are also required to maintain a
minimum capital adequacy ratio of 15.00 percent in relation to our aggregate risk-
weighted assets and risk adjusted assigned loans. The ratio must equal or exceed
15.00 percent.
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The RBI may also in the future require compliance with other financial ratios and
standards. Compliance with such regulatory requirements in the future may
require us to alter our business and accounting practices or take other actions that
could materially harm our business and operating results.

Competition from banks and financial institutions, as well as state-sponsored social
programs, may adversely affect our profitability and position in the Indian micro-
credit lending industry

We face our most significant competition from other micro finance institutions
(Fis) and banks in India. Many of the institutions with which we compete have
greater assets and better access to, and lower cost of, funding than we do. In
certain areas, they may also have better name recognition and larger member
bases than us. We anticipate that we may encounter greater competition as we
continue expanding our operations in India, which may result in an adverse effect
on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We believe traditional commercial banks as well as regional rural and cooperative
banks have generally not directly targeted the rural lower income segments of the
population for new customers. However, some banks do participate in micro-
finance by financing the loan programs of self-help groups often in partnership
with NGOs. Banks also indirectly participate in microfinance by making loans and
providing other sources of funding to other MFlIs. In addition, we are aware that
some commercial banks are beginning to directly compete with for —profit MFls
for lower income segment customers in certain geographies.

Movement in market interest rates may adversely affect the margins of the Issuer,
Changes in interest rates at which the Issuer borrows can impact spreads,
especially in the short term. Increase in cost of funds can severely squeeze
margins, impacting profitability and operational self-sufficiency of MFls. With
increasing competition and pressure to cut interest rates, the Issuer may not be in
a position to pass interest rate increases to clients. Further, the new directions
issued by the RBI, the NBFC-MFI Directions (following the recommendations of the
Malegam Committee Report) has introduced restrictions on margins, interest rates
and processing fees and will increase interest rate risk for the Issuer.

External Risk Factors:

1. Financial difficulties and other problems in certain financial institutions in India
could cause our business to suffer and adversely affect our results of operations.

We are exposed to the risks of the Indian financial system, which in turn may be
affected by financial difficulties and other problems faced by certain Indian
financial institutions. Certain Indian financial institutions have experienced
difficulties during recent years. Some co-operative banks (which tend to operate
in rural sector) have also faced serious financial and liquidity crises. There has been
a trend towards consolidation with weaker banks and NBFCs being merged with
stronger entities. The problems faced by individual Indian financial institutions and
any instability in or difficulties faced by the Indian financial system generally could
create adverse market perception about Indian financial institutions, banks and
NBFCs. This in turn could adversely affect our business, our future financial
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performance, our shareholders’ funds and the market price of our NCDs.

Terrorist attacks, civil unrest and other acts of violence or war involving India
and other countries could adversely affect the financial markets and our business

Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or war may negatively affect our
business and may also adversely affect the worldwide financial markets. These
acts may also result in a loss of business confidence. In addition, any deterioration
in relations between India and its neighboring countries might result in investor
concern about stability in the region, which could adversely affect our business.

India has also witnessed civil disturbances in recent years and it is possible that
future civil unrest as well as other adverse social, economic and political events in
India could have a negative impact on us. Such incidents could also create a
greater perception that investment in Indian companies involves a higher degree
of risk and could have an adverse impact on our business and the market price of
our NCDs.

Natural calamities, pandemics could have a negative impact on the Indian
economy and cause our business to suffer;

India has experienced natural calamities such as earthquakes, a tsunami, floods
and drought in the past few years. The extent and severity of these natural
disasters determines their impact on the Indian economy. The erratic progress of
the monsoon in 2012 affected sowing operations for certain crops. Further,
prolonged spells of below normal rainfall or other natural calamities could have a
negative impact on the Indian economy thereby, adversely affecting our business.

Further, the World Health Organisation as well as the Government of India vide its
Office Memorandum dated February 19, 2020 declared the recent outbreak of the
COVID-19 pandemic as a natural calamity. While we expect the impacts of COVID-
19 to have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition inlcluding raising
of funds and results of operations, we are unable to predict the extent or nature of
these impacts at this time.

Instability of economic policies and the political situation in India could adversely
affect the fortunes of the industry

There is no assurance that the liberalization policies of the government will
continue in the future. Protests against privatization could slow down the pace of
liberalization and deregulation. The Government of India plays an important role
by regulating the policies and regulations that govern the private sector. The
current economic policies of the government may change at a later date. The pace
of economic liberalization could change and specific laws and policies affecting the
industry and other policies affecting investments in our Company’s business could
change as well. A significant change in India’s economic liberalization and
deregulation policies could disrupt business and economic conditions in India and
thereby affect our Company’s business.
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Unstable domestic as well as international political environment could impact the
economic performance in the short term as well as the long term. The
Government of India has pursued the economic liberalization policies including
relaxing restrictions on the private sector over the past several years. The present
Government has also announced polices and taken initiatives that support
continued economic liberalization.

The Government has traditionally exercised and continues to exercise a significant
influence over many aspects of the Indian economy. Our Company’s business may
be affected not only by changes in interest rates, changes in Government policy,
taxation, social and civil unrest but also by other political, economic or other
developments in or affecting India.

Companies operating in India are subject to a variety of central and state
government taxes and surcharges.

Tax and other levies imposed by the central and state governments in India that
affect our tax liability include: (i) central and state taxes and other levies; (ii)
income tax; (iii) value added tax; (iv) turnover tax; (v) service tax; (vi) stamp duty;
and (vii) other special taxes and surcharges which are introduced on a temporary
or permanent basis from time to time. Moreover, the central and state tax scheme
in India is extensive and subject to change from time to time. For example, a Direct
tax code is proposed to be introduced in the Indian Parliament.

The statutory corporate income tax in India, which includes a surcharge on the tax
and an education cess on the tax and the surcharge. The central or state
government may in the future increase the corporate income tax it imposes. Any
such future increases or amendments may affect the overall tax efficiency of
companies operating in India and may result in significant additional taxes
becoming payable. Additional tax exposure could adversely affect our business
and results of operations.

There is no assurance that the NCDs issued pursuant to this Issue will be listed
on Stock Exchanges in a timely manner, or at all.

In accordance with Indian law and practice, permissions for listing and trading of
the NCDs issued pursuant to this Issue will not be granted until after the NCDs
have been issued and allotted. Approval for listing and trading will require all
relevant documents to be submitted and carrying out of necessary procedures
with the Exchanges. There could be a failure or delay in listing the NCDs on the
Stock Exchange for reasons unforeseen. If permission to deal in and for an official
quotation of the NCDs is not granted by the Stock Exchanges, our Company will
forthwith repay, without interest, all monies received from the Applicants in
accordance with prevailing law in this context, and pursuant to the Prospectus.
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Directors of the Company

The following table sets out the details regarding the Board of Directors as on February 27,

2021.
Name, Designation, Nationality, DIN Age Date of Other Directorships
and Address, Occupation (years) | Appointment
Mr. Venkatesh N. 45 01/02/2004 NIL
Designation: Managing Director
DIN: 01018821
Nationality: Indian
Occupation: Professional
Address: No.472, 19th Main, 35th
Cross, 4th T Block, Jayanagar
Bengaluru-560041
Mr. Shivaprakash D. 46 30/07/2008 NIL

Designation: Whole-time Director

DIN: 02216802
Nationality: Indian

Occupation: Business

Address: NO0.51, Uttarathalli Main
Road, Komarla Brigade Residency, A
417, Chikkalasandara, Bengaluru-
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560061

Mr. Monu Ratra 47 24/06/2020 1. IIFL Home Finance Limited

Designation: Director

DIN: 07406284

Nationality: Indian

Occupation: Business

Address: E194, The Icon, DLF Phase V
Gurugram, Haryana-122002

Mr. Badrinarayanan Seshadri 51 30/07/2008 1. Chromosome Distributors
Private Limited

Designation: Independent Director 2. New Horizon Media Private
Limited

DIN: 00507371 3. Aargee Staffing Services Private
Limited

Nationality: Indian 4. Hethi Business Services Private
Limited

Occupation: Professional

Address: F3, Warren Manere, Old No
22, New No 66, Warren Road,
Mylapore, Chennai, Tamil Nadu-600004

Mr. Vikraman Ampalakkat 73 26/06/2009 1. Esaf Financial Holdings Private
Limited

Designation: Independent Director
2.  Muthoot Fincorp Limited

DIN: 01978341 3. Saggraha Management Services
Private
Nationality: Indian limited

Occupation: Professional

Address: G-3 V B Royal Apartments
Elamakkara Road, Edappally Kochi
682024.
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Designation: Independent Director
DIN: 00732954

Nationality: Indian

Occupation: Professional

Address: #50, 2nd Stage, 2nd Main
Road, BHBCS Behind Royal Durbar BTM

Layout, Bannerghatta Road, Bangalore
560076.

Mr. Ramanathan Annamalai 72 23/04/2009 Mangal Credit and Fincorp
Limited
Designation: Independent Director
United Overseas  Facilities
DIN: 02645247 Management Private Limited
South India Finvest Private
Nationality: Indian Limited
Occupation: Professional Unnati Microfin Private Limited
Asirvad Micro Finance Limited
Address: 28 Tansi Ngr 18th St Five-Star  Business  Finance
Velachery Chennai 600042. Limited
Five-Star  Housing  Finance
Private limited
Hindusthan Microfinance
Private Limited
Svasti  Microfinance Private
Limited
10. Tattva Fincorp Limited
Mrs. Malini B. Eden 61 26/04/2018 NIL

Note: None of the above directors appear in the RBI defaulter list and/or ECGC default list.

Brief profile/particulars of directors of the Company & Key Managerial Personnel of

the Company (as on date)

Mr. Venkatesh N. -Managing Director

Venkatesh is the founder and MD of Samasta Microfinance Ltd. He has over 20 years

of experience in the financial services industry as an entrepreneur. Venkatesh was also

the founder of the erstwhile PNV Techno Acquisitions Private Ltd. that marketed

financial products, and Affluence Edifice, that provided wealth management services

for individuals. Venkatesh holds a Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science and has

completed the Harvard Business School-ACCION Program on Strategic Leadership in

Microfinance.
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Mr. Shivaprakash D — Whole-time Director

Shivaprakash co-founded Samasta in 2008. He leads Samasta’s technology-led
initiatives which includes the setting of comprehensive IT infrastructure to facilitate
smooth operations. He also oversees Operations to ensure seamless execution of
business strategies. Shivaprakash has over two decades of experience spanning the
software and financial services industries. Before co-founding Samasta, he managed
global technology projects for Wipro.

Mr. Ramanathan A. -Independent Director

Ramanathan was the Chief General Manager in the Micro Credit Innovations
Department of NABARD and has extensive experience in development banking in the
agriculture and rural sectors. He managed the SHG Bank Linkage programme, the
largest microfinance programme in the world. As In-charge of the Financial Inclusion
department, he has managed Financial Inclusion Fund and Financial Inclusion
Technology Fund.

Mr. Vikraman A. -Independent Director

A former Chief General Manager of SIDBI Foundation for Micro Credit, Vikraman has
extensive experience in the Microfinance sector. In his experience spanning 38 years,
he was with Reserve Bank of India for 5 years, IDBI for 16 years and SIDBI for 17 years.
He is also on the board of other microfinance and financial corporations.

Mr. Badri Seshadri -Independent Director

Badri Seshadri co-founded Cricinfo.com, a cricket information portal, which is now
owned by ESPN. He is an alumnus of IIT Chennai and has a Ph.D in Mechanical
Engineering from Cornell University. His latest venture is New Horizon Media that

focuses on publishing in Indian languages.
Mrs. Malini B. Eden- Independent Director

Malini has been a Development Specialist and Strategy Consultant for over two
decades and has significant experience of working for the marginalized and drawing
them into policy across several developmental themes. She has been part of bilateral
agencies and government Boards at the state, national and international levels in areas
such as economic empowerment, health and donor relations.

Mr. Monu Ratra- Non-Executive Director

Mr. Monu Ratra is a Graduate of Architecture and MBA with over 18 years of work
experience in the financial services industry. Mr. Ratra has been instrumental in growth
of IIFL Home Finance Limited’s loan book substantially during the past three years.
Under his leadership, IIFL Home Finance Limited has aspired to become key player in
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affordable housing segment and to serve the need of housing finance, especially, of
those who are underserved or untouched. Prior to joining IIFL Group, he was
associated with Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited as National Business Manager
where he was responsible for setting up and building the retail home loan business
along with their home equity business. Mr. Ratra has also served HDFC Ltd., ICICI Bank.

Mr. Anantha Kumar T- Chief Financial Officer

Anantha Kumar is the Chief Financial Officer at Samasta. In this role, he is responsible
for overall budgeting, reviewing and managing operational expenses, and monitoring
payroll. Anantha joined Samasta in May 2016 and has over 11 years of experience
across industries such as financial services, steel, garments and IT. His expertise lies in
audit, strategy, accounts & finance, treasury, and tax.

Before joining Samasta, Anantha was a Senior Consultant at GBA Consulting Services,
where he managed assignments in India as well as globally. Anantha is a Chartered
Accountant and Company Secretary.

Mr. Pramod Kulkarni — Company Secretary

Mr. Pramod Kulkarni is a qualified Company Secretary from the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India along with holding a bachelor’s degree in Business Management
and comes with an experience of over 5 years. Previously he has been associated with
a Financial Solutions (MNC) Company and Chartered Accountant firm with a know-how
in handling Corporate Laws, FEMA, Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, Mergers and
Acquisitions, Corporate Litigation, Corporate Funding, drafting Agreements and
Incorporation of entities.

Brief Particulars of the Management of the Company as on the date of this
Information Memorandum:

Sr. No. Name Designation
1 Mr. Venkatesh Narayanaswamy Managing Director

2 Mr. Shivaprakash Deviah Whole Time Director

3 Mr. Badrinarayanan Seshadri Independent Director

4 Mr. Vikraman Ampalakkat Independent Director

5 Mr. Ramanathan Annamalai Independent Director

6 Mrs. Malini B. Eden Independent Director

7 Mr. Monu Ratra Non-executive Director

8 Mr. Anantha Kumar. T Chief Financial Officer

9 Mr. Pramod Kulkarni Company Secretary
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Details of change in directors since last three years: -

Mr. Kalyanaraman 07712306 August 30, 2017 | Appointed on Resignation
Chandrachoodan January 20, 2017
(Director)
Mr. R. Venkataraman  [00011919 September 16, Appointed on Resignation
. 2019 January 20, 2017
(Director)
Mr. Gaurav Malhotra 07640504 December 06, Appointed on Resignation
) 2019 March 7, 2017
(Director)
Mr. Sumit Bali 02896088 September 18, - Appointment]
2019
Mrs. Malini B Eden 00732954 April 26, 2018 - Appointment
Mr. Sumit Bali 02896088 June 24, 2020 Appointed on Resignation
September 18,
2019
Mr. Monu Ratra 07406284 June 24, 2020 - Appointment

Details of the auditors of the Company: -

M/s. V Sankar Aiyar & Co 41, Circular Road(1st Floor), United 2018
India Colony, Kodambakkam, —
560069
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Details of change in auditor since last three years: -

V Sankar Aiyar & Co, Chartered Accountants, have been appointed as the Statutory Auditors
of the Company with effect from July 16, 2018 to fill the casual vacancy caused due to
resignation of M/s. Gowthama & Co, Chartered Accountants.

A Brief Summary of the Business/ Activities of the Issuer and its Line of Business:

Overview

Samasta Microfinance Limited, an IIFL Group company, is a microfinance institution
committed to working towards women’s economic empowerment. Since its inception in
March 2008, Samasta has been providing innovative and affordable financial products to
women from unbanked sections in society in both rural and semi urban areas. Today as the
organisation caters to 16 states across India, Samasta with its wide array of responsible
financial products and services acts as a catalyst for sustainable and inclusive economic
growth.

We are leveraging innovative technology solutions to enable customers to enjoy the benefits
of digitization and we aim to create economic opportunities for all and to improve the
standard of living in the communities we serve.

Over the past several years, we have diversified our products and expanded our presence into
segments that are of greater relevance to the evolving business environment and customer
demand trends

As on December 31, 2020 Samasta has 606 branches spread across 16 states in the
country for giving Microfinance Loans.

Details of default, if any, including therein the amount involved, duration of default
and present status in repayment of:

a) Statutory Dues: As per audited financials, our Company is generally regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income tax, GST, Cess and other material statutory dues with the

appropriate authorities, where applicable.
b) Debentures and interest thereon —NIL
C) Deposits and interest thereon —NA

d) Loan from any bank or financial institution and interest thereon — NIL
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A summary of our key operational and financial parameters for the last three

completed financial years, as specified below, on a consolidated basis are as follows:

Net worth 5,091.55 2,665.78 1,169.36 643.53
Total Debt 19,591.93 15,764.81 5,462.39 1,466.31
of which —
- Non Current Maturities of Long Term
Borrowing 10,360.64 9,553.49 1,956.41 682.67
- Short Term Borrowings

- - 1,376.60 -
- Current Maturities of long Term
Borrowings 9,231.28 6,211.32 2,129.38 783.64
Net Fixed Assets

130.87 108.35 45.43 22.04
Non-Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents

2,009.10 556.15 459.59 561.48
Current Investments
Current Assets

16,652.08 11,673.49 4,875.52 1,689.74
Current Liabilities

10,507.55 6,821.17 4,178.56 905.14
Assets Under Management

33,998.39 22,852.41 8,406.19 2,390.80




Off Balance Sheet Assets

10,992.29 4,666.04 2,066.10 954.30
Interest Income

5,101.87 2,974.20 959.81 320.38
Interest Expense

1,775.75 1,184.55 313.02 146.31
Provisioning & Write-offs

595.20 240.97 195.12 10.52
Profit before tax

1,398.29 719.95 43.80 6.23
Provision for tax

330.26 192.21 17.97 -1.86
Profit after tax (PAT)

1,068.02 527.73 25.83 8.09
Gross NPA (%) 1.49% 0.36% 0.30% 3.85%
Net NPA (%)
Tier | Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) * 20.91% 13.51% 17.51% 40.17%
Tier Il Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) * 4.96% 6.99% 1.25% 4.20%
Gross Debt: Equity Ratio of the
Company:-
Before the issue of debt securities

3.95 6.20 4.67 2.28
After the issue of debt securities #

4.02
Total Debt

19,941.93
Current Debt Issue Size (Rs. In Millions)

350.00
Dividend Declared (standalone basis) 118.00
Interest coverage ratio 1.79 1.61 1.14 1.04
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A brief history of the Issuer since its incorporation giving details of its activities
including any reorganization, reconstruction or amalgamation, changes in its
capital structure, (authorized, issued and subscribed) and borrowings, if any.

Corporate profile

Our Company was originally incorporated on August 9, 1995 as a public limited
company under the provisions of the Companies Act as Colonac Finance Limited under
the State of Tamil Nadu. Our Company changed its name to Samasta Microfinance
Limited (“Samasta”) w.e.f. July 25, 2008 and and its registered office from the State of
Tamil Nadu to Karnataka on March 31, 2011.

Our Company has obtained a certificate of registration dated May 17, 2011 bearing
registration no. B-02-00250 issued by the RBI to carry on the activities of a NBFC under
section 45 |A of the RBI Act, 1934. As on December 31, 2020 Samasta has 606 branches
across 16 states.

Samasta focuses on bridging the gap between ambition and achievement of the
working poor across India, by providing financial and non-financial services, in a
sustainable long-term relationship and enable them to achieve a better quality of
life.

As a business correspondent, Samasta uses their market know how and accessibility to
the rural and semi urban BOP families in India to bring microfinance services like micro
loans, credit linked insurance, group based savings account etc to their doorstep.

Samasta, as a Non-Banking Financial Company-MFI registered under the RBI,
believes that the way forward lies in microfinance which empowers individuals and
enriches communities. By alleviating financial stress among the poor and offering
an opportunity for income-generation, it helps improve the quality of life. The
micro loans can be used to pay off outstanding debts borrowed from local money
lenders at very high interest rates, start small businesses, which are the primary
requirements of the people we caterto.

Change in registered office of our Company

Registered Office of the Company changed from 418, 1/2A, 4™ Cross, 6™ Main,
Wilson Garden, Bangalore- 560027 to 110/3, Lalbagh Main Road, Krishnappa
Layout, Bangalore- 560027 with effect from May 27, 2019.

Main objects of our Company
The broad objectives of Samasta Microfinance are:

® To forge long-term partnerships and foster innovative business practices to
form the bridge between ideation andachievement.
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® To work with the poor in India who are creative entrepreneurs, value-
demanding consumers and innovative business partners, by means of a
robust microfinance model leading to the creation of businesses and markets
which mutually benefit Samasta Microfinance and the poor communities in
India.

® To provide both financial and non-financial products to the economically
poor to improve their standard of living.

® To operate in the supply chain domain and offer manpower training, and
industry-specific vocational training programs.

® To engage in private-public partnerships in rural and urban markets with a
focus on supplementing income generation activities with the application of
appropriate technology.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Details of share capital

The share capital of our Company as at December 31, 2020 is set forth below:

Share Capital In Rs.

Authorised Share Capital

39,80,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 3,98,00,00,000
20,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each 2,00,00,000
Total Authorised Share Capital 4,00,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up share capital

320,813,336 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 3,208,133,360
Total Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up share capital 3,208,133,360
Paid up capital: 3,208,133,360
Securities Premium Account 98,24,90,906

Note: There will be no change in the capital structure and securities premium account due to the
issue and allotment of the NCDs.
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Changes in the authorized capital of our Company in last Five years as on December

31, 2020:

Date of Approval

Authorized

Share Capital (in
Rs.)

Particulars

125,000,000

Authorised Share Capital of our Company as on 31.03.2015

June 22, 2016
(EGM)

425,000,000

Increase of Authorised Share Capital, by creation of 30,000,000 new
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each. The revised Authorised Share Capital
stood at Rs. 425 Million comprising of 405,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.
10 each and 20,00,000 (Twenty Lakhs Only) Preference Shares of Its.
10/- (Rupees Ten Only) aggregating to

Rs. 2,00,00,000 (Rupees Two Crores Only).

March 08,2017
(EGM)

650,000,000

Increase of Authorised Share Capital, by creation of 63,000,000 new
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each. The revised Authorised Share Capital
stood at Rs. 650 Million comprising of 630,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.
10 each and 20,00,000 (Twenty Lakhs Only) Preference Shares of Its.
10/- (Rupees Ten Only) aggregating to

Rs. 2,00,00,000 (Rupees Two Crores Only).

November 04,

2017
(EGM)

1,150,000,000

Increase of Authorised Share Capital, by creation of 50,000,000 new
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each. The revised Authorised Share Capital
stood at Rs. 1150 Million comprising of 11,30,00,000 Equity Shares of
Rs. 10 each and 20,00,000 (Twenty Lakhs Only) Preference Shares of
Its. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) aggregating toRs. 2,00,00,000 (Rupees Two
Crores Only).

June 23, 2018

1,50,00,00,000

Increase of Authorised Share Capital, by creation of 3,50,00,000 new
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each. The revised Authorised Share Capital
stood at Rs. 150 crores comprising of 14,80,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.
10 each and 20,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- aggregating to Rs.
2,00,00,000.

December 3, 2018

1,52,25,00,000

Increase of Authorised Share Capital pursuant to the
confirmationorderNo.3/(Kar)/CPNo.24/CAA11/2017/RD(SER)/Sec.233
/2017/3003 dated 09.08.2018 given by Regional Director w.r.t. Merger
of Ayusha Dairy Private Limited (Transferor Company) with Samasta
Microfinance Limited (Transferee Company) under Section 233 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The revised authorized capital was Rs.
152,25,00,000 consisting of Rs.150,25,00,000 Equity share capital
divided into 15,02,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each and,
Rs.2,00,00,000 Preference share capital divided into 20,00,000
preference share of Rs. 10 each
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March 16, 2019

1,80,50,00,000

Increase of Authorised Share Capital, by creation of 2,82,50,000 new
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each. The revised Authorised Share Capital
stood at Rs. 180.50 crores comprising of 17,85,00,000 Equity Shares of
Rs. 10 each and 20,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- aggregating to
Rs. 2,00,00,000.

September 23,
2019

2,15,50,00,000

Increase of Authorised Share Capital, by creation of 3,50,00,000 new
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each. The revised Authorised Share Capital
stood at Rs. 215.50 crores comprising of 21,35,00,000 Equity Shares of
Rs. 10 each and 20,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- aggregating to
Rs. 2,00,00,000.

January 24, 2020

3,00,00,00,000

Increase of Authorised Share Capital, by creation of 8,45,00,000 new
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each. The revised Authorised Share Capital
stood at Rs. 300 crores comprising of 29,80,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.
10 each and 20,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- aggregating to Rs.
2,00,00,000.

December 14,2020

4,00,00,00,000

Increase of Authorised Share Capital, by creation of 1,00,00,000 new
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each. The revised Authorised Share Capital
stood at Rs. 400 crores comprising of 39,80,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.
10 each and 20,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- aggregating to Rs.
2,00,00,000.
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Equity Share Capital History of our Company as on December 31, 2020:

30-07-2008 Shivaprakash. D 250000 10 Allotment

01-01-2015 Shivaprakash. D 95000 10 Allotment 345000 0.345
30-07-2008 R.C. Shekar 250000 10 Allotment

08-11-2008 R.C. Shekar 250000 10 Allotment

03-07-2009 R.C. Shekar 50000 10 Allotment

30-10-2009 R.C. Shekar 160000 10 Allotment

26-12-2009 R.C. Shekar 469000 10 Allotment

26-12-2009 R.C. Shekar 100000 10 Allotment

01-01-2015 R.C. Shekar 486020 10 Allotment 1765020 1.7650
31-03-2006 Narayanaswamy 20000 10 Allotment

31-03-2007 Narayanaswamy 10000 10 Allotment

18-04-2008 Narayanaswamy 110000 10 Allotment

18-04-2008 Narayanaswamy 25 10 Allotment

30-07-2008 Narayanaswamy 25 10 Allotment

30-07-2008 Narayanaswamy 30000 10 Allotment

30-07-2008 Narayanaswamy 20000 10 Allotment

30-07-2008 Narayanaswamy 10000 10 Allotment

30-07-2008 Narayanaswamy 20000 10 Allotment

30-07-2008 Narayanaswamy 27500 10 Allotment

30-07-2008 Narayanaswamy 10000 10 Allotment

30-07-2008 Narayanaswamy 502450 10 Allotment

01-01-2015 Narayanaswamy 288800 10 Allotment 1048800 1.0488
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G.J.
30-07-2008 Krishnaprasad 120000 10 Allotment
G.J.
26-12-2009 Krishnaprasad 280000 10 Allotment
G.J.
01-10-2015 Krishnaprasad 152000 10 Allotment 552000 0.552
Anitha
30-07-2008 Shivaprakash 30000 10 Allotment
Anitha
08-11-2008 Shivaprakash 20000 10 Allotment
Anitha
26-12-2009 Shivaprakash 90000 10 Allotment
Anitha
01-01-2015 Shivaprakash 53200 10 Allotment 193200 0.1932
01-01-2015 Christopher 7600 10 Allotment 7600 0.0076
31-03-2006 Venkatesh N 23402 10 Allotment
31-03-2007 Venkatesh N 16247 10 Allotment
25-02-2008 Venkatesh N 202801 10 Allotment
30-07-2008 Venkatesh N 151650 10 Allotment
08-11-2008 Venkatesh N 222900 10 Allotment
27-01-2009 Venkatesh N 350000 10 Allotment
03-07-2009 Venkatesh N 1000 10 Allotment
1.3358
01-01-2015 Venkatesh N 367840 10 Allotment 1335840 4
08-11-2008 Swaminathan 50000 10 Allotment
26-12-2009 Swaminathan 15000 10 Allotment
01-01-2015 Swaminathan 24700 10 Allotment 89700 0.0897
G. Prema
30-07-2008 Narayanaswamy 1000 10 Allotment
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G. Prema 0.0013
01-01-2015 Narayanaswamy | 380 10 Allotment 1380 8
30-07-2008 Vidya Anand 1000 10 Allotment

0.0013
01-01-2015 Vidya Anand 380 10 Allotment 1380 8
30-07-2008 S. Anand 1000 10 Allotment
0.0013

01-01-2015 S. Anand 380 10 Allotment 1380 8
30-10-2009 Vinodh 200000 10 Allotment
01-01-2015 Vinodh 76000 10 Allotment 276000 0.276
30-10-2009 Tara Vinodh 50000 10 Allotment
01-01-2015 Tara Vinodh 19000 10 Allotment 69000 0.069
26-12-2009 Shiva Srinivasan 100000 10 Allotment
01-01-2015 Shiva Srinivasan 38000 10 Allotment 138000 0.138
26-12-2009 R.Satya - HUF 70000 10 Allotment
01-01-2015 R.Satya - HUF 26600 10 Allotment 96600 0.0966

Jeganathan
24-12-2015 Ramanathan 41400 10 Allotment 41400 0.0414
26-12-2009 P.S.Anand Ram 70000 10 Allotment
01-01-2015 P.S.Anand Ram 26600 10 Allotment 96600 0.0966

Kalpathi

Investments Pvt 120000
26-12-2009 L 0 10 Allotment

Kalpathi

Investments Pvt
01-01-2015 L 456000 10 Allotment 1656000 1.656
28-04-2010 B.H.Krishnamurt

hy 400000 10 Allotment

B.H.Krishnamurt
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01-01-2015 hy 152000 10 Allotment 552000 0.552
28-04-2010 Sanjay Shenoy 400000 10 Allotment
01-01-2015 Sanjay Shenoy 152000 10 Allotment
07-08-2015 Sanjay Shenoy 27600 10 Allotment
07-08-2015 Sanjay Shenoy 103500 10 Allotment 683100 0.6831
150000
12-03-2015 SIDBI 0 10 Allotment 1500000 1.5
08-11-2008 Ramesh J 5000 10 Allotment 5000 0.005
08-11-2008 Girish 5000 10 Allotment 5000 0.005
08-11-2008 T M Durai 5000 10 Allotment 5000 0.005
08-11-2008 Anilkumar 5000 10 Allotment 5000 0.005
India Infoline | 8,417,6
07-03-2017 Finance Limited 31 10 Transfer 8,417,631
India Infoline | 5,00,00, 6,13,44,609 [61.34
08-03-2017 Finance Limited 000 10 Allotment
India Infoline | 5,00,00, 11,13,44,609 |111.34
08-11-2017 Finance Limited 000 10 Allotment
29-06-2018 India Infoline [3,46,02,076(10 Allotment 14,59,46,685 (145.94
Finance Limited
30-03-2019 India Infoline [3,20,92,426(10 Allotment 17,80,39,111 (178.04
Finance Limited
30-09-2019 India Infoline [2,97,08,853(10 Allotment 20,77,47,964 [207.74
Finance Limited
04-03-2020 India Infoline [2,82,48,587(10 Allotment 23,59,96,551 [235.99
Finance Limited
24-03-2020 India Infoline [2,82,48,587(10 Allotment 26,42,45,138 [264.24
Finance Limited
23-06-2020 IIFL Home Finance [6,60,61,285(10 Transfer of 6,60,61,285 [264.24

Limited

Shares from IIFL

Finance
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nance

known as India
Infoline Finance

Limited(Formerly|

Limited(Formerly
known as India
Infoline Finance
Limited)

Limited)
21-12-2020 IIFL Finance 4,24,26,147 (10 Allotment 30,66,71,285 [306.67
Limited(Formerly
known as India
Infoline Finance
Limited)
21-12-2020 IIFL Home Finance (1,41,42,049|10 Allotment 32,08,13,334 (320.81

Details of any acquisition or amalgamation in the last 1 year-NIL Details of any

reorganization
year.

or

reconstruction

in the

last 1

Amalgamation of wholly
owned subsidiary i.e.
Ayusha Dairy Private
Limited.

April 1, 2017: Effective
date of the Scheme.

August 6, 2018:
Confirmation Order of the
Scheme of merger or
amalgamation passed by

the Regional Director
(South Eastern Region),
Ministry of Corporate
Affairs.

The Board of Directors off
the Company presented a
Scheme of Amalgamation
or merger under section
233 of the Companies Act,
to the regional director,

ministry of corporate
affairs for amalgamation
of its wholly owned
subsidiary Ayusha Dairy
Private Limited with the
Company, the concerned
authority sanctioned the|
scheme vide its order
dated August 6, 2018.
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Shareholding Pattern:

Shareholding pattern of Equity Shares of our Company as on December 31, 2020:

Sl. Name of Share holder No. of Equity Face Total Amount | % of Share
No Shares Value Holding
In(Rs)
1 | Shivaprakash Deviah 3,45,000 10 34,50,000 0.11
2 | Venkatakrishnama Appa Naidu 10,52,938 10 1,05,29,380 0.33
Narayanaswamy
3 | Anitha Shivanna 1,93,200 10 19,32,000 0.06
4 | Narayanaswamy Venkatesh 13,35,840 10 1,33,58,400 0.42
5 | IIFL Finance Limited 23,76,83,022 10 2,37,68,30,22 74.09
0
6 | IIFL Home Finance Limited 8,02,03,334 10 80,20,33,340 25.00
7 | Prema Narayanaswamy 1 10 10 0.00
8 | Vidhya Anand 1 10 10 0.00
Total 32,08,13,336 Rs.10 3,20,81,33,36 100.00
0

Note: Prema Narayanaswamy and Vidhya Anand holding 1 equity share of Rs.10 each
respectively are Registered owners and Beneficial Interest of such shares lies with

Narayanaswamy.

No shares are pledged or encumbered by the promoter i.e. IIFL Finance Limited.

Post Issue Shareholding Pattern

There will be no change in the shareholding after the issuance.
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Top 10 holders of Equity Shareholders of our Company as on December 31,

2020:
Sl. Name of Share holder No. of Face Total Amount % of
No. Equity Value Share
Shares Holding
in(Rs)
1 Shivaprakash Deviah 3,45,000 10 34,50,000 0.11
2 Venkatakrishnama Appa Naidu Narayanaswamy 10,52,938 10 1,05,29,380 0.33
3 Anitha Shivanna 1,93,200 10 19,32,000 0.06
4 Narayanaswamy Venkatesh 13,35,840 10 1,33,58,400 0.42
5 IIFL Finance Limited 23,76,83,022 10 2,37,68,30,220 74.09
6 IIFL Home Finance Limited 8,02,03,334 10 80,20,33,340 25.00
7 Prema Narayanaswamy 1 10 10 0.00
8 | Vidhya Anand 1 10 10 0.00
Total 32,08,13,336 Rs.10 3,20,81,33,360 100.00

Note: Prema Narayanaswamy and Vidhya Anand holding 1 equity share of Rs.10 each
respectively are Registered owners and Beneficial Interest of such shares lies with
Narayanaswamy.
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Details of Promoters:

Details of Promoter Holding in the Company as on December 31, 2020 -

IIFL Finance Limited 23,76,83,022 23,76,83,022 74.09 NIL NIL
Venkatesh N. 13,35,840 13,35,840 0.42 NIL NIL
Shivaprakash D. 3,45,000 3,45,000 0.11 NIL NIL

Abridged version of Audited Consolidated (wherever available) and Standalone Financial
Information (like Profit & Loss statement, Balance Sheet and Cash Flow statement) for
at least last three years and auditor qualifications, ifany.

Refer to Section IV titled ‘Financial Information of the Issuer’

Abridged version of Latest Audited / Limited Review Half Yearly Consolidated (wherever
available) and Standalone Financial Information (like Profit & Loss statement, and
Balance Sheet) and auditor’s qualifications, if any

Refer to Section IV titled ‘Financial Information of the Issuer’

Other disclosures in accordance with Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule
14(1) of Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014

Disclosures made in Annexure F to this Information Memorandum — Form PAS — 4.
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SECTION IV — FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE ISSUER
A SUMMARY OF THE FINANCIAL POSITION AND CASH FLOW STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(STANDALONE):*

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020, 31°* March 2019 and 31 March 2018 prepared in accordance
with IND AS: (Standalone)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st March, As at 31 March
March, 2020 2019 2018
ASSETS
1 | Financial Assets
(a) | Cash and cash equivalents 2,009.10 556.15 18753
(b) Bank Balance other than (a)
above 799.61 403.38 258.48
() Derivative financial
instruments 21.28 55.42 -
(c) | Receivables
(1) Trade Receivables 18.54 36.19 37.92
() Other Receivables i i i
(d) | Loans 22,873.88 17,897.98 6,704.89
(e) | Investments 0.50 11.22 10.72
(f) | Other Financial assets 648.48 159.93 35,88
2 | Non-financial Assets
(a) | Current tax assets 41.89 26.24 )
(b) | Deferred tax Assets 64.78 50.54 41.68
(c) | Investment Property 0.56 058 )
(d) Property, Plant and
Equipment 80.78 95.24 44.50
(e) | Rightto Use 46.35 i )
(f) | Capital work-in-progress i 755 )
(g) | Other Intangible assets 319 4.97 0.93
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(h) | Other non-financial assets

10.47 3.61 3.07
Total Assets 26,619.40 19,309.01 7,325.58
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
1 | Financial Liabilities
(a) Derivative financial
instruments 21.28 55.42 -

(b) | Payables

() Trade Payables

(i) total outstanding dues of
micro enterprises and small
enterprises

(ii) total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro

enterprises and small 35.31 111.29 44.07
enterprises

(c) | Debt Securities

4,521.25 5,556.26 932.15
(d) Borroy\{ings (Other than Debt
Securities) 13,895.46 9,040.77 5,061.09

(e) | Subordinated Liabilities 992,55 989.02 50.00
(f) | Lease Liability 46.73 ) -
(g) | Other financial liabilities 1,953.85 847.03 72.83

2 | Non-financial liabilities
(@) | Current tax liabilities ) } 18.11
(b) | Provisions 37.06 18.23 3.87
(c) | Other non-financial liabilities 24,34 25.20 15.66

3 | Equity
(a) | Equity and Share Capital 2 642.45 1,780.39 1,113.45
(b) | Other Equity 2,449.10 885.39 14.36

Total Liabilities and Equity 26.619.40 19.309.01 7325.58
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Profit and Loss for the financial years ended 31 March 2020, 315 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 prepared
in accordance with IND-AS (STANDALONE)

(m-1v)

As at
Particulars As at 31st March, 2020 ?l::arch As at 31 March 2018
2019
Revenue from operations
(i) Interest Income 5,101.87 2,974.20 807.37
. Fees and commission
0| jhcome 192.36 256.52 155.11
Net gain on fair value
(iii) changes 454.02 105.80 2.09
Total Revenue from
(1) operations 5,748.25 3,336.52 964.56
(n) Other Income 72.83 61.01 6.49
() Total Income (I+11) 5,821.08 3,397.54 971.05
Expenses
(i) Finance Costs 177575 1,184.55 345.12
Net loss on derecognition
. of financial instruments
(i) under amortised cost 129.09 80.82 123.14
category
Impairment on financial
()| instruments 466.11 160.16 6.89
. Employee Benefits
(M| Expenses 1,357.22 849.47 279.81
Depreciation, amortization
™| and impairment 73.48 54.66 13.08
(vi) Other expenses 58511 343.57 122.90
(Iv) Total Expenses (1V) 4,386.76 2,673.23 877.17
Profit / (Loss) before
(V) exceptional items and tax 1,434.32 22431 93.88
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(V1) Exceptional Items 31.02 - :

Profit/(loss) before tax

(v (V+VI1) 1,403.30 724.31

93.88

(Vi) | Tax Expense:

(1) Current Tax 336.15 199.28 37.75

(2) Deferred Tax 701 7.07 -4.81

(3) Current tax expense
relating to prior years 1.12 -

Total Tax Expense 330.26 192.21 32.94

Profit / (loss) for the period

(I1X) K/(TT\/lclcl))ntmumg operations 1,073.04 532.09 60.94

Profit / (loss) from
(X) . . . .
discontinued operations - -

(X1) Tax Expense of i
discontinued operations - -

Profit / (loss) from
(x1) discontinued operations -
(After tax) (X-XI)

(X) Profit/(loss) for the period 1,073.04 £32.09 60.94

Other Comprehensive

(x1) Income

A (i) Items that will not be

reclassified to profit or loss
(specify items and -6.70 -6.15
amounts)

-0.27

(ii) Income tax relating to
items t'h'at will not 'be 169 1.79 0.08
reclassified to profit or loss

Subtotal (A) 5.01 4.36 -0.19

B (i) Items that will be
reclassified to profit or loss -
(specify items amounts)
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(ii) Income tax relating to
items that will be
reclassified to profit or loss

Subtotal (B)

Other Comprehensive
Income (A+B)

-5.01

-4.36

-0.19

Total Comprehensive

(xi) Income for the period

1,068.02

527.73

60.75

Earnings Per Share (Face

(xtm) Value Rs. 10 each)

Basic

5.47

3.86

0.75

Diluted

5.47

3.86

0.75

Cash Flow Statement for the financial years ended 31 March 2020, 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018
prepared in accordance with Ind-AS (STANDALONE)

Particulars

Year ended March 31,
2020

Year ended March 31,
2019

Year ended March 31,
2018

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax

1,403.30

724.31

93.88

Adjustments for:

Depreciation, amortisation and
impairment

73.48

54.66

13.08

Impairment on financial instruments

466.11

160.16

-6.89

(Profit)/Loss on sale of assets

Net (Gain)/Loss on fair value
changes - unrealised

Net (Gain)/Loss on fair value
changes - realised

Net Gain / (loss) on derecognition of
financial instruments under
amortised cost

-451.59

104.69

-2.09

Employee Benefit expenses - share
based

Employee benefit expenses - others

13.82

10.00

211

Interest on loans

-62.14

-25.61

-18.60

Interest on deposits with Banks
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Particulars

Year ended March 31,

2020

Year ended March 31,

2019

Year ended March 31,

2018

Interest on Investments

Finance cost

Loss on buy back of commercial
paper (net)

Loss on buy back of debentures (net)

Premium paid on early redemption
of debentures

Income received on loans

Interest received on deposits with
Banks

Income received on Investments

-67.57

-59.55

-5.32

Finance cost paid

Bad Debts Written Off

129.09

80.82

123.14

Operating profit before working
capital changes

1,504.49

840.09

199.31

Decrease / (Increase) in financial and
non financial assets

-5,602.47

11,519.57

-5,391.08

Increase in financial and non
financial liabilities

1,027.16

1,001.32

304.54

Cash generated from operations

-3,070.81

-9,678.16

4,887.22

Taxes paid

-321.66

-236.89

-16.93

Net cash from operating activities

3,392.47

9,915.06

4,904.16

Loans (disbursed) / repaid (net)

-26.57

-12.48

- 10.22

Net cash (used in)/from operating
activities (A)

3,419.04

9,927.54

4,914.37

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment and other intangible
assets

-51.47

117.61

-36.50

Sale of property, plant and
equipment and other intangible
assets

7.72

0.03

0.03

Investments in subsidiaries

Purchase of Investment properties

Purchase of Investments

32,951.17

19,312.56

-1,250.63

Proceeds from sale/maturity of
Investments

33,029.32

19,371.19

1,255.48

Deposits placed with Banks

177.56
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Particulars

Year ended March 31,

2020

Year ended March 31,

2019

Year ended March 31,

2018

-2,045.85

105.06

Interest Received

48.81

17.61

14.18

Dividend Received

0.15

0.42

0.00

Net cash used in investing activities

(B)

1,962.50

-145.98

160.12

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of equity share
capital

1,500.00

1,000.00

500.00

Dividend paid (including dividend
distribution tax)

-142.25

Proceeds towards Borrowings

15,472.72

17,525.05

6,397.23

Repayment of Borrowings

11,639.08

8,149.72

-2,205.02

Net cash (used in)/from financing
activities (C)

5,191.38

10,375.33

4,692.21

Net (Decrease) / Increase in cash
and cash equivalents (A+B +C)

190.16

301.81

-62.05

Add : Opening Cash and cash
equivalents as at the beginning of
the year

431.61

129.80

191.85

Cash and cash equivalents as at the
end of the year

241.45

431.61

129.80
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A SUMMARY OF THE FINANCIAL POSITION AND CASH FLOW STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(STANDALONE):

Statement of Reformatted Unconsolidated Assets and Liabilities (IGAAP)

(Rs. in Million)

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Particulars 2018 2017
| EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholders' funds
(a) Share Capital 1,113.45 613.45
(b) Reserve and Surplus 55.92 30.09
Sub-Total 1,169.36 643.53
(2) Share application money pending allotment
(3) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long-term borrowings 1,956.41 682.67
(b) Other Long-term liabilities
(c) Long-term provisions 100.98 23.56
Sub-Total 2,057.40 706.23
(4) Current Liabilities
1(a) Short-term borrowings 1,376.60 0.00
(b) Trade payables

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises;
(c) Other current liabilities
-Current maturities of long term borrowings 2,129.38 783.64
-Others 603.17 38.56
(d) Short-term provisions 38.78 1.45
Sub-Total 4,178.56 905.14
TOTAL 7,405.32 2,254.90
Il ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Fixed assets
(i) Tangible assets 44.50 21.32
(ii) Intangible assets 0.93 0.73
(iii) Capital work-in-progress
Sub-Total 45.43 22.04
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(b) Non-current investments 10.50 10.50
(c) Deferred tax assets (Net) 24.66 4.79
(d) Long-term loans & advances

-Loans 2,113.38 369.17

-Others
(e) Other non-current assets 335.82 158.67
Sub-Total 2,484.37 543.12
(2) Current assets
(a) Current investments
(b) Inventories
(c) Trade receivables 37.92 9.85
(d) Cash and cash equivalents 459.59 561.48
(e) Short-term loans & advances

-Loans 4,226.70 1,067.31

-Others 60.31 4.20
(f) Other current assets 91.00 46.89
Sub total 4,875.52 1,689.74
TOTAL 7,405.32 2,254.90

Statement of Reformatted Unconsolidated Profit & Losses (IGAAP)
(Rs. in Million)

Particulars As at March 31, 2018 | As at March 31, 2017
1. REVENUE
a. Revenue from operations 959.81 320.38
b. Other Income 8.03 8.06
Total Revenue (a + b) 967.83 328.45
2. EXPENSES
a. Employee benefit expenses 280.08 112.17
b. Finance cost 313.02 146.31
c. Depreciation & amortisation expenses 13.08 4.58
d. Other expenses 122.73 48.63
e. Provisions & write off 195.12 10.52
Total Expenses 924.04 322.21
3. Profit before tax (1 - 2) 43.80 6.23
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4. Tax expenses :

Current Tax 36.50 1.45
Deferred tax -19.88 -1.96
MAT credit availed and utilised 1.34 -1.34
Total tax expense 17.97 -1.86
5. Profit for the Year (3 - 4) 25.83 8.09

6. Earnings Per Share (Face Value Rs. 10 each)
- Basic 0.32 0.59
- Diluted 0.32 0.59

Statement of Reformatted Unconsolidated Cash Flows (IGAAP)

(Rs. in Million)
Particulars 2017-2018 2016-2017
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 43.80 6.23
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 13.08 458
Dividend on Mutual funds 6.95
Provision for doubtful loans
Provision against standard assets 49.05 756
Provision for diminution in value of investments
Provision for contingencies
Interest on Fixed deposits with Banks 18.60 13.08
Interest Expense
Bad Debts Written Off 120.68 596
Interest on Income Tax 151 -
Income from financing activities
(Profit) / Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets [net] 0.09
Profit on Sale of Investments [net] 4.85
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(Profit) / Loss on Buy back of Commercial Paper
[net]

(Profit) / Loss on Buy back of Debentures [net]

Premium paid on early redemption of Debentures

Interest received on Fixed deposits with Banks

Interest paid

Income received from financing activities

Gratuity & leave enchasment

Operating profit before working capital changes

204.65

1.39

Decrease / (Increase) in Current and Non-Current
Assets

5,363.19

822.52

Increase / (Decrease) in Current and Non-Current
Liabilities

394.38

61.87

Cash generated from operations

4,764.15

759.25

Taxes paid

16.93

7.87

Net cash from operating activities

4,781.09

767.12

Loans (disbursed) / repaid [net]

Net cash (used in)/from operating activities (A)

4,781.09

767.12

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Fixed Assets

36.50

16.43

Sale of Fixed Assets

0.03

0.59

Divdend from Mutual Funds

6.95

Investments in Subsidiaries

Short Term Capital Gain

4.85

Interest on Fixed Deposits

18.60

13.08

Purchase of Investments

Proceeds from sale/maturity of Investments

Fixed deposits placed

Fixed deposits matured

Net cash used in investing activities (B)

13.01

4.19

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
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Proceeds from Issue of Preference Share capital

Share Issue Expenses

Redemption of Preference Share Capital

Proceeds from Issue of Equity Share Capital

500.00

500.00

Dividend paid (including dividend distribution tax)

1.94

Proceeds towards Long-term borrowings

6,397.23

1,361.29

Repayment of Long-term borrowings

2,205.02

665.60

Proceeds towards Short-term borrowings

Repayment of Short-term borrowings

Net cash from financing activities (C)

4,692.21

1,193.74

Net (Decrease) / Increase in cash and cash
equivalents (A+B+C)

101.90

430.82

Add : Opening Cash and cash equivalents as at
the beginning of the year

561.48

130.67

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the
year

459.59

561.48

Add : Earmarked balances with banks

Add : Fixed deposits considered in Investing
activities

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the
year

459.59

561.48

A SUMMARY OF THE FINANCIAL POSITION AND CASH FLOW STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(CONSOLIDATED):

Reformatted Summary Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities in

accordance with IGAAP

(Rs. in Million)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2018| As at March 31, 2017

| EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(1) Shareholders' funds

(a) Share Capital 1,113.45 613.45
(b) Reserve and Surplus 56.35 32.59
Sub-Total 1,169.80 646.03

(2) Share application money pending allotment
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(3) Non-Current Liabilities

(a) Long-term borrowings 1,956.41 682.67
(b) Other Long-term liabilities
(c) Long-term provisions 101.13 23.56
Sub-Total 2,057.55 706.23
(4) Current Liabilities
1(a) Short-term borrowings 1,376.60 0.00
(b) Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises;
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 30.63 81.49
enterprises and small enterprises

(c) Other current liabilities
-Current maturities of long term borrowings 2,129.38 783.64
-Others 603.21 38.47
(d) Short-term provisions 38.78 3.40
Sub-Total 4,178.59 906.99
TOTAL 7,405.94 2,259.26
Il ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Fixed assets
(i) Tangible assets 44.50 21.32
(ii) Intangible assets 0.93 0.73
(iii) Capital work-in-progress
Sub-Total 45.43 22.04
(b) Non-current investments 0.50 0.50
(c) Deferred tax assets (Net) 24.66 4.79
(d) Long-term loans & advances

-Loans 2,113.38 369.17
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-Others
(e) Other non-current assets 336.05 160.60
Sub-Total 2,474.59 535.05
(2) Current assets
(a) Current investments 10.22 9.75
(b) Inventories
(c) Trade receivables 37.92 12.31
(d) Cash and cash equivalents 459.77 561.70
(e) Short-term loans & advances

-Loans 4,226.70 1,067.31

-Others 60.31 4.20
(f) Other current assets 91.00, 46.90
Sub total 4,885.92 1,702.17
TOTAL 7,405.94 2,259.26

Reformatted Summary Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (IGAAP) (Rs. in Million)

Particulars 2017-18 | 2016-17

1. REVENUE

a. Revenue from operations 959.81 320.38

b. Other Income 8.50 10.42

Total Revenue (a + b) 968.30 330.80

2. EXPENSES

a. Employee benefit expenses 280.08 112.17

b. Finance cost 313.02 146.31

c. Depreciation & amortisation expenses 13.08 4.58

d. Other expenses 122.90 50.45

e. Provisions & write off 197.58 10.52

Total Expenses 926.67 324.03

3. Profit before tax (1 - 2) 41.63 6.77
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4. Tax expenses :

Current Tax 36.50 1.45
Deferred tax -19.88 -1.96
MAT credit availed and utilised 1.34 -1.34
Taxes for earlier years -0.10 0.00
Total tax expense 17.87 -1.86
5. Profit for the Year (3 - 4) 23.76 8.63

6. Earnings Per Share (Face Value Rs. 10 each)

- Basic 0.29 0.62

- Diluted 0.29 0.62

REFORMATTED SUMMARY CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (IGAAP) (Rs. in Million)

Particulars 2017-2018 2016-2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax 41.63 6.77

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 13.08 458

Dividend on Mutual funds 0.47 796

Provision for doubtful loans

Provision against standard assets 4905 756

Provision for diminution in value of investments

Provision for contingencies

Interest on Fixed deposits with Banks 18.60 13.08

Interest Expense

Bad Debts Written Off 123.14 2.96

Interest on Income Tax -
1.51

Income from financing activities

(Profit) / Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets [net]

0.09
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Profit on Sale of Investments [net]

4.85

(Profit) / Loss on Buy back of Commercial Paper
[net]

(Profit) / Loss on Buy back of Debentures [net]

Premium paid on early redemption of Debentures

Interest received on Fixed deposits with Banks

Interest paid

Income received from financing activities

Gratuity & leave enchasment

Operating profit before working capital changes

204.48

1.62

Decrease / (Increase) in Current and Non-Current
Assets

5,363.18

812.94

Increase / (Decrease) in Current and Non-Current
Liabilities

394.51

61.84

Cash generated from operations

4,764.19

749.48

Taxes paid

53.43

7.98

Net cash from operating activities

4,817.63

757.46

Loans (disbursed) / repaid [net]

Net cash (used in)/from operating activities (A)

4,817.63

757.46

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Fixed Assets

36.50

16.43

Sale of Fixed Assets

0.03

0.59

Divdend from Mutual Funds

0.47

7.26

Investments in Subsidiaries

Short Term Capital Gain

4.85

Interest on Fixed Deposits

18.60

13.08

Investment in Mutual Funds

0.47

9.75

Proceeds from sale/maturity of Investments

Fixed deposits placed

Fixed deposits matured

Net cash used in investing activities (B)

13.01

5.24
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CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Issue of Preference Share capital

Share Issue Expenses

Redemption of Preference Share Capital

Proceeds from Issue of Equity Share Capital

500.00

500.00

Dividend paid (including dividend distribution tax)

1.94

Proceeds towards Long-term borrowings

6,397.23

1,361.29

Repayment of Long-term borrowings

2,205.02

665.60

Proceeds towards Short-term borrowings

Repayment of Short-term borrowings

Net cash from financing activities (C)

4,692.21

1,193.74

Net (Decrease) / Increase in cash and cash
equivalents (A+B +C)

138.44

431.03

Add : Opening Cash and cash equivalents as at the
beginning of the year

561.70

130.67

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the
year

423.26

561.70

Add : Earmarked balances with banks

Add : Fixed deposits considered in Investing
activities

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the
year

423.26

561.70




SECTION V — DISCLOSURES ON EXISTING FINANCIAL INDEBTEDNESS OF THE

samasta

COMPANY

Details of Borrowings as on January 31, 2021:

AsonJanuary 31,2021, the company had an outstanding borrowing of secured facilities

amounting to Rs 6,050.00 million and an unsecured borrowing of Rs. 1050.00 million

A summary of all the outstanding secured as well as unsecured borrowing for the

company has been tabulate below:

Secured NCD facilities as on January 31, 2021.

Instrument Name

Outstanding

UNLISTED, TRANSFERABLE,

o SR Date of Maturity Cou.pon /|
e Allotment Date Yield | Tenor Ratings
2021 in Rs
million

SECURED, RATED, LISTED,
ITAXABLE, SENIOR, m CRISIL PP-
REDEEMABLE, NON- 140.00 13-07-2018 [14-03-2022 |8.73% months MLD
CONVERTIBLE A+r/Negative
DEBENTURES
SECURED, RATED, LISTED,
ITAXABLE, SENIOR, 39 CRISIL PP-
REDEEMABLE, NON- 1110.00 13-07-2018 [19-10-2021 [9.96% Months MLD
CONVERTIBLE e A+r/Negative)
DEBENTURES
SECURED, RATED, LISTED,
ITAXABLE, SENIOR, 10 CRISIL PP-
REDEEMABLE, NON- 1.000.00 19-06-2018 [19-10-2021 [9.75% Months MLD
CONVERTIBLE e A+r/Negative)
DEBENTURES
SECURED, RATED, LISTED,
ITAXABLE, SENIOR, 39 CRISIL PP-
REDEEMABLE, NON- 00,00 03-07-2018 |19-10-2021 [9.87% Months MLD .
CONVERTIBLE A+r/Negative
DEBENTURES
SECURED, RATED, LISTED,
ITAXABLE, SENIOR, 39 CRISIL PP-
REDEEMABLE, NON- 10-07-2018 [19-10-2021 [9.93% MLD

250.00 Months .
CONVERTIBLE A+r/Negative
DEBENTURES

72 ICRA A

SECURED, RATED, 0,00 04-07-2016 [30-06-2022 [15.25% | . (Stable)
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REDEEMABLE, NON-
CONVERTIBLE
DEBENTURES

SECURED, RATED, LISTED,
[TRANSFERABLE,

CONVERTIBLE
DEBENTURES

36 CRISIL

REDEEMABLE, NON- 05-06-2020 [05-06-2023 [11.50% .
CONVERTIBLE 200.00 months |A+/Negative
DEBENTURES
SECURED, RATED, LISTED,
[TRANSFERABLE, 36 CRISIL
REDEEMABLE, NON- 05-06-2020 [05-06-2023 [11.50% .
CONVERTIBLE 150.00 months |A+/Negative
DEBENTURES
SECURED, RATED, LISTED,
[TRANSFERABLE, 36 CRISIL
REDEEMABLE, NON- 18-06-2020 [05-06-2023 |11.50% .
“ONVERTIBLE 250.00 ° |months A+/Negative
DEBENTURES
SECURED, RATED, LISTED,
[TRANSFERABLE, 36 CRISIL
REDEEMABLE, NON- 26-06-2020 [21-04-2023 |11.50% .
CONVERTIBLE 150.00 ° |months A+/Negative
DEBENTURES
SECURED, RATED, LISTED,
[TRANSFERABLE, 36 CRISIL
REDEEMABLE, NON- 26-06-2020 [21-04-2023 |11.50%
CONVERTIBLE’ 1,000.00 ° Imonths A+/Negative
DEBENTURES
SECURED, RATED, LISTED,
[TRANSFERABLE, 36 CRISIL
REDEEMABLE, NON- 10-07-2020 |10-07-2023 |11.50%
CONVERTIBLE’ 250.00 ° |months A+/Negative
DEBENTURES
SECURED, RATED, LISTED,
[TRANSFERABLE, 18 CRISIL
REDEEMABLE, NON- 11-08-2020 (11-02-2022 |10.009

! 1,000.00 % months |A+/Negative

Security: Mostof the above Debentures/NCDs have been secured by way of first paripassu

charge on the book debts/receivables other than the assets that have been specifically

charged by our Company.




Unsecured NCD facilities as on January 31, 2021

microfinance

UNSECURED,
SUBORDINATED, RATED,
ITRANSFERABLE,
REDEEMABLE, NON
CONVERTIBLE
DEBENTURES

50.00

29-06-2016

15-04-2022

16.90%

72 ICRA A
(Stable)

Months

UNSECURED,
SUBORDINATED, RATED,
TRANSFERABLE,
REDEEMABLE, NON-

CONVERTIBLE
DEBENTURES

890.00

20-07-2018

19-04-2024

10.24%

69 CRISIL PP-

Months [MLD

A+r/Negative

UNSECURED,
SUBORDINATED, RATED,
TRANSFERABLE,
REDEEMABLE, NON
CONVERTIBLE
DEBENTURES

110.00

20-07-2018

19-04-2024

9.05%

69 CRISIL PP-

Months [MLD

A+r/Negative

Details of Term Loan Borrowings & Cash Credit Facilities

Axis Bank Limited Term Loan 500.00 71.43 | 28-02-2021 Book Debts and Cash
Collateral

Axis Bank Limited Term Loan 250.00 125.00 | 24-01-2022 Book Debts and Cash
Collateral

Axis Bank Limited Term Loan 250.00 7813 | 11-03-2022 Book Debts and Cash
Collateral

Axis Bank Limited Term Loan 250.00 7813 | 11-03-2022 Book Debts and Cash
Collateral

Bank of Maharashtra Term Loan 100.00 30.54 | 31-03-2022 | Dok Debtsand Cash
Collateral

Bandhan Bank Limited Termloan |  1,000.00 142.86 | 18032021 | BO°K Debtsand Cash
Collateral

Bandhan Bank Limited Term Loan 1,000.00 714.29 28-02-2022 Book Debts




Bajaj Finance Limited
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Term Loan

250.00

114.58

30-12-2021

Book Debts and Cash

Collateral
CSB Bank Term Loan 500.00 500.00 29-01-2024 Book Debts
Dhanlakshmi Bank Ltd. Term Loan 300.00 23438 | 21-02-2023 Book Debts and Cash
Collateral
Hero FinCorp Ltd Term Loan 250.00 66.17 | 03-07-2021 Book Debts
Hero FinCorp Ltd Term Loan 200.00 148.97 | 03-05-2022 Book Debts
Hinduja Leyland Finance Term Loan 350.00 119.95 | 27-12-2021 Book Debts
Limited
Hinduja Leyland Finance Term Loan 100.00 48.79 | 28-05-2022 Book Debts
Limited
:\IDEFVS First Bank Limited- Term Loan 1,450.00 1,208.39 | 28-09-2022 Book Debts
IDFC First Bank Limited Term Loan 1,500.00 262.79 28-02-2021 Book Debts
ICICI Bank Ltd Term Loan 1,000.00 590.91 | 10-03-2022 | D00k Debtsand Cash
Collateral
ICICI Bank Ltd Term Loan 250.00 129.55 | 10-08-2022 |  BookDebtsand Cash
Collateral
ICICI Bank Ltd Term Loan 250.00 95.45 | 10-10-2022 Book Debts and Cash
Collateral
Indian Bank Term Loan 500.00 375.75 | 17-03-2023 Book Debts and Cash
Collateral
Indian Bank Term Loan 500.00 416.63 45095 Book Debts and Cash
Collateral
Indian Bank Term Loan 500.00 458.33 | 03-09-2023 Book Debts and Cash
Collateral
Indian Bank Term Loan 500.00 166.47 | 31-12-2021 Book Debts and Cash
Collateral
Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd Term Loan 0.02 05-02-2021 Nil
Lakshmi Vilas Bank Limited Term Loan 250.00 62.52 30-04-2021 Book Debts
Lakshmi Vilas Bank Limited | Term Loan 50.00 8.34 | 30-09-2021 Book Debts and Cash
Collateral
National Bank for
Agriculture and Rural Term Loan 1,500.00 1,050.00 45688 Book Debts
Development
National Bank for
Agriculture and Rural Term Loan 1,300.00 975.00 | 30-04-2022 Book Debts and Cash
Collateral
Development
Nabkisan Finance Limited Term Loan 220.00 160.00 01-11-2022 Book Debts
Nabsamrudhi Finance Ltd Term Loan 200.00 75.00 31-01-2022 Book Debts
Oriental Bank of Term Loan 350.00 533.33 30-11-2022 Book Debts and Cash
Commerce Collateral
Oriental Bank of Term Loan 250.00 98.38 30-04-2022 Book Debts and Cash
Commerce Collateral
State Bank (Mauritius) Ltd Term Loan 160.00 80.00 13-01-2022 Book Debts
State Bank (Mauritius) Ltd Term Loan 200.00 195.00 | 03-11-2022 Book Debts
Small Industries ' Term Loan 750.00 375.00 10-04-2021 Book Debts and Cash
Development Bank of India Collateral
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Book Debts and Cash

Development Bank of India Term Loan >00.00 366.67 10-11-2022 Collateral
Small Industries . Term Loan 1,250.00 468.75 | 10-04-2021 Book Debts and Cash
Development Bank of India Collateral
South Indian Bank Term Loan 60.00 43.33 23-04-2023 Book Debts and Cash
Collateral
South Indian Bank Term Loan 40.00 28.35 23-04-2023 Book Debts and Cash
Collateral
Standard Chartered Bank Term Loan 125.00 28-04-2021 Book Debts
Standard Chartered Bank Term Loan 50.00 16-02-2021 Book Debts
Standard Chartered Bank Term Loan 950.00 62.50 16-02-2021 Book Debts
Standard Chartered Bank Term Loan ' 250.00 20-11-2021 Book Debts
Standard Chartered Bank Term Loan 100.00 08-12-2021 Book Debts
Standard Chartered Bank Term Loan 125.00 08-12-2021 Book Debts
State Bank of India Term Loan 1,000.00 699.98 | 20-02-2023 Book Debts and Cash
Collateral
State Bank of India Term Loan 500.00 57.80 31-05-2021 Book Debts
State Bank of India Term Loan 3,000.00 3,000.00 | 28-10-2023 Book Debts and Cash
Collateral
UCO Bank Term Loan 50.00 158 | 31-05-2021 Book Debts and Cash
Collateral
Union Bank Term Loan 250.00 146.69 | 31-05-2022 Book Debts and Cash
Collateral
Union Bank Term Loan 200.00 3536 | 28-02-2021 Book Debts and Cash
Collateral
Woori Bank Term Loan 400.00 20000 | 29-09-2022 Book Debts and Cash
Collateral
Woori Bank Term Loan 400.00 100.00 | 20-07-2021 Book Debts and Cash
Collateral
Woori Bank Term Loan 200.00 3333 | 30-06-2021 Book Debts and Cash
Collateral
YES Bank Ltd. Term Loan 5208 | 28-03-2021 Book Debts and Cash
Collateral
YES Bank Ltd. Term Loan 31.25 | 29-03-2021 Book Ezﬁ;i:rr;? Cash
750.00
YES Bank Ltd. Term Loan 31.67 | 28-06-2021 Book Debts and Cash
Collateral
YES Bank Ltd. Term Loan 4813 | 21-05-2021 Book Debts and Cash
Collateral
ICICI Bank Ltd Overdraft 180.00 179.00 06-03-2021 Cash Collateral
ICICI Bank Ltd Overdraft 180.00 179.90 01-04-2021 Cash Collateral

16,106.42
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Details of Commercial PaperBorrowings

Nil

Details of Top 10 Debenture Holders as on January 31, 2021

Sr.
Name Total Value Outstanding in
No. Rs. (Million)

1. .

State Bank of India 1000
2.

Bank of Maharashtra 650
3. . .

Union Bank of India 400
4, .

Indian Bank 250
5. .

Bank of India 250
6. . .

Punjab National Bank 250
7.

Canara Bank 200
8.

Raghav Bahl 200
9. . . -

Balkrishna Industries Limited 150
1( . . .

Shubham Goldiee Masale Private Limited 150

Note: Top 10 holders’ (in value terms, on cumulative basis for all outstanding debentures issues).

Details of the amount of corporate guarantee issued by the Issuer along with name of the
counterparty (like name of the subsidiary, JV entity, group company, etc.) on behalf of whom
it has been issued.

Not Applicable

Details of any outstanding borrowings taken/ debt securities issued where taken / issued (i)
for consideration other than cash, whether in whole or part, (ii) at a premium or discount, or
(iii) in pursuance of an option:

The Company confirms that currently it does not have any outstanding borrowing taken or
currently it has not issued debt securities for consideration other than cash, whether in
whole or in part; at a premium or discount; or in pursuance of an option.

Details of Rest of the borrowing (if any including hybrid debt like FCCB, Optionally Convertible
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Debentures / Preference Shares) as on January 31, 2021:
NIL

Details of all default/s and/or delay in payments of interest and principal of any kind of term
loans, debt securities and other financial indebtedness including corporate guarantee issued
by the Company, in the past 5 years:

NIL

Any material event/ development or change having implications on the financials/credit
quality (e.g. any material regulatory proceedings against the Issuer/promoters, tax litigations
resulting in material liabilities, corporate restructuring event etc) at the time of issue which
may affect the issue or the investor’s decision to invest / continue to invest in the debt
securities.

To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Company, save and except mentioned hereunder,
there has been no material event/ development or change having implications on the business
of the Issuer at the time of Issue which may affect the Issue or investor’s decision to invest or

continue to invest in the Issue.

If the security is backed by a guarantee or letter of comfort or any other document / letter with
similar intent, a copy of the same shall be disclosed. In case such document does not contain
detailed payment structure (procedure of invocation of guarantee and receipt of payment by
the investor along with timelines), the same shall be disclosed in the offer document

Nil
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SECTION VI - ISSUE RELATED INFORMATION

In terms of this Disclosure Document, the Issuer intends to raise an amount of Rs. 30,00,00,000 (Rupees
Thirty Crores only) of Rated, Listed, Senior, Secured, Redeemable, Taxable, Principal Protected,Market
Linked, Non-Convertible Debentures (“NCDs” or “Debentures”) of face value Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten
Lakhs ) each By Samasta Microfinance Limited (The “Issuer”).through Private Placement and list such
Debentures in the WDM segment of BSE.

The Tenor for this Issue is

Series 1— 15 months from the date of allotment
Series 2 — 22 months from the date of allotment
Security

Security by way of first ranking exclusive charge over identified Receivables of the Company charged by
way of hypothecation in favour of the Debenture Trustee on behalf of and for the benefit of the Debenture
Holders. The Company has entered into a debenture trust deed with the Trustee dated June 22, 2020 for
Issuers debenture issue programme aggregating upto an amount of Rs. 400,00,00,000 (Rupees Four
Hundred Crores Only), creating charge in favour of the Debenture Trustee and setting out the terms and
conditions on which the Debenture Trustee shall hold such security. The security offered for the Debentures
issued herein forms part of the Issuer’s debenture issue programme aggregating upto Rs. 400,00,00,000
(Rupees One Hundred Crores only) and shall rank pari passu, inter se without any preference or priority of
one over other debentures issued under the same programme.

Credit Rating

The Issuer has received a rating of “CRISIL PPMLD A+ r /Negative” for an amount of Rs. 30,00,00,000 (Rupees
Thirty Crores) under the long term rating programme for an aggregate amount of Rs. 200,00,00,000 (Rupees
Two hundred Crores only) by the credit rating letter dated February 26,2021 by CRISIL Ratings Limited. The
abovementioned credit rating outlook revised from Stable to Outlook and rating re-affirmed. The credit
rating letter has been annexed hereto as ‘Annexure C’.

Details of utilization of the issue proceeds

The funds raised through this Issue, after meeting the expenditures of and related to the Issue, will be used
for various financing activities including onward lending and for the business operations including the
general Business purposes and working capital requirements.

Project cost and means of financing, in case of funding of new projects:
Not applicable
Other details of the Issue:

Undertaking to use a common form of transfer



samasta

The Debentures will be issued in dematerialized form only and there would be no physical holding. The
normal procedure followed for transfer of securities held in dematerialized form shall be followed for
transfer of these debentures held in electronic form. The seller should give delivery instructions containing
details of the buyer’s DP account to his depository participant. The Issuer undertakes that there will be a
common transfer form / procedure for transfer of debentures.

The company states that the assets on which charge is created are freefrom any encumbrances and in cases
where the assets are already charged to secure a debt, the permission or consent to create a second or pari-
passu charge on the assets of the issuer has been obtained from the earlier creditor.

A summary of term sheet including brief information pertaining to the Issue is attached as ‘Annexure A’.

Issue Procedure
Listing

The Debentures of the Company are proposed to be listed on the Wholesale Debt Market (WDM) segment
of the BSE. The Issuer Confirms that the Debentures would be listed within 20 (twenty) days from the
Deemed Date of Allotment The Company shall comply with the requirements of the listing agreement to the
extent applicable to it on a continuous basis.

Minimum Subscription

As the current issue of Debentures is being made on a private placement basis, the requirement of minimum
subscription shall not be applicable and therefore the Company shall not be liable to refund the issue
subscription(s)/ proceed(s) in the event of the total issue collection falling short of issue size or certain
percentage of issue size.

Date of Allotment

All benefits relating to the Debentures will be available to the investors from the Date of Allotment. The
actual allotment of Debentures may take place on a date other than the Deemed Date of Allotment. The
Debentures shall be allotted in accordance with the requirements of section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Underwriting

The present Issue of Debentures on private placement basis has not been underwritten and no arrangement
has been made for the same.

Recovery Expense Fund
The company has created a recovery expense fund in the manner as specified by SEBI from time to time.
Interest on Application Money

Our Company shall pay interest on application money on the amount allotted, subject to deduction of
income tax under the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended, as applicable, to any Applicant
to whom NCDs are allotted pursuant to the Issue from the date of realization of the cheque (s)/demand
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draft(s) whichever is later up to one day prior to the Deemed Date of Allotment, at applicable coupon rate
per annum.

Tax Deduction at Source

Tax as applicable under the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961, or any other applicable statutory
modification or re-enactments thereof will be deducted at source at the time of payment of interest or
principal amount.

Transfer of Debentures

Debentures shall be transferred subject to and in accordance with the rules/ procedures as prescribed by
the NSDL/ CDSL/ Depository Participant of the transferor/ transferee and any other applicable laws and rules
notified in respect thereof. The normal procedure followed for transfer of securities held in dematerialized
form shall be followed for transfer of these Debentures held in electronic form. The seller should give
delivery instructions containing details of the buyer's DP account to his depository participant.

Transfer of Debentures to and from NRIs/ OCBs, in case they seek to hold the Debentures and are eligible to
do so, will be governed by the then prevailing guidelines of RBI. The transferee(s) and transferor should take
the requisite approvals, including from RBI, as applicable and should ensure that the transfer formalities are
completed prior to the Record Date. In the absence of the same, interest will be paid/ redemption will be
made to the person, whose name appears in the records of the Depository. In such cases, claims, if any, by
the transferee(s) would need to be settled with the transferor(s) and not with the company.

APPLICATION PROCESS
Who can apply

The following categories of investors, when specifically approached, are eligible to apply for this private
placement of Debentures by submitting all the relevant documents along with the application form.
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1. Companies and Bodies Corporate (incorporated in India) / Companies / Financial institutions /
NBFCs / Statutory Corporations
including Public Sector Undertakings

Commercial Banks
3.

Resident Individuals (including Partnership Firms, and HUF)
4.

Regional Rural Banks
5.

Insurance Companies
6.

Mutual Funds/ Alternative Investment Fund (AIF)
7.

Any other investors authorized/ permitted to invest in these Debentures
In each case, solely in India.

Only the persons who are specifically addressed through direct communication by or on behalf of the
Company are eligible to apply for the Debentures. An application made by any other person will be deemed
as an invalid application and rejected.

Note: Each of eligible investor(s) is required to check and comply with extant rules/regulations/guidelines
etc governing or regulating their investments as issued by their respective regulatory authorities and the
Company is not in any way, directly or indirectly responsible for any statutory or regulatory breaches by
any investor, neither is the Company required to check or confirm the same.

Application by Mutual Funds

No mutual fund scheme shall invest more than 15% of its NAV in debt instruments issued by a single
company which are rated not below investment grade by a credit rating agency authorised to carry out
such activity. Such investment limit may be extended to 20% of the NAV of the scheme with the prior
approval of the Board of Trustees and the Board of Asset Management Company.
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A separate application can be made in respect of each scheme of an Indian mutual fund registered with
SEBI and such applications shall not be treated as multiple applications. Applications made by the AMCs or
custodians of a Mutual Fund shall clearly indicate the name of the concerned scheme for which application
is being made. In case of Applications made by Mutual Fund registered with SEBI, a certified copy of their
SEBI registration certificate must be submitted with the Application Form. The applications must be also
accompanied by certified true copies of (i) SEBI Registration Certificate and trust deed (ii) resolution
authorising investment and containing operating instructions and (iii) specimen signatures of authorized
signatories. Failing this, our Company reserves the right to accept or reject any Applications for Allotment
of the Debentures in physical form in whole or in part, in either case, without assigning any reason therefor.

Applications under Power of Attorney

A certified true copy of the Memorandum of Association &/ Power of Attorney or the relevant authority as
the case may be along with the names and specimen signature(s) of all the authorized signatories and the
tax exemption certificate/ document, if any, must be lodged along with the submission of the completed
Application Form. Further modifications/ additions in the power of attorney or authority should be notified
to the Company or to its Registrars or to such other person(s) at such other address(es) as may be specified
by the Company from time to time through a suitable communication.

Application by a Portfolio Manager registered with SEBI

The application should be accompanied by certified true copies of (i) resolution of the Board of Directors,
authorizing investment and containing operating instructions, and with all particulars relating to the
investment in these Debentures, and the acceptance of the terms of these Debentures along with the
authorized signatory list; and (ii) certified copy of registration certificate issued by the SEBI to undertake
Portfolio Management activities

Documents to be provided by investors

Investors need to submit the following documentation, along with the application form, as applicable.

— Memorandum and Articles of Association / Documents governing its constitution
— Resolution authorizing investment
— Certified True Copy of the Power of Attorney

— Form 15 AA for investors seeking exemption from Tax Deduction at Source from interest on the
application money.

— Specimen signatures of the authorized signatories duly certified by an appropriate authority
— A copy of the Permanent Account Number and registration certificate

— SEBI registration certificate (for Mutual Funds).

Permanent Account Number

All Applicants should mention their Permanent Account Number allotted under Income Tax Act, 1961 and
the Income Tax Circle / Ward / District. A copy of the PAN card should be annexed to the application form.
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Each of the Applicants is required to mention his PAN allotted under the Income Tax Act in the Application
Form. The PAN would be the sole identification number for participants transacting in the securities
markets, irrespective of the amount of the transaction. Any Application Form without the PAN is liable to
be rejected. It is to be specifically noted that Applicants should not submit the GIR Number instead of the
PAN as the Application is liable to be rejected on this ground.

Nomination Facility

As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, only individuals applying as sole applicant/Joint Applicant
can nominate, in the prescribed manner, a person to whom his Debentures shall vest in the event of his
death. Non-individuals including holders of Power of Attorney cannot nominate.

Disputes and Governing law

Save and except as set out in Clause 2 below, the Debentures are governed by and shall be construed in
accordance with the Indian laws. Save and except as set out in Clause 2 any dispute arising in respect
thereof will be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts and tribunals in Bangalore. The Trustees
may, however, in their absolute discretion commence any legal action or proceeding arising out of this
agreement in a court, tribunal or ay other appropriate forum in India and the Company hereby consents to
that jurisdiction.

Trading of Debentures

The trading of privately placed Debentures would be permitted in standard denomination of Rs. 10,00,000
in the anonymous, order driven system of the Stock Exchange in a separate trading segment. All class of
investors would be permitted to trade subject to the standard denomination/marketable lot and further
subject to regulatory requirements. The trades executed on spot basis shall be required to be reported to
the Stock Exchange.

Mode of Payment

As set out in the term sheet, which is annexed as ‘Annexure A’ hereto.

Authority for the Placement



samasta

The present issue of Debentures is being made pursuant to the resolution of the Shareholders of the
Company, passed at its meeting held on May 20, 2020, and the resolution of the Board of Directors passed
at its meeting held on May 11, 2020 and further a resolution passed by the Issue and Allotment Committee
at its meeting held on February 27, 2021. The current issue of Debentures is within the overall borrowings
limits set out in resolution passed under section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, at the Extra Ordinary
General Meeting of the Company held on May 20, 2020. The Company can issue the Debentures proposed
by it in view of the present approvals and no further approvals in general from any government authority
are required.

Terms of Payment

The full Face Value of the Debentures applied for is to be paid along with the Application Form. Investor(s)
need to send in the Application Form and the cheque(s)/ demand draft(s) or RTGS or NEFT for the full Face
Value of the Debentures applied for.

Face Value Per Minimum Application Amount Payable on
Debenture Application per
Debenture (Excluding
cumulative interest, if
any)
Rs. 10,00,000 10 debentures & in multiples of 1 Debenture Rs 1,00,00,000
thereafter

Market Lot

The market lot will be 10 Debentures and in multiples of 1 Debenture thereafter (“Market Lot”). Since the
Debentures are being issued only in dematerialised form, the odd lots will not arise either at the time of
issuance or at the time of transfer of debentures.

Payment on Redemption

In case of the Debentures held in demat form, no action is required on the part of the debenture holder(s)
at the time of redemption of the Debentures and on the Redemption Date, the redemption proceeds would
be paid to those debenture holder(s) whose name(s) appear on the list of beneficial owners given by the
Depositories to the Company. The name(s) would be as per the Depositories' records on the record date
fixed for the purpose of redemption. All such Debentures will be simultaneously redeemed through
appropriate debit corporate action.
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The redemption proceeds shall be directly credited through Electronic Clearing Service (ECS), RTGS or
National Electronic Funds Transfer (NEFT) and where such facilities are not available the Company shall make
payment of all such amounts by way of cheque/ demand draft. The cheque/demand draft for redemption
proceeds, will be dispatched by courier or hand delivery or registered post at the address provided in the
Application / at the address as notified by the debenture holder(s) or at the address with Depositories'
record. Once the redemption proceeds have been credited to the account of the debenture holder(s) or the
cheque/demand draft for redemption proceeds is dispatched to the debenture holder(s) at the addresses
provided or available from the Depositories record, the Company’s liability to redeem the Debentures on
the date of redemption shall stand extinguished and the Company will not be liable to pay any interest,
income or compensation of any kind from the date of redemption of the Debenture(s).

Right to Reissue Debenture(s)

Where the Company has redeemed or repurchased any Debenture(s), the Company shall have and shall be
deemed always to have had the right to keep such Debentures alive without extinguishment for the
purpose of resale or reissue and in exercising such right, the Company shall have and be deemed always to
have had the power to resell or reissue such Debentures either by reselling or reissuing the same
Debentures or by issuing other Debentures in their place. This includes the right to reissue original
Debentures.

Transfer/Transmission of Debentures

The Debentures shall be transferred or transmitted freely in accordance with the applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 as amended. The provisions relating to transfer and transmission and other
related matters in respect of our shares contained in the Articles, the Companies Act, 2013 as amended
shall apply, mutatis mutandis, to the extent applicable to Debentures, as well.

The Debentures held in dematerialised form shall be transferred subject to and in accordance with the
rules/procedures as prescribed by NSDL/CDSL and the relevant DP of the transferor or transferee and any
other applicable laws and rules notified in respect thereof. The transferee(s) should ensure that the transfer
formalities are completed prior to the record date. In the absence of the same, interest will be
paid/redemption will be made to the person, whose name appears in the register of debenture holders
maintained by the Depositories/Company, as the case may be. In such cases, claims, if any, by the
transferees would need to be settled with the transferor(s) and not with us or Registrar.

List of Beneficial Owners

The Company shall request the Depository to provide a list of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date. This
list shall be considered for payment of interest or repayment of principal amount, as the case may be.

Debenture Redemption Reserve

In line with the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules notified thereunder, Debenture Redemption
Reserve is not required to be created for issue of privately placed debentures by Non-Banking Finance
Companies registered with the Reserve Bank of India.
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Notices

The notices to the Debenture holder(s) required to be given by the Company or the Trustees shall be deemed
to have been given if sent by registered post/ courier to the sole/first allottee or sole/first registered holder
of the Debentures, as the case may be to the address registered with the Company. All notices to be given
by the Debenture holder(s) shall be sent by registered post/ courier or by hand delivery to Registrars or to
such persons at such address as may be notified by the Company from time to time.

All transfer related documents, tax exemption certificates, intimation for loss of Letter of
Allotment/Debenture{s}, etc., requests for issue of duplicate debentures etc. and/or any other notices /
correspondence by the Debenture holder(s) to the Company with regard to the issue should be sent by
Registered Post or by hand delivery to the Registrar, or to such persons at such persons at such address as
may be notified by the Company from time to time.

Sharing of Information

The Company may, at its option, use on its own, as well as exchange, share or part with any financial or
other information about the Debenture holders available with the Company, with its subsidiaries and
affiliates and other banks, financial institutions, credit bureaus, agencies, statutory bodies, as may be
required and neither the Company or its subsidiaries and affiliates nor their agents shall be liable for use of
the aforesaid information.

Registrar

Link-in Time India Private Limited is acting as Registrar and Transfer agents for the Company for the Issue.

Trustees for the Debenture holders

The Company has appointed Catalyst Trusteeship Limited to act as Trustees for the Debenture holders
(hereinafter referred to as “Trustees”). A copy of letter from Catalyst Trusteeship Limited conveying their
consent to act as Trustees for the Debenture holders is annexed as ‘Annexure B’ to this Disclosure
Document.

1. The Company and the Trustees have entered into a Debenture Trustee Agreement and the Debenture
Trust Deed, inter alia, specifying the powers, authorities and obligations of the Company and the
Trustees in respect of the issuance of debentures.

2. The Debenture holder(s) shall, by signing the Application Form and without any further act or deed, be
deemed to have irrevocably given their consent to the Trustees or any of their agents or authorized
officials to do inter-alia all acts, deeds and things necessary in respect of enforcement of rights of
Debenture holders.

3. All the rights and remedies of the Debenture holder(s) shall vest in and shall be exercised by the said
Trustees without having it referred to the Debenture holder(s).

4. No Debenture holder shall be entitled to proceed directly against the Company unless the Trustees,
having become so bound to proceed, fail to do so.

5. Any payment made by the Company to the Trustees on behalf of the Debenture holders shall discharge
the Company pro tanto to the Debenture holder(s).

6. The Debenture Trustee shall ensure disclosure of all material events to the Debenture holders on an
ongoing basis.
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7. The Trustees will protect the interest of the Debenture holder(s) in the event of ‘Default’ by the
Company in regard to timely payment of interest and repayment of principal and they will take
necessary action at the cost of the Company.

8. The Debenture Trustee shall carry out its duties and shall perform its functions under the SEBI (Issue
and Listing of Debt Security) Regulations, the SEBI (Debenture Trustee) Regulations, the trust deed and
this Disclosure Document, with due care, diligence and loyalty.

9. Resignation/retirement of the Debenture Trustee shall be as per terms of the trust deed entered into
between the Issuer and the Debenture Trustee. A notice in writing to the Debenture holders shall be
provided for the same

10. The events of default are set out under the Debenture Trust Deed.

Right to Accept or Reject Applications

The Board of Directors / Issue and Allotment Committee of the Company reserves its full, unqualified and
absolute right to accept or reject any application, in part or in full, without assigning any reason thereof. The
rejected applicants will be intimated along with the refund warrant, if applicable, to be sent. Interest on
Application Money will be paid from the Pay-in Date till one day prior to the Refund Date. The Application
Forms that are not complete in all respects are liable to be rejected and would not be paid any interest on
the application money. Application would be liable to be rejected on one or more technical grounds,
including but not restricted to:

Number of Debentures applied for is less than the Minimum Application Size;
Bank account details not given;

Details for issue of Debentures in electronic/dematerialised form not given;
PAN not given;

T oo oo

In case of applications under Power of Attorney by limited companies, corporate bodies, etc. relevant

documents not submitted;

f. Inthe event, if any Debenture(s) applied for is/ are not allotted in full, the excess application monies of
such Debentures will be refunded, as may be permitted.

How to Apply

This Disclosure Document is neither a prospectus and does not constitute an offer to the public generally to
subscribe for or otherwise acquire the Debentures issued by the Company. The document is for the exclusive
use of the investor(s) to whom it is delivered and it should not be circulated or distributed to third parties.
The document would be specifically addressed to the investor(s) by the Issuer.

Only specifically addressed investors may apply for Debentures by completing the Application Form in the
prescribed format in BLOCK LETTERS in English as per the instructions contained therein. Applications should
be for a minimum of 10 Debentures and in multiples of 1 Debenture thereafter. The applications not
completed in the said manner are liable to be rejected. Application Form duly completed in all respects and
should be submitted as instructed. The name of the applicant’s bank, type of account and account number
must be filled in the Application Form. This is required for the applicant’s own safety and these details will
be printed on the refund orders and interest/ redemption warrants.
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Applications may be made in single or joint names (not exceeding three). In the case of joint applications,
all payments will be made out in favour of the first applicant. All communications will be addressed to the
first named applicant whose name appears in the Application Form at the address mentioned therein.

Unless the Company specifically agrees in writing with or without such terms or conditions it deems fit, a
separate single cheque/ demand draft must accompany each Application Form. Application money shall not
be accepted in cash. Applicants are requested to write their names and application serial number on the
reverse of the instruments by which the payments are made. All applicants are requested to tick the relevant
column “Category of Investor” in the Application Form.

Debenture holder not a Shareholder

The Debenture holders will not be entitled to any of the rights and privileges available to the Shareholders.

Rights of Debenture holders

e The Debentures shall not, except as provided in the Companies Act, 2013 confer upon the holders
thereof any rights or privileges available to the members of the Company including the right to receive
Notices or Annual Reports of, or to attend and/or vote, at the General Meeting of the Company.
However, if any resolution affecting the rights attached to the Debentures is to be placed before the
shareholders, the said resolution will first be placed before the concerned registered Debenture holders
for their consideration. In terms of Section 136 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, trustee of holders of
Debentures shall be entitled to a copy of the Balance Sheet on a specific request made to the Company.

e The rights, privileges and conditions attached to the Debentures may be varied, modified and/or
abrogated with the consent in writing of the holders of at least three-fourths of the outstanding amount
of the Debentures or with the sanction of Special Resolution passed at a meeting of the concerned
Debenture holders, provided that nothing in such consent or resolution shall be operative against the
Company, where such consent or resolution modifies or varies the terms and conditions governing the
Debentures, if the same are not acceptable to the Company.

e The Debentures comprising the private placement shall rank pari passu inter se without any preference
to or priority of one over the other or others over them and shall also be subject to the terms and
conditions to be incorporated in the agreements to be entered into by the Issuer with the Trustee and
the letters of allotment/ debenture certificates that will be issued.

e The registered Debenture holder or in case of joint-holders, the one whose name stands first in the
Register of Debenture holders shall be entitled to vote in respect of such Debentures, either in person
or by proxy, at any meeting of the concerned Debenture holders and every such holder shall be entitled
to one vote on a show of hands and on a poll, his/her voting rights shall be in proportion to the
outstanding nominal value of Debentures held by him/her on every resolution placed before such
meeting of the Debenture holders.
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e The Debentures are subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Memorandum and
Articles of the Company, the terms of this Disclosure Document and the Application Form. Over and
above such terms and conditions, the Debentures shall also be subject to other terms and conditions as
may be incorporated in the Trustee Agreement/ Letters of Allotment/ Debenture Certificates,
guidelines, notifications and regulations relating to the issue of capital and listing of securities issued
from time to time by the Government of India and/or other authorities and other documents that may
be executed in respect of the Debentures.

e  Save as otherwise provided in this Disclosure Document, the provisions contained in Annexure C and/
or Annexure D to the Companies (Central Government’s) General Rules and Forms, 1956 as prevailing
and to the extent applicable, will apply to any meeting of the Debenture holders, in relation to matters
not otherwise provided for in terms of the Issue of the Debentures.

e Aregister of Debenture holders will be maintained in accordance with Section 88 of the Companies Act,
2013 and all interest and principal sums becoming due and payable in respect of the Debentures will be
paid to the registered holder thereof for the time being or in the case of joint-holders, to the person
whose name stands first in the Register of Debenture holders.

e The Debenture holders will be entitled to their Debentures free from equities and/or cross claims by
the Company against the original or any intermediate holders thereof.

Trustee for the Issue
Catalyst Trusteeship Limited

Effect of Holidays

Should any of the date(s), including the Interest payment date or record date falls on a Saturday or a Sunday
or a public holiday or no high value clearing or RTGS is available for any reason whatsoever at the place of
issuer’s registered/ corporate office, the next working day shall be considered as the effective date.
However, for payment of principal amount, previous working day to be considered as effective date.

1. If the interest payment date falls on a Saturday, Sunday or a public holiday, the payment may be made
on the following working day however the dates of the future coupon payments would be as per the
schedule originally stipulated at the time of issuing the security. In other words, the subsequent coupon
schedule would not be disturbed merely because the payment date in respect of one particular coupon
payment has been postponed earlier because of it having fallen on a Saturday, Sunday or a public
holiday.

2. In order to ensure consistency for interest calculation, a uniform methodology shall be followed for
calculation of interest payments in the case of leap year, which shall be as follows: In case of a leap
year, if February 29 falls during the tenor of a security, then the number of days shall be reckoned as
366 days (Actual/Actual day count convention) for a whole one year period, irrespective of whether
the interest is payable annually, half yearly, quarterly or monthly etc. It is thus emphasized that for a
half yearly interest payment, 366 days would be reckoned twice as the denominator; for quarterly
interest, four times and for monthly interest payment, twelve times. If the maturity date of the debt
securities, falls on a Saturday, Sunday or a holiday, the redemption proceeds shall be paid on the
previous working day.

1. In order to ensure uniformity for payment of interest/redemption with respect to debt securities, it
has been decided that interest/redemption payments shall be made only on the days when the money
market is functioning in Mumbai.
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Note: - For illustration of the above point 1 & 2, with the help of example, SEBI circular number CIR/IMD/DF-
1/122/2016 dated 11.11.2016 should be referred.

Put / Call Option

Put/Call Option will be as set out in the attached Term Sheet annexed as ‘Annexure A’ hereto.

Deemed Date of Allotment

The Deemed Date of Allotment will be as set out in the attached term sheet.

Debentures in dematerialized mode

The Debentures will be credited in dematerialized form within the statutory time period from the Deemed
Date of Allotment.

The Debentures, since issued in electronic (dematerialized) form, will be governed as per the provisions of
The Depository Act, 1996, Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants)
Regulations, 1996, rules notified by National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and /or Central Depository
Services (India) Limited (CDSL) from time to time and other applicable laws and rules notified in respect
thereof.

Record Date

Refer Annexure A (Term sheet). The Record date for payment of interest or repayment of principal shall be
15 days prior to interest payment date/redemption date.

Interest and/or principal repayment shall be made to the person whose name appears as sole / first in the
register of Debenture holders/ beneficiaries on the Record Date. In the event of the Company not receiving
any notice of transfer at least 15 days prior to the Redemption Date the transferees for the Debentures
shall not have any claim against the Company in respect of interest so paid to the registered Debenture
holders.

Purchase and Sale of Debentures

The Company may, at any time and from time to time, purchase Debentures at the price available in the
Debt Market in accordance with the applicable laws. Such Debentures may, at the option of the Company,
be cancelled, held or reissued at such a price and on such terms and conditions as the Company may deem
fit and as permitted by law.

Future Borrowings

The Investor acknowledges and agrees that the Company shall be entitled from time to time to make
further issue of debentures or any other instruments to the public, members of the Company and /or any
other person(s) and to raise further loans, advances or such other facilities from Banks, Financial
Institutions and / or any other person(s) on the security or otherwise of its assets, without the consent of
or intimation to the Debenture holders or Debenture Trustee.
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The discount at which such offer is made and the effective price for the investor as a result of such discount

The present Issue is not at a discount.

Servicing behavior on existing debt securities, payment of due interest on due dates on term loans and
debt securities.

As on the date of this Disclosure Document, there has been no default in payment of principal or interest on
any existing term loan or debt security issued by the Issuer.

The names of the debenture trustee(s) shall be mentioned with a statement to the effect that debenture
trustee(s) has given his consent to the issuer for his appointment under regulation 4 (4) and also in all the
subsequent periodical communications sent to the holders of debt securities

The Company has appointed Catalyst Trusteeship Limited as the Trustee for the Issue. All the rights and
remedies of the Debenture holders shall vest in and shall be exercised by the Debenture Trustee without
referring to the Debenture holders. All investors are deemed to have irrevocably given their authority and
consent to Catalyst Trusteeship Limited to act as their Debenture Trustee and for doing such acts and
signing such documents to carry out their duty in such capacity. Any payment by the Company to the
Debenture Trustee on behalf of the Debenture holders shall discharge the Company pro tanto to the
Debenture holders. The Debenture Trustee shall carry out its duties and shall perform its functions under
the SEBI Debt Regulations and this Disclosure Documents, with due care, diligence and loyalty.
Resignation/retirement of the Debenture Trustee shall be as per terms of the trust deed being entered into
between the Company and the Debenture Trustee. A notice in writing to the Debenture holders shall be
provided for the same. The Debenture Trustee shall ensure disclosure of all material events on an ongoing
basis. The Debenture Trustee shall duly intimate the Debenture holders on occurrence of any of the
following events:

(a)

Default by the Company to pay interest on the Debentures or redemption amount; and

(b)
Revision of credit rating assigned to the Debentures.

Such information shall also be placed on the websites of the Debentures Trustee, the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

Debenture trustee has accorded its consent to act as debenture trustee for the Issue. A copy of such
consent has been annexed to this document.

The rating letter and rating rationale(s) adopted (not older than one year on the date of opening of the
issue)/ credit rating letter issued (not older than one month on the date of opening of the issue) by the
rating agencies:
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“CRISIL PPMLD A+ r /Negative” rating has been assigned by CRISIL Ratings Limited to the Company’s Long
Term Principal Protected Market Linked Debentures and the present Issue is the part of such programme.
The present issue of Debentures falls within the above long term debt programme.

Other than the credit ratings mentioned hereinabove, Issuer has not sought any other credit rating from
any other credit rating agency (ies) for the debentures offered for subscription under the terms of this
Disclosure Document.

The rating provided by the rating agency may be suspended, withdrawn or revised at any time by such
rating agency and should be evaluated independently of any other rating. These ratings are not a
recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and investors should take their own decisions.

The rating letter and rating rationale has been attached as ‘Annexure C to this document.

Names of all the recognized stock exchanges where securities are proposed to be listed clearly indicating
the designated stock exchange and also whether in principle approval from the recognized stock exchange
has been obtained.

The Debentures are proposed to be listed on the BSE Limited.

Names and designations of officials who have been authorized to issue the Disclosure Document
Mr. Venkatesh N. — Managing Director

Mr. Shivaprakash D.-Whole Time Director

Mr. Anantha Kumar. T — Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Pramod Kulkarni — Company Secretary



SECTION VIl — REGULATIONS AND POLICIES
Key Regulations & Policies

The following description is a summary of certain laws applicable to the Non-Banking
Financial Companies in India as well as certain other Indian Laws and foreign laws,
which are applicable to our Company and our business. The summary of laws,
regulations and policies set forth below is not exhaustive and is only intended to
provide general overview.

Our Company is engaged in the business of providing loans against collaterals. We are
governed by the laws governing service sector enterprises and commercial
establishments. We are a non-deposit taking (which does not accept public deposits),
systemically important, NBFC. As such, our business activities are regulated by RBI
regulations applicable to non-public deposit accepting NBFCs (“NBFC-ND-SI, MFI”).

Taxation statutes such as the Income Tax Act, 1961, the Finance Act, 1994, the Shops
and Establishments Act, 1958, labour regulations such as the Employees’ State
Insurance Act, 1948 and the Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Act, 1952,
and other miscellaneous regulations and statutes apply to us as they do to any other
Indian company. The statements below are based on the current provisions of Indian
law, and the judicial and administrative interpretations thereof, which are subject to
change or modification by subsequent legislative, regulatory, administrative or judicial
decisions.

Regulations governing NBFC-MFIs

As per the RBI Act, a financial institution has been defined as a company which includes
a non-banking institution carrying on as its business or part of its business the financing
activities, whether by way of making loans or advances or otherwise, of any activity,
other than its own and it is engaged in the activities of loans and advances, acquisition
of shares / stock / bonds / debentures / securities issued by the Government of India
or other local authorities or other marketable securities of like nature, leasing, hire-
purchase, insurance business, chit business but does not include any institution whose
principal business is that of carrying out any agricultural or industrial activities or the
sale / purchase / construction of immovable property.

As per prescribed law any company that carries on the business of a non-banking
financial institution as its ‘principal business’ is to be treated as an NBFC. The term
‘principal business’ has not been defined in any statute, however, RBI has clarified
through a press release (Ref. No. 1998-99/ 1269) issued in 1999, that in order to
identify a particular company as an NBFC, it will consider both the assets and the
income pattern as evidenced from the last audited balance sheet of the company to
decide a company’s principal business. The company will be treated as an NBFC if its
financial assets are more than 50 per cent of its total assets (netted off by intangible
assets) and income from financial assets should be more than 50 per cent of the gross
income. Both these tests are required to be satisfied in order to determine the principal
business of a company. Further a NBFC-MFI is required to be constituted of qualified
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assets not less than 85% of its total assets (netted off by intangible assets).

Every NBFC is required to submit to the RBI a certificate, from its statutory auditor
within one month from the date of finalization of the balance sheet and in any
case not later than December 30 of that year, stating that it is engaged in the
business of non-banking financial institution requiring it to hold a certificate of
registration.

NBFCs are primarily governed by the RBI Act, the Non-Banking Financial (Deposit
Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007
(“Prudential Norms — D”), the Non-Banking Financial (Non-Deposit Accepting or
Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007 (“Prudential
Norms — ND”), the provisions of the Non-Banking Financial Companies Prudential
Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 1998 and the revised regulatory framework for
NBFCs issued by RBI vide its circular DNBR (PD) CC.N0.002/03.10.001/2014-15 dated
November 10, 2014 and DNBR (PD) CC.N0.024/03.10.001/2014-15 dated March 27,
2015 as amended from time to time. In addition to these regulations, NBFC-MFlIs are
also governed by various circulars, notifications, guidelines and directions issued by the
RBI from time to time.

Securities Contract Regulation Act, 1956

The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”) seeks to prevent undesirable
transactions in securities by regulating the business of dealing in securities and other
related matters. The SCRA provides for grant of recognition for stock exchanges by the
Central Government. Every recognized stock exchange is required to have in place a
set of rules relating to its constitution and bye-laws for the regulation and control of
contracts. The said act deals with recognition, derecognition, regulation / control on
the stock exchanges, empowers the stock exchanges for making its own bye laws, rules
and the provisions pertaining to listing of securities, delisting of securities and dealing
in securities. The said enactment also provides for appellatemechanism.

The bye-laws inter-alia providefor:
the opening and closing of markets and the regulation of the hours of trade;
ii. the fixing, altering or postponing of days for settlements;

ii. thedeterminationand declaration of market rates, including the
opening, closing highest and lowest rates for securities;

iv. theterms, conditionsand incidents of contracts, including the prescription of
margin requirements, if any, and conditions relating thereto, and the forms of
contracts in writing;

v. the regulation of the entering into, making, performance, recession and
termination ofcontracts, including contracts between members or between a
member and his constituent.



SECTION VIII — DISCLOSURES PERTAINING TO WILFUL DEFAULT

(a)

ame of the bank declaring our Company/Promoter/any of the Director as a wilful defaulter:

N.A.

(b)

he year in which our Company/Promoter/any of the Director is declared as a wilful defaulter:

N.A.

(c)
utstanding amount when our Company/Promoter/any of the Director is declared as a wilful
defaulter:

N.A.

(d)

ame of the entity/director declared as a wilful defaulter:

N.A.

(e)

teps taken, if any, for the removal from the list of wilful defaulters:

N.A.

(f)

ny other disclosure in order to enable investors to take informed decisions:

N.A.
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SECTION IX - MATERIAL CONTRACTS, AGREEMENTS AND DOCUMENTS

The following contracts (not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course
of business ried on by our Company) or documents pertaining to the Issue
which are or may be deemed material have been entered or to be entered into
by our Company. These contracts or documents which are or may be deemed
material are available for inspection at the registered office of our Company
from 10.00 am to 4.00 pm on working days from the date of opening of the Issue
until the Issue closing date.

Material Contracts:

1. Agreement dated July 21,2017 with Link Intime India Private Limited appointing it as
registrar.

2. Agreement dated June 18, 2020 with the Trustee appointing it as the Debenture
Trustee to the Issue.

3. Debenture Trust Deed dated June 22, 2020 executed by and between the Debenture
Trustee and the Company.

Other Documents:

1.  Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Issuer.

2. Audited Annual Reports of the Company for the last three years.
3.  Certificate of incorporation dated August 09,1995.

4.  Fresh certificate of incorporation dated March 31, 2011.

5.  Resolution under section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding
borrowing powers upto Rs. 5,000 Crore, resolution under section
180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 for creation of charge and
resolution under section 42 for private placement of securities passed at
the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the shareholders of the Company.
The same has been attached as ‘AnnexureE’.

6. Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Issuer passed at its Board
Meeting held on May 11, 2020 and resolution passed by the Issue and
Allotment Committee of Directors at its meeting held on February 27, 2021
for raising money under the Issue. The same has been attached as
‘Annexure D’.

7.  Credit Rating Letter dated February 26, 2021 issued by CRISIL Ratings Limited

8. ConsentdatedJune 22, 2020 of Catalyst Trusteeship Limited to act as Trustee
to the Issue of Debentures.



An undertaking that the Issuer will, till the redemption of the Debentures,
submit the details of the latest audited/ limited review half yearly
consolidated (wherever available) and standalone financial information
(profit and loss statement, balance sheet and cash flow statement) and
auditor qualifications, if any, to the Debenture Trustee within the timelines
as mentioned in the simplified listing agreement, issued by SEBI vide circular
dated May 11, 2009 as amended from time to time, for furnishing/ publishing
it half yearly/ annual result.
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DECLARATION
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DECLARATION

The Company and exch of the directors of the Company hereby confirm and declare that;

a. the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder,
including the compliances in relation to making a private placement of the Debentures;

b. the compliance with the Act and the rules does not imply that payment of dividend or
incerest or repayment of Debentures, if applicable, 15 guarantesd by the Central
Government;

c. the monies received under the Issue shall be used only for the purpeses and objects
indicated in this offer letter;

I am anthorized by the Board of Directors of the Company vide resolubion dated 190 February,
2021 to =iz this form and declare that all the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
made thereunder in respect of the sublect matter of this Disclosure Document and mattérs
incidental thersto have been complied with. Whatever is stated in this form and in the
attachments thereto is true, carrect and complete and no information material to the subject
matter of Disclosure Document has been suppressed or concealed and is as per the original
records maintained by the Promoters subscribing to the Memaorandum of Association and Articles
of Association.

It iz further declared and verified that all the required attachments have bean completely.
correctly and legibly attached to this form.,

The Company accepts no responsibility for the statement made otherwise than in the disclosure
“docurnent or in any other material issued by or at the instance of the company and that anyone
placing reliance on amy other source of information would be doing 50 at his own rish

For Samasta Microfinance Limited

Al e
Venkatesh N
Managing DMrecto
DIN: 01018821
Samasta Microfinance Lisreiped
Raogd. & Haad OMflce: M, | 1001 Lalkagh Read Kelghnapps Layout Bangalore - 563 027, Eorvambs Tel #Fi B0 4391 3530

Corporate affice: ™MNa 17T A, Eannath
OSSP TEA | W SRS TERE

WAL IAMAITL TN

Screes, Tharad, TRirusarripar Ghenngl - 00 052 {India)
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ANNEXURE A — TERM SHEET
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Security Name SMFL-MLD(G-Sec)-Series
Issuer Samasta Microfinance Limited
Subscriber Unifi AIF

Type & Nature of

Rated, Listed, Senior, Secured, Redeemable, Taxable, Principal Protected,

Instrument
. Market Linked, Non-Convertible Debentures (“NCDs” or “Debentures”)
/Security
Senior
Seniority

Mode of Issue

Private Placement

Debenture
Trustee

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited

Roles and
Responsibilities
of Debenture
Trustee

In terms of the agreement entered into with the Debenture Trustee i.e
Catalyst Trusteeship Limited, which document is available for inspection.

The Trustees shall perform its duties and obligations and exercise its rights
and discretions, in keeping with the Trust Reposed in the Trustees by the
holder(s) of the Debentures and shall further conduct itself and comply with
the provisions of all applicable laws provided that, the provisions of Sec. 20
of the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 shall not be applicable to the Trustees. The
Trustees shall carry out its duties and perform its functions as required to
discharge its obligations under the terms of Company Act 2013, SEBI Debt
Regulations, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Debenture
Trustees), Regulations, 1993, the Bond/Debenture Trusteeship Agreement,
Disclosure Document and all other related transaction documents with due
care, diligence and loyalty.

The Trustees shall be vested with the requisite powers for protecting the
interest of holder(s) of the Debentures. The Trustees shall ensure disclosure
of all material events on an ongoing basis. The Issuer shall, till the redemption
of debenture, submit its latest audited/limited review half yearly
consolidated (wherever available) and stand-alone financial information
such as Statement of Profit & Loss, Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement
and Audited Qualifications, if any, to the Trustees within the timelines as
mentioned in Simplified Listing Agreement issued by SEBI vide Circular No.
SEBI/IMD/BOND/1/2009/11/05 dot. May 11, 2009 as amended.
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Besides, the Issuer shall within 180 days from the end of the Financial Year
submit a copy of the latest Annual Report to the Trustees and the Trustees
shall be obliged to share the details so submitted with all debenture holder(s)
within two working days of their specific request.

Risk Factors
associated with
Market Linked
Debentures

The securities are created based on complex mathematical models involving
multiple derivative exposures which may or may not be hedged and the
actual behavior of the securities selected for hedging may significantly differ
from the returns predicted by the mathematical models.

The principal amount is subject to the credit risk of the issuer whereby the
investor may or may not recover all or part of the funds in case of default by
the Issuer.

Eligible Investors

Only the persons who are specifically addressed through direct
communication by or on behalf of the Company are eligible to apply for the
Debentures. An application made by any other person will be deemed as an
invalid application and rejected.

Refers to the following categories of investors eligible to invest in the
Debentures, when addressed directly:

i. Commercial Banks, Eligible Financial Institutions* and Insurance
Companies;
ii. Companies;

iil. Non-Banking Finance Companies (NBFCs) and Residuary NBFCs and

iv. Mutual Funds
V. Foreign Institutional Investors (FII)
Vi. Provident Funds, Gratuity, Superannuation & Pension Funds, subject

to their Investment guidelines
vii.  Qualified Foreign Investors
viii.  Foreign Portfolio Investors
ix.  Alternative Investment Funds

x.  Any other investor authorized to invest in these Debentures
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Rating

CRISIL PPMLD A+ r /Negative

Issue Size

INR 30 (Thirty Crores) into 2 series as follows:

Series 1 - Rs. 15 crs redeemed at the end of 15 months from the date of
allotment;

Series 2 - Rs. 15 crs redeemed at the end of 22 months from the date of
allotment;

Option to retain
oversubscription
(Amount)

Not applicable

Processing Fee

Rs. 29,00,000 payable upfront

Coupon Type

Effective coupon amount linked to performance of reference index /
Government Security

Reference Index
/Government
Security

10 Year G-sec 5.77 GS 2030 (ISIN - IN0020200153)

Effective Coupon
Amount

Face Value * Annualised Coupon Rate * [(Final maturity date - Allotment
Date) / 365]

Objects of the | Onward lending and general corporate purpose including

Issue repayment/refinancing of existing Debts. The proceed of this issue shall not
be used for any purpose which may be in contravention of
Government/RBI/SEBI/Other Regulatory Guidelines.

Effective

Annualised

Coupon Rate

Based on ‘Reference Index Performance ‘corresponding ‘Effective
Annualised Coupon Rate Function’ will be applicable as follows -
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For Series 1:

Reference Index Movement
from Initial fixing date to Final
fixing date

Effective Annualised Coupon
Rate Function

Reference GSec Price Movement =
-75%

0%

Reference GSec Price Movement
between -75% to +75%

Annualised coupon rate yielding
9.45% XIRR

Reference GSec PriceMovement =
Above 75%

Annualised coupon rate yielding
9.55% XIRR

For Series 2 :

Reference Index Movement
from Initial fixing date to Final
fixing date

Effective Annualised Coupon
Rate Function

Reference GSec Price Movement =
-75%

0%

Reference GSec Price Movement
between -75% to +75%

Annualised coupon rate yielding
9.55% XIRR

Reference GSec Price Movement =
Above 75%

Annualised coupon rate yielding
9.65% XIRR




Initial Fixing Level - Official closing level of Reference GSec Price as on Initial
Fixing Date.

Final Fixing Level - Official closing level of Reference GSec Price as on Final
Fixing Dates.

Reference GSec Price Movement (%) - [(Final Fixing Level / Initial Fixing
Level)-1]*100

Initial
dates

Fixing

Series 1 - Deemed date of allotment March 02,2021

Series 2 — Deemed date of allotment March 02,2021

Final Fixing dates

Series 1 - Simple Average of closing prices of May 16, 17 and 18, 2022
Series 2 - Simple Average of closing prices of December 14, 15 and 16, 2022

Redemption )
Series 1 - June 02, 2022
Date(s)
Series 2 - Jan 02, 2023
Listing Proposed to be listed on the Wholesale Debt Market Segment of BSE Limited

(including name
of the Stock
Exchange(s)

where it will be

listed and
timeline for
listing)

within 4 trading days from the Deemed date of allotment.

In case of delay in listing of securities issued on privately placement basis
beyond the aforesaid timelines, the Company shall:

e pay penal interest of 1% p.a. over the coupon rate for the period of
delay to the investor (i.e. from date of allotment to the date of listing)

e be permitted to utilise the issue proceeds of its subsequent two
privately placed issuances of securities only after receiving final
listing approval from Stock Exchanges.




Redemption
Premium/
Discount

N.A

Face value and
Issue Price

INR 10,00,000 per Debenture (At PAR)

Series 1 -15 months from the date of allotment;

Tenor

Series 2 - 22 months from the date of allotment;
Coupon Reset

N.A
Process
Coupon C i b id on Red tion Dat
Frequency oupon if any, will be paid on Redemption Date

Coupon payment
dates

Series 1 - June 02, 2022
Series 2 - Jan 02, 2023

Day Count Basis

Actual/365

Interest on

Interest at the rate of 15.00% p.a. (subject to deduction of tax at source at the
rate prevailing from time to time under the provisions of the Income Tax Act,
1961) will be paid on Application Money to the Applicants from the date of

realization of the cheques / drafts or credit through RTGS / NEFT / direct
credit upto one day prior to the Deemed Date of Allotment. This is applicable

;\Xa}:)}:i;ation for all valid applications within 5 (five) Business Days from the Deemed Date
of Allotment. Where the entire subscription amount has been refunded, the
interest on Application Money will be paid along with the refund orders or
through RTGS / NEFT / direct credit to the bank account of the Applicant as
described in the Application Form. This clause is not applicable if the
allotment happens on the same day of application.

Letter of

Allotment

Letter of Allotment will be made within 30 days of allotment.
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Default Interest
Rate

If, at any time, there shall be a payment default or any other Event of Default,
the Company agrees to pay an additional interest rate of 4% per annum above
the applicable Interest Rate on the Outstanding Principal Amount from the
date of the occurrence of the Payment Default or Event of Default until such
Payment Default or Event of Default is cured.

Prepayment and

Any full or part of Prepayment shall be subject to the consent of the
respective Debenture Holders. In case of early redemption of the Debentures,
at the instance of the Issuer and post consent of respective debenture
holders, on any date other than the Maturity Date and not arising due to an
Event of Default, the issuer shall pay a penalty of 2% (Two Percent) on the

Prepayment principal amount repaid. The issuer shall give the Debenture Trustee and the

Penalty Debenture Holders at least 30 (Thirty) Calendar Days written notice prior to
the date of such meeting where Debenture Holders consent for prepayment
shall be sought.

Discount at

which security is
issued and the

effective yield as NA.
a result of such
discount
Put Option Date N.A.
Put Option Price | N.A.
Call Option Date
. N.A.
and Price
Put Notification
. N.A.
Time
Call Notification
N.A.

Time

Interest
Application
Money

on

Interest at the rate of 15.00% p.a. (subject to deduction of tax at source at the
rate prevailing from time to time under the provisions of the Income Tax Act,
1961) will be paid on Application Money to the Applicants from the date of
realization of the cheques / drafts or credit through RTGS / NEFT / direct
credit upto one day prior to the Deemed Date of Allotment. This is applicable
for all valid applications within 5 (five) Business Days from the Deemed Date
of Allotment. Where the entire subscription amount has been refunded, the
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interest on Application Money will be paid along with the refund orders or
through RTGS / NEFT / direct credit to the bank account of the Applicant as
described in the Application Form. This clause is not applicable if the
allotment happens on the same day of application.

Default Coupon | 4% p.a. over and above the Coupon Rate on defaulted amounts for the
Rate defaulting period

Minimum

Application of | 10 Debentures and multiples of 1 thereafter

Debt Securities

thereafter

Issue Timing

1. Issue Opening Date: March 2, 2021
2. Issue Closing Date: March 2, 2021
3. Payin Date: March 2,2021

4. Deemed Date of Allotment: March 2, 2021

Issuance mode of
the Instrument

Demat only

Trading mode of
the Instrument

Demat only

Settlement mode
of the Instrument

RTGS / NEFT mentioned in the application form

Depository

NSDL and/or CDSL

Business
Convention

Day

Should any of the date(s), including the Interest payment date falls on a
Saturday or a Sunday or a public holiday or no high value clearing or RTGS is
available for any reason whatsoever at the place of issuer’s registered/
corporate office, the next working day shall be considered as the effective
date. However, for payment of principal amount, previous working day to be
considered as effective date*.

In case Record Date falls on Saturday/ Sunday / Holiday, the prior Business
Day to the said Saturday/ Sunday / Holiday shall be the Record Date.

(SEBI Circular No: CIR/IMD/DF/18/2013 dated October 29, 2013 &
CIR/IMD/DF-1/122/2016 dated November 11, 2016)
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Record Date

15 calendar days prior to the proposed date on which any payments are
required to be made in respect of the Debentures to the Debenture Holders.

All covenants of
the issue
(including side
letters,
accelerated
payment clause,
etc.)

We have no side letter with any debenture holder except as disclosed in the

IM and on the stock exchange website where the debt is proposed to be listed.

Conditions Nil
Precedent
Conditi
onditions Nil
Subsequent
Description The Debentures together with the payments to be made in relation thereto
re . will be secured by the first ranking exclusive charge in the nature of
garding , ,
S ity (wh hypothecation created by the Company in favour of the Debenture Trustee
ecu.rl y (WRere |  ver the specific and identified receivables of the Company vide the
applicable)

including type of
security
(movable/immo
vable/tangible
etc.), type of
charge (pledge/
hypothecation/
mortgage etc.),
date of creation
of security/
likely date of
creation of
security,
minimum
security  cover,
revaluation,
replacement of
security, interest
to the debenture
holder over and
above the coupon
rate as specified
in the Trust Deed

Debenture Trust Deed dated June 22, 2020.

The charge created over the receivables shall be a charge in favour of the
Debenture Trustee acting for the benefit of and on behalf of the Debenture
Holder(s); The Security created hereunder shall be first ranking and
exclusive security for the benefit of the Debenture Holders, sufficient to
maintain the Security Cover by the Company.

Such security cover to be maintained on the value of outstanding debentures
and other obligations i.e. coupon, default interest, all agreed fees, costs,
charges, expenses and monies payable under the debentures at all times
during the tenure of the debentures is minimum 1.1 times, as more
particularly described in the Debenture Trust Deed.

The company states that the assets on which charge is created are free from
any encumbrances and in cases where the assets are already charged to
secure a debt, the permission or consent to create a second or pari-passu
charge on the assets of the issuer has been obtained from the earlier creditor.

To provide a list on a monthly basis, of specific loan receivables/identified
book debts to the Debenture Trustee over which the charge is created and
subsisting by way of hypothecation in favour of the Debenture Trustee (for
the benefit of the Debenture Holders) (“Monthly Hypothecated Asset
Report”)
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and disclosed in

To replace any Hypothecated Receivables that become NPA with current

the Offer | receivables. Such replacement shall be effective within 15 (Fifteen) Business
Document/ Days of the receivables becoming NPA.
Information
Memorandum.
Non - maintenance of security cover will attract a penal interest of 2%p.a.
over the coupon rate for the period of non- compliance.
The charge over the Hypothecated Assets shall at all times be at least 1.10x
(one decimal one Five) times the value of the Outstanding Amounts under the
Security Cover Tranche (the "Security Cover") and shall be maintained at all times until the
Final Settlement Date. The value of the Hypothecated Assets for this purpose
shall be the amount reflected as the value thereof in the books of accounts of
the Issuer.
The issuer undertakes to create security within 90 days from the issue
closure date. In case of delay in creation of the security within 90 days from
Security Creation | t)s deemed date of allotment, the company will pay penal interest of 2%p.a.
over the coupon rate from the expiry of 90 days from the deemed date of
allotment till the creation of security takes place.
Shall collectively mean:
(i) the Debenture Trust Deed.
Transaction (ii) the information memorandum and the private placement offer and
Documents application (collectively, Disclosure Documents).
(iii) the Debenture Trustee Appointment Agreement: and any other
document designated as a Transaction Document.
(iv) Rating letter
The Company reserves the right to borrow further under the same ISIN of
Future existing NCD issue and under any proposed NCD issue as per the provisions
Borrowings of SEBI/RBI/Companies Act, 2013 & rules thereunder and any other statue
and guidelines.
Debenture
Redemption Not applicable
Reserve
Recovery The company has created a recovery expense fund in the manner as specified

Expense fund

by SEBI from time to time.

Other Expenses

Any expenses that may be incurred towards executing of this transaction
including NCD issuance, security creation, custodial services, payment of
stamp duty, fees for legal, accounting, due diligence and others shall be borne
by the Issuer.

Rating covenants

If Rating goes down by “single” notch from the existing rating of the company
i.e CRISIL PPMLD A+ r /Negative”, the rate of interest shall increase by 25
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basis points for every notch downwards. Any further gradation of the
company’s rating goes below A then the debenture holder shall have right to
accelerated redemption and it shall lead to full redemption of the debentures.
The debenture trustee shall have the right, but not an obligation, to require
the issuer to redeem the debentures within a period of 30 day.

Governing Law
and Jurisdiction

The Debenture Documents shall be governed by the laws of India. The Courts
in Bangalore will have exclusive jurisdiction in relation to any dispute that
may arise out of or in connection with any of the Transaction Documents.

Change of
Taxation clause

If the taxation of market linked debentures undergoes any increase from
current levels, the debenture trustee shall have the right but not an obligation
to require the issuer to prepay the debentures within 60 days on occurrence
of such an event without any prepayment charges. Correspondingly the
issuer shall have the right but not an obligation to increase the effective
annual coupon rate by 1.5% instead of prepaying the debentures without any
prepayment charges.

Pay in Date 2nd March, 2021
Manner of

Bidding NA

Mode of

Allotment/ Private Placement
Allocation option

Mode of RTGS

Settlement

Valuation Agency
Fees

Fees paid to Valuation Agent by the Issuer shall be in the range of 1 bps p.a.
to 1.5 bps p.a. on the face value of the outstanding Debentures.

Valuation Agency

Name of Agency: CRISIL

Address: Central Avenue,Hiranandani Business Park, Powai, Mumbai- 400
076

Premature Exit

At the request of an Investor, the Company shall at its discretion and without
being obliged to do so, arrange for the buyback (“Premature Exit”) of such
number of Debentures as the Investor shall request.
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A request for Premature Exit by an Investor shall not be considered if made
within 3 months from the Deemed Date of Allotment.

Distribution Fee | NA
1. The Company is registered with the RBI as an NBFC
2. No Event of Default has occurred and is continuing on the date of this
transaction
3. The Debentures under this Issuance shall rank pari passu amongst
themselves, and with all other secured creditors.
4. Binding obligation of Transaction Documents
5. No conflict with other obligations / constitutional documents
Representations 6. No Material Adverse Change in business, condition or operations of
& Warranties the Issuer ) )
7. Company has the power and authority to issue Debentures and such
Transactions Documents are valid and admissible in evidence
8. Absence of any pending or threatened litigation, investigation or
proceedings that may have a material adverse effect on the business
condition (financial or otherwise), operations, performance or
prospects of the Issuer or that purports to affect the Facility
And as set out in greater detail in the Debenture Trust Deed.
The Issuer will indemnify, and hold harmless the Debenture Holders from
Indemnification | and against any claim, liability, demand, loss, damage, judgment or other

obligation or right of action which may arise as a result of breach of this Term
Sheet by the Issuer or its Promoter/s.
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Event of Default
(including
manner of voting
/conditions of
joining Inter
Creditor
Agreement)

Following Events would be construed as Events of Default -

1.

“n

10.
11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Non-payment of any of the dues under this Issuance, with a grace
period of 3 (Three) calendar days in case of delays due to technical
reasons;

Default or trigger of event of default on any other indebtedness (cross
default)

Misrepresentation or misleading information in any of the
Transaction Documents

Issuer is unable or admits in writing its inability to pay its debts as
they mature or suspends making payment of any of its debts, by
reason of actual or anticipated financial difficulties or proceedings for
taking it into liquidation have been admitted by any competent court
or a moratorium or other protection from its creditors is declared or
imposed in respect of any indebtedness of the Company;

Event of Insolvency, winding up, liquidation

A receiver or liquidator, provisional liquidator, supervisor, receiver,
administrative receiver, administrator, compulsory manager,
trustee or other similar officer in respect of the Company or any of
its assets is appointed or allowed to be appointed of all or any part
of the undertaking of the Company;

If an attachment or expropriation or restraint of act of sequestration
is levied on the Hypothecated Assets or any part thereof;

Creditors’ processes initiated against the company

Repudiation of Transaction Documents

Cessation of business

Any material act of fraud, embezzlement, misstatement,
misappropriation or siphoning off of the Issuer / Promoter funds or
revenues or any other act having a similar effect being committed by
the management or an officer of the Issuer

The Company has taken or suffered to be taken any action for
reduction of its capital or any rearrangement, merger or
amalgamation without the prior written approval of the Debenture
Holders;

Promoters or key management personnel of the Company being
declared willful defaulter.

The promoter/s and/or the directors of the Company are convicted
of criminal offence involving moral turpitude, dishonesty or which
otherwise impinges on the integrity of the promoter/s and/or
director, including any accusations, charges and/or convictions of
any offence relating to bribery;

Erosion of 50% or more of the Company’s net worth starting March
31,2021.

All or a material part of the undertaking, assets, rights or revenues of
the Company are condemned, seized, nationalized, expropriated or
compulsorily acquired, or shall have assumed custody or control of
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the business or operations of the Company, or shall have taken any

action for the dissolution of the Company, or any action that would

prevent the Company, their member, or their officers from carrying
on their business or operations or a substantial part thereof, by or
under the authority of any Government or Government authority;

17. Occurrence of a Material Adverse Effect (defined below) as
determined by the Debenture Trustee, acting solely on the
instructions of the Majority Debenture Holders.

18. Change in management control without prior written consent from
the majority Debenture Holders. Any change in board composition
involving exit of current promoters would be communicated to
Debenture Holders and consent would be sought. If there is no
response within 7 calendar days, it will be deemed as consent given
by Debenture Holders.

19. Any Transaction Document once executed and delivered, ceases to be
in full force or becomes unlawful, invalid and unenforceable;

20. A petition for the reorganization, arrangement, adjustment, winding
up or composition of debts of the Company is filed on the Company
(voluntary or otherwise) or have been admitted or makes an
assignment for the benefit of its creditors generally and such
proceeding is not contested by the company for staying, quashing or
dismissed within 15 (Fifteen) days

21. Breach of the following covenants:

Affirmative Covenants - (i) Preserve corporate status;
authorizations, (ii) Payment of Stamp Duty, (iii) Handling
Investor grievances, (iv) Compliance with Investor Education and
Protection Fund requirements, (v) Regulatory Filings, (vi)
Regulatory requirements in case of a Foreign Investor, (vii)
Maintenance of Books of Account and (viii) Corporate
Governance;

Where such breach is not cured within 30 (thirty) calendar days.

a) Negative Covenants - (i) Change of business and (ii) Dividend
distribution in case of default

b) Financial Covenants where such breach is not cured within 60
(Sixty) calendar days.

Upon occurrence of any of the aforesaid event of default, the Debenture
Trustee may by a notice in writing to the Company initiate actions as may be
contemplated in the Transaction Documents including the following:

(a) require the Company to mandatorily redeem the Debentures and
repay the principal amount on the Debentures, along with accrued
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but unpaid interest, and other costs, charges and expenses incurred
under or in connection with this Deed and other Transaction
Documents,

(b) Declare all or any part of the Debentures to be immediately (or on
such dates as the Debenture Trustee may specify) due and payable,
whereupon it shall become so due and payable immediately

‘Material Adverse Effect’ shall mean the effect or consequence of an event,
circumstance, occurrence or condition which has caused, as of any date of
determination, a material and adverse effect on (i) the financial condition,
business or operation of the Issuer where net worth erodes by more than
10%; (ii) the ability of the Issuer to perform their obligations under the
Transaction Documents; or (iii) the validity or enforceability of any of the
Transaction Documents (including the ability of any party to enforce any of
its remedies thereunder).

Creation of
recovery
expense fund

The Company has created the Recovery Expenses fund and has deposited a
maximum of Rs. 25,00,000 (Rupees Twenty-Five lakhs) in terms of SEBI
Circular No SEBI/HO/MIRSD/CRADT/CIR/P/2020/207 dated October 22,
2020, which directs to deposit an amount equal to 0.01% of the issue size
subject to maximum of Rs. 25 lakhs per issuer towards REF with the
Designated Stock Exchange. In the event of the default, the Debenture Trustee
shall obtain the consent of the holders of debt securities for enforcement of
security and shall inform the same to the designated stock exchanges. The
designated stock exchange will then release the amount lying in the Recovery
Expense fund to the Debenture Trustee within five working days of receipt of
such intimation.

Conditions for
breach of
covenants (as
specified in
Debenture Trust
Deed)

As specified in Debenture Trust Deed.

Reporting
Covenants

Monthly Reports - Month end ALM table in the RBI format within 21
calendar days from the end of the month.

Quarterly Reports — within 30 (Thirty) calendar days from the end of each
financial quarter

a) Unaudited Financial Statements

b) Financial covenant compliance certificate signed by an authorised
signatory vide board resolution

c) Latest ALM in the RBI Format

d) Change in Shareholding structure
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Change in Board composition

Changes in accounting policy

Change in senior management officials (any CXO or equivalent)
Portfolio cuts including PAR data as per Issuer format

Latest Borrowing Profile

Annual Reports - within 120 calendar days from the end of each financial

year

a) Audited financial statements

Event Based Reports - within 10 (Ten) Business Days of the event occurring

a) Any fraud amounting to more than 2.0% of Gross Loan Portfolio

b) Change in the constitutional documents of the Company

c) Material Adverse Effect

d) Any dispute, litigation, investigation or other proceeding which could
result in a Material Adverse Effect.

e) Winding up proceedings

f) Any Event of Default or Potential Default, and any steps taken /
proposed to remedy the same.

1. The capital adequacy ratio (as defined in RBI NBFC Regulations) shall
be equal to 18% or above at all points in time.

2. Cumulative Asset Liability mismatch should always be positive in all
the buckets upto 1 year to the extent of at least 5%. If the said
covenant is breached then the company will have a curing period of
30 days to bring it back to the stated range.

Financial
Covenants 3. Asset Quality: Ratio of PAR-90 to Gross Loan Portfolio shall be 7% or

lower till Q.E.30-June-2021 and 5% or lower from Q.E.30-Sep-2021

“Gross Loan Portfolio” shall include on balance sheet and off-balance
sheet portfolio

“Off Balance Sheet Portfolio” shall mean principal balance of loans
securitized, assigned, originated on behalf of other institutions in




-
- i

samasta

respect of which the Issuer has provided credit enhancements in any
form or manner whatsoever

“PAR-90” shall mean the outstanding principal amount of all client
loans that have one or more instalments of principal past due for
ninety days or more.

“Client Loan” means each loan made by the Company as a lender.

“Loan Loss Reserves” means the portion of the Company’s portfolio
of client loans that has been expensed (provisioned for) in
anticipation of losses due to default.

“Gross NPA” shall have the meaning in accordance with the
guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

** - Not more than 50% of the CC / OD / Working capital borrowings that are
captured in the less than 1 year bucket will be assumed to be renewed for the
purpose of this cumulative ALM mismatch covenant.

All covenants would be tested on quarterly basis for the Company, i.e. as on
31st March, 30th June, 30th September and 31st December every year,
starting from 31st March 2021 on consolidated and standalone balance sheet
till the redemption of the Debentures.

The covenants shall be certified by the Company within 60 (Sixty) calendar
days from the end of each financial quarter.

Affirmative
Covenants

iy
2)
3)

4)
5)

To utilise the proceeds of this issue in accordance with applicable
laws and regulations

To comply with corporate governance, fair practices code prescribed
by the RBI

Notification of any potential Event of Default or Event of Default;
Obtain, comply with and maintain all licenses / authorizations
Provide details of any material litigation, arbitration or
administrative proceedings (materiality threshold - more than 2% of
Gross Loan Portfolio)
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6)

7)
8)

9)

Maintain internal control for the purpose of (i) preventing fraud on
monies lent by the Company; and (ii) preventing money being used
for money laundering or illegal purposes

Permit visits and inspection of books of records, documents and
accounts to debenture holders as and when required by them
Comply with any monitoring and/or servicing requests from
Debenture Holders

IIFL group to hold at least 75% Share-Holding in the company

Negative
Covenants

The Issuer shall not without the prior written permission of the majority
Debenture Holders and Debenture Trustee, do or undertake to do any of the
following:

Change in promoter or control (excluding Employee Stock Option) in
issuer. If there is no response within 7 calendar days, it will be
deemed as consent given by Debenture Holders. However, any other
changes in control not due to new equity raise and current
promoters’ holding going below 10% will have to be formally
approved by Debenture holders and deemed consent window is not
applicable.

Mergers and Acquisitions, restructuring, amalgamation without
approval of majority Debenture Holders over and above 10% of the
Net worth of the Issuer in a financial year

The Issuer shall not, without the prior approval of Debenture
Holders, enter into any transaction of merger, de-merger,
consolidation, re-organization, scheme of arrangement or
compromise with its creditors or shareholders or effect any scheme
of amalgamation or reconstruction; provided however that this
restriction shall not apply in the event that the compliance with this
restriction would result in the Issuer defaulting in relation to any of
its payment obligations in relation to the Debentures. It is also
clarified that any merger pursuant to RBI's in-principle approval for
banking operations does not need prior approval of Debenture
Holders.

The Issuer will not purchase or redeem any of its issued shares or
reduce its share capital without the majority Debenture Holders’
prior written consent;

Issuer shall not amend or modify clauses in its Memorandum of
Association and Article of Association, where such amendment would
have a Material Adverse Effect as defined earlier, without prior
consent of the Debenture Trustee

Unless mandated by law, Issuer shall not change its financial year-end
from 31st March (or such other date as may be approved by
Debenture Holders) without prior consent of the Debenture Trustee
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7. Any sale of assets/business/division that has the effect of exiting the
business or re-structuring of the existing business, to be with the
prior consent of the majority debenture holder. Sale of loan assets
such as assignment, securitisation etc in the normal course of
business (up to 25% of AUM) does not need any approval of
debenture holders.

8. The issuer shall not declare dividend or do buy back of equity shares,
if an Event of Default has occurred and / or any unpaid dues towards
NCDs and /or any non-compliance with financial covenants has
occurred

9. The issuer shall not undertake any new major new business outside
financial services or any diversification of its business outside
financial services, without approval of majority NCD holders

Note:

While the debt securities are secured to the tune of 100% of the principal and interest
amount or as per the terms of offer document/ information Memorandum , in favour of
Debenture Trustee, it is the duty of the Debenture Trustee to monitor that the security is
maintained, however, the recovery of 100% of the amount shall depend on the market
scenario prevalent at the time of enforcement of the security.”
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Illustration of Cash Flows:

Company SAMASTA MICROFINANCE LIMITED (the “Issuer”)
Tenure Series 1 -15 months from the date of allotment;

Series 2 — 22 months from the date of allotment;
Face Value INR 10,00,000 per Debenture (At PAR)

Issue Price

INR 10,00,000 per Debenture (At PAR)

Date of Allotment | Series 1 & Series 2 - 2nd March, 2021
Reference Index
/Government 10 Year G-sec 5.77 GS 2030 (ISIN - IN0020200153)
Security
Redemption Series 1 - June 02, 2022
Series 2 - Jan 02, 2023
Effective Based on ‘Reference Index Performance ‘corresponding ‘Effective
Annualised

Coupon Rate

Annualised Coupon Rate Function’ will be applicable as follows -

For Series 1:

Reference Index Movement
from Initial fixing date to Final
fixing date

Effective Annualised Coupon
Rate Function

Reference GSec Price Movement = 0%

-75%

Reference GSec Price Movement
between -75% to +75%

Annualised coupon rate yielding
9.45% XIRR

Reference GSec PriceMovement =
Above 75%

Annualised coupon rate yielding
9.55% XIRR
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For Series 2 :

Reference Index Movement
from Initial fixing date to Final
fixing date

Effective Annualised Coupon
Rate Function

Reference GSec Price Movement =
-75%

0%

Reference GSec Price Movement
between -75% to +75%

Annualised coupon rate yielding
9.55% XIRR

Reference GSec Price Movement =
Above 75%

Annualised coupon rate yielding
9.65% XIRR

Initial Fixing Level - Official closing level of Reference GSec Price as on

Initial Fixing Date.

Final Fixing Level - Official closing level of Reference GSec Price as on Final

Fixing Dates.

Reference GSec Price Movement (%) - [(Final Fixing Level / Initial Fixing

Level)-1]*100

Initial
dates

Fixing

Series 1 - Deemed date of allotment March 02,2021

Series 2 - Deemed date of allotment March 02,2021

Final Fixing dates

Series 1 - Simple Average of closing prices of May 16, 17 and 18, 2022

Series 2 - Simple Average of closing prices of Dec 14, 15 and 16, 2022
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Frequency of the
interest payment
with specified
dates

Coupon if any, will be paid on Redemption Date

Illustration of Cash Flows:

Series 1:
. . Redemption

Reference Index Movement from Effective Annualised .

e e . . . . . Date of Maturity | Amount per
Initial fixing date to Final fixing date Coupon Rate Function

Debenture
Reference GSec Price Movement =-75% | 0% 02 June 2022 10,00,000.00
Reference GSec Price Movement between | Annualised coupon rate
-75% to +75% yielding 9.45% XIRR 02 June 2022 11,19,696.42
Reference GSec Price Movement = Above | Annualised coupon rate
75% yielding 9.55% XIRR 02 June 2022 11,20,977.44
Series 2
. . Redemption

Reference Index Movement from Effective Annualised .

et g . . . . Date of Maturity | Amount per
Initial fixing date to Final fixing date Coupon Rate Function

Debenture
1 = - 0, 0,

Reference GSec Price Movement =-75% | 0% 02 January 2023 10,00,000.00
Reference GSec Price Movement between | Annualised coupon rate 02 January 2023
-75% to +75% yielding 9.55% XIRR y 11,82,555.87
Reference GSec Price Movement = Above | Annualised coupon rate 02 January 2023
75% yielding 9.65% XIRR y 11,84,541.07
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Scenario Analysis:

Tabular Representation

The following table shows the value of the Debenture at maturity under different market conditions

Series-1
Initial
Fixing Final Date Initial : Gross RIS HEI
Index DETN of ) Redemption Return on Debenture
Level Index Investment in
sl Level Movement Investment  matur MLD (INR) Amount (INR) Debenture
) ity (Absolute) (XIRR)
02 March 02
100 10 -90.00% 2021 June -10,00,000.00 10,00,000.00 0.00% 0.0000%
2022
02 March 02
100 20 -80.00% 2021 June -10,00,000.00 10,00,000.00 0.00% 0.0000%
2022
02 March 02
100 30 -70.00% 2021 June -10,00,000.00 11,19,696.42 11.97% 9.4500%
2022
02 March 02
100 40 -60.00% 2021 June -10,00,000.00 11,19,696.42 11.97% 9.4500%
2022
02 March 02
100 50 -50.00% 2021 June -10,00,000.00 11,19,696.42 11.97% 9.4500%
2022
02 March 02
100 80 -20.00% 2021 June -10,00,000.00 11,19,696.42 11.97% 9.4500%
2022
02 March 02
100 90 -10.00% 2021 June -10,00,000.00 11,19,696.42 11.97% 9.4500%
2022
02 March 02
100 100 0.00% 2021 June -10,00,000.00 11,19,696.42 11.97% 9.4500%
2022
02 March 02
100 110 10.00% 2021 June -10,00,000.00 11,19,696.42 11.97% 9.4500%
2022
02 March 02
100 120 20.00% 2021 June -10,00,000.00 11,19,696.42 11.97% 9.4500%
2022
02 March 02
100 150 50.00% 2021 June -10,00,000.00 11,19,696.42 11.97% 9.4500%
2022
02 March 02
100 180 80.00% 2021 June -10,00,000.00 11,20,977.44 12.10% 9.5500%
2022
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Series -2
Initial Final Initial Gross Gross Return on
Fixing Index Index Date of Date of Investment Redemption Return on Debenture
Level Level Movement | Investment maturity in MLD Amount (INR) Debenture
(Assumed) (INR) (Absolute) (XIRR )
2nd 02 -
- 0, 0, 0,
100 10 90.00% March,2021 January 10,00,000.00 10,00,000.00 0.00% 0.0000%
2023
2nd 02 )
100 20 -80.00% March,2021 January 10,00,000.00 0.00% 0.0000%
2023 10,00,000.00
2nd 02 _
100 30 -70.00% March,2021 January 11,82,555.87 18.26% 9.5500%
2023 10,00,000.00
2nd 02 _
100 40 -60.00% March,2021 January 11,82,555.87 18.26% 9.5500%
2023 10,00,000.00
2nd 02 _
100 50 -50.00% March,2021 January 10.00.000.00 11,82,555.87 18.26% 9.5500%
2023 T
2nd 02 )
100 80 -20.00% March,2021 January 10.00.000.00 11,82,555.87 18.26% 9.5500%
2023 A
2nd 02 )
100 90 -10.00% March,2021 January 10.00.000.00 11,82,555.87 18.26% 9.5500%
2023 A
2nd 02 _
100 100 0.00% March,2021 January 10.00.000.00 11,82,555.87 18.26% 9.5500%
2023 R
2nd 02 _
100 110 10.00% March,2021 January 10.00.000.00 11,82,555.87 18.26% 9.5500%
2023 e
2nd 02 _
100 120 20.00% March,2021 January 10.00.000.00 11,82,555.87 18.26% 9.5500%
2023 e
2nd 02 )
100 150 50.00% March,2021 January 10.00.000.00 11,82,555.87 18.26% 9.5500%
2023 e
2nd 02 _
100 180 80.00% March,2021 January 10.00.000.00 11,84,541.07 18.45% 9.6500%
2023 e
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Graphical Representation

Series -1
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For and on behalf of

Samasta Microfinance Limited

Sd/-
Venkatesh.N
Managing Director

DIN: 01018821
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Payment Instructions:

The Application form should be submitted directly. The entire amount of Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakh Only) per Debenture is

payable along with the making of an application. Applicants can remit the application amount through RTGS on pay-in date. The RTGS
details of the issuer are as follows:

Beneficiary Name Samasta Microfinance Limited
Account Number 409000839892

IFSC Code RATN0000156

Bank Name RBL Bank

Branch Address Residency Road, Bangalore
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ANNEXURE B — DEBENTURE TRUSTEE CONSENT LETTER

CATALYST

Believe in yourself.. Trust us!

cL/MUM/20-21/DEB/118
June 22, 2020

Samasta Microfinance Limited -
110/3, Lalbagh Main Road,

Krishnappa Layout,

Bengaluru - 560027

Dear Sir,

Consent to act as Trustee for Rated, Secured, Listed, Non-Convertible Debentures
aggregating to 400 Crores to be issued by your Company.

This is with reference to the discussions in respect of appointment of Catalyst Trusteeship
Limited to act as Debenture Trustee for the Rated, Listed Secured and Redeemable Non-
Convertible Debentures aggregating up to INR 400 Crore to be issued by your Company. In
this connection, we are agreeable to act as Trustee on the following trusteeship

remuneration:

Acceptance fees: Rs. 1,00,000/- plus applicable taxes (One Time; Non Refundable)
payable on appointment as trustee.

Service Charges: Rs. 1,00,000/- pa plus applicable taxes payable in advance for

each financial year effective from the date of appointment till
satisfaction of charges in full. Pro-rata charges would apply for the
first year from date of execution till March 31, 2021

Every Tranche : - Rs. 40,000/- plus applicable taxes (One Time)

All out of pocket expenses incurred towards legal fees, travelling, inspection charges, etc
shall be levied and re-imbursed on actual basis.

Yours faithfully, We accept the above terms

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited For Samasta Microfinance Limited
> I

Authorized Signatory Authorized Signatory

NOTE: As per GST guidelines, CTL would be required to pay the applicable Service Tax
on the amounts / charges payable to us as indicated above. Please note that the
Company would be liable to pay all such charges even in the event of cancellation

CATALYST TRUSTEESHIP LIMITED oty con iusieées (nien) s St 150900 Company
MM BAL OficE Windssr, 67 Floor: Offfes N, 604, C8.T, Road, Kaline, Santacruz (East) Mumbal 60 U8 Tal +87 (022) 4922 G555 Fan 0] 62214023 0508 [ ]
Raegd. OFfice GOA House, Hiol Mo AS T wisar | Colory (Righe), Pt Road, Pune &0 | OZE TTal 4551 (DZ20) 2528001 Fax =37 (DEC Z5ZB0270 P
Dalhi Offica Offiea Ms. 310, Bth Floor Kaltash Bulikiing, 26, Keasturba Ciorcl il Mara, Mew Balhi QO Tel 11 450291 01/62.

SN Mo, UT4830DMIBETDLONNIE? Email digootitiustancom Website Wi cabnlyskrustos.comm E

Pune | Mumbal | Bengalurs | Deihl | Chemna
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ANNEXURE C — CREDIT RATING LETTER

CRISIL

A R i | e Y

Ratings

CONFIDENTIAL
SANMIL 265860 NCD 122033352
Fahnaary 205, 2021
Mr Veankatesh W
Manazing Direcmor
Samasta Microfinance Limited
11055, LaTvagh Main Foad,
Enshnappa Layoauat,
HMear Unvashi Thaatre
Hamzalore - 360037
Draar M. Venkatesh I,

Ee: CRISIL Eatimg on the Bz200 Crore Lomg Term Primcpal Protecied Marleet Limlied Debeniure: of Samasta
Aicrofimance Limated

TW'e refer to vour request for a Tatine for the capironed Diebi instrunvent.

CRISIL Ratings has, affer due consideration, assipped a “CRISTL. PPMID A+ r MNegative"” (propomnced ~CRISI. PEMI T
A phis r rating with neganve omlook™) mins o the capbened Debt insrument Insourmenrs with this rang are considered o
hawe adequate degres of safety regarding nmely semvicing of financial oblipatnons. Such msimoments carry bow credit nsk.

A prefix of PP-UILD" mdors thar ohe Foowwenr = @ principa-protecied moarer-iinted debename. The rerms gf such
Diramens indicgie thear widie the fouer promizes o pay Sack rhe foce value/principal f the fmorument, rhe coupon ratwes gf
opese fctruents will not be ffred, and cowld bSe linked to one or mare exermal variobier tuch at commodiny pricgs, Squiy
share prices, indices, or foreien evchange raws. 4 sy of 70 mdicaies TveTimenD carTyinE non-credit sk The T ooyfir
.:'rr.:i‘r'.':.::w thar paymenrr on e rased ferumel hove tishiicent risies other tham crediy rick. The fermis gff the insmimers
spechy thar the poymends o mvesiors will moi be fIoed. and cowild be imbed fo one or more eoernel vrables such o
c.:.'rm-.'nmt'u. pn‘r:.' SqLIY mdices, or foreien aochange rates. This copld retult n warabiliy m poymenis, including pocsible
muriavial joss gf principail, Secoute of adverse movement in vaine of the exdernal variabies. TFu risk of such gdverse neo Ve
oy prTcevaine i nor addrested By the raime
As per oar Fating Apresment, CRISIL Fatings would disseminate the raone alons with ouilook through its poblicasons and
other media, and keep the mong along with outleok under survesllance for the life of the msimument. CHRISIL Rafmzs ressrves
the rnght to withdrow, or revize the rtng / owilook assieped to the capbonsd mstroment at amy time, on the baszis of new
mfammaton. or anavailabilify of infommratson. or other arommstances which CRISTL Eatings believes may bave an impact on
the raEne.
Further, in view of your decision to accept the CRISIL. Fanne, we reguest vou 1o apprse us af the instrument details {in ihe
enclosed formaf) as soon as it has been placed. In the event of vour company not making the issue within a period of EB0 days
from the above date, or m the event of any chanze in the size or stmachare of your propesed issue, a frezh leter of revalidaton
from CEISTL will be necessary

As per the laiest SEBI cinoalar freference pomber: CIEVTMIVDF T 72013, dated October 22, 2013) on ceniralized daabase for
coparate bonds/debepnires, you are required to provide infermational secoriies identificatdon numbsr (ISTH; alons with the
reference munher and the date of the rating letier) of all bond ‘debenbure issuances made against this mbing letter to us. The
circilar alsa reqgoires you to share this information with us withon 2 days afiter the alloment of the ISON. We request vou to
meil s all the pecessary and relevant nformation af debrissueidcrisl com Thiz will epabls CRISIL Eatings to verfy and
confirm to the depesitories, mchading NSDL. and CO¥SL, the ISIN details of debd rated by us, as regaived by SEEIL Feel fiee to
conact s for any clarifications you may have ar debdssuedicrisil com
Should you require any clarifications, please feel fee to get in towch with ws.
With warm repasds,
Yours sinceraby,

Ajit Velonie Nivedita Shibu e

Crirecing - CHEISIL Batingss Aszzeciare Darector - CRISTL Ranngs
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rrdiabile. R Aoty dlosr ool gearmeee e compleirneny or arcsrasey of the infernanion oo sduch feorogng o boaesd 4 rodéng By CREUEIT. Satieger o ey o rescwsssrnlodioos o
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ary errry aed erpecielly riader ghod 0 o oo fneeond! el homcsear i S subaseiuer C unnes ot inbrdbarorn of oy rotrgm TR Aadeges | orifena ore
cnsaile withewi chorpe do der pable o e el s, areee ol CRUTE Aadmga or dr snocsser s hasr odher ¢ 1-1'|rr|.—ul—.rm:|_1rl-'1|r-iu-dnrnun|mn. ety Fovr e
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Ratings CRISIL

An S& P Global Company

Fursuant 1o SEBI nolifications, CRISIL Limited JCRIEIL;l ha= 1 ferred ils Ralti i business 1o ils whull:.r awned
subsidiary, CRISIL Ratings Limited (CRISIL Ratings), with effect from December 31st 2020, Any reference to CRISIL in
the doecumants published by the Ratings division of CRISIL, such as Rating Rationales, Credit Rating Reports, Press
Releasas, Criteria, Methodology. FAQs, Policies and Disclosures, shall henceforth refer to CRISIL Ratings.

Rating Rationale
February 28, 2021 | Mumbal

Samasta Microfinance Limited
'CRISIL PPMLD A+ r /Negative® azzigned fo Long Term Prncipal Profected Markef Linked Debentures

Rating Action
Total Bank Loan Facilities Rated Rs 200} Crore
Long Term Rating CRISIL A+iMegative (Reaffirrmed)

"Hs.200 Crore Long Term Principal Protected Market
Linked Debentures

"Hs. 100 Crore Principal Protected Market Linked Mon-

CRISIL PPMLD A+ r INegative [Assigned)

Co tibile Subordinated Debentures CRISIL PPMLD A+ r iNegative (Reaffirmed)
Rs. 1000 Crore Mon Convertible Debentures CRISIL A+MNegative (Reaffirmed)

Rs. 1530 Crore Mon Convertible Debentures CRISIL A+iMegative (Reaffirmed)

Rs. 300 Crore Commercial Paper CRISIL A1+ (Reaffirmed)

Long Term Principal Protected Market Linked .

Debentures A ing =300 Crore CRISIL PPMLD A+ r INegative (Reaffirmed)
e

Feefer i Snnmare for Dol of insenenss 3 Bank FaaiBes

Detailed Rationale

CRISIL Ratings has assigned its "CRISIL PP-MLD A+riNegative’ rating to the Rs 200 crore principal protected market-
Inked debentures of Samasta Microfinance Lid (Samasta). CRISIL Ratings has also reaffimned its "CRISIL A+/CRISIL PP-
MLD A+rMegativeCRISIL A1+ ratings on the long-term bank faciliies and debt programmes.

The ‘Negative’ outlook reflects a similar outiook on the ratings of the parent. IIFL Finance Ltd (IIFL Financs; "CRIZIL
AAMNegative/CRISIL Al+).

The ratings reman centrally driven by strong financial and management support from the parent, the company's improving
dieersity in funding and the extensive experience of the semicr management These strengths are pa.rtldlr offset by
ge-:lgaplm conceniration in reverwe and susceptiblity to regulatory and slative risks assocated with the microfinance

The prefix PP-MLD" indicates that the principal amount of the debentures is protected, whille the returms market-finked. The
suffix v shows that the retums on the debentures hawve significant risks other than credit nisk. Also, payments to mwestors
are not fixed and are linked o external variables such as commodity prices, equity indices, foreign exchange rates or equity
valuation of the company.

The company's collection efficency (including overdues but excluding prepayments) revived towards the end of the nine
maonths ended fiscal 2021, and went over 100% in December 2020 driven by sizeable owverdue payments while curent
collection sbood at 83%. The company's ability to improve its cument collection to pre-Covid levels of ower BB% will be a key
monitorable. With steady improvernent in collections and rewival in economic activity, disbursements improved. Samasta
started disbursing from July, and with improverment in collection, disbursements also significantly increased and stond at Ris
1,835 crore as of Decermnber 20210_ In addition o disbursing loans to fresh bomowers, the company also pre-closed the loans
of exisfing bomowers and disbursed fresh loans to provide them with additicnal bguidity o rewive ther businesses, resulting
n higher prepayments in the third quarter of fiscal 2021, especally in December 2020 Sustainability of colections for
mncremental disbursements will be a key monitorable.

Given the gap between cument and pre-C-:ll.n:I collection levels, there is a risk of increase in credit loss and its potential
mpact on capitalisation mettics. As part of the one-time restructuring scheme refated to Cowid-18 announced by the
Reserve Bank of India (RBI), Samasta has not undertaken restructuning. Earfy bucket delinquencies (3-80 days) may remain
elevated in the near term. Owerall asset quality moderated on account of the pandemic. and the B0+ days past due (dpd) on
proforma basis stood at 2. 5% as on December 31, 2020, compared with 1.5% as on March 31, 2020. The company made
prowisions of Fs 74 crore in the nine months ended fiscal 2021, Howewer, Samasta’s ability to manage asset quality and
mamntain healthy collection will be a key monitorable

Fitipssiwnanw. CrisiLcomdmntwirs hare R abing R ating LisbRagngDocsreamastaldiorofinancel ImBsd_Febrnuary 26, 20010_RR_26586859.hitmi 1"
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With respect to the spread of Cowed-19. the penebration and sewerty of the pandemic i Tami Nadu and Kamataka is
believed to be more vulnerable than in Odisha and Bihar. CRISIL Ratings will contirnes o monitor the sibeation and its likely
mpact on credit losses as it ewolves.

Susceptibility to regulatory and legislative risks associated with the microfinance sector

The microfinance sector withessed two rna;-:lr |:||5rl_|p1:|'.ne- epsnts in the |E|35I: deczde The first was the orisis promul by
the ordinance passed by the gowemment of Andhra Pradesh in and the second was demonetisabon in 18. In
addition, the sechor faced ssues of varying intensity in seweral EEWIES-.. Promulgation of the ordinance on MFls by the
gowermmment of Andhra Pradesh in 2010 demonstated their valnerability o regulatory and legislatee risks. The ordmance
triggered a chain of ewents that adeersely affected the business models of MFIs by impairing Seeir growth, asset quality,
profitabiity and solvency Smilarfy, the sector withessed high lewel of delinguences post-demonetisation and subseguent
socio-political events. For Samasta, the ulimate credit loss due bto disruption after demonetisation was cose o 14.3%,
which was borme ower two fiscals. This ndicates the fragiity of the business model vis-a-vis external risks. As the business
mnwolves lending to the poor and downtrodden sections of the society. MFls will remain exposed o socially sensitive factors,
ncheding high mterest rates, and consequently, to tighter regulations and legislaton.

Liuidity: Ad ;
Liquidity buffer [cash and liquid investments as on Decermnmber 31, 2020), at a standalone level, to cover total debt repayment
and operating expenses for the succeeding two months was margmnally below 1 tme. However, the company has recened
sanctions worth Rs 1842 crore as on December 31, 2020, and is 0 active discussions to raise noremental funds and
ncrease liquidity. Nevertheless, IIFL Finance will provide timely fund support for senecing of debt if needead_

As on Se 20, 2020, at a consolidated lewel, 1IFL Finance had liquidity cushion of Ris 4,027 crore (Rs 2,219 crore of
cash a equivalent. Ris 438 crore of unwiilised cash credit ines a Fs= crore of unutilised bank lines including
securii=ation limes). Against this. debt cbligation (principal and interest) stood at Rs 4,792 core ower the five months
throwgh Febreary 2021.
Dwitl ok Negative
The Negative outlook reflects a similar outlook on the parent. IFL Finance. CRISIL Ratngs believes Samasta will continue
o receive financial and managerial support from IIFL Finance, thereby maintaining its adeguate capitalisation and resouwrce
profile.
Rating Sensitivity factors
Upsvard factors
+ Any dhange in the name or anding philosophy of Samasta, leading to closer associaon with IFL Finance and
higher moral obligation of the parent to support the company
+  Significant increase in revenue and diversity in operations while maintaining rebum on managed assets (RolMA) above
2 5%
- Upgrade in the rating on IIFL Fnance

Diowrverard factors
- Diowngrade in the rating on IIFL Finanoe, or significant dedine n the extent of support or ownership by IFL Finance n
Samasta
+«  Significant weakness in ass=t quality, keading to stress in profitakility and capitalisation, resulting in a steady state CAR
of less than 18%
- Liquidity buffer rermamning kow as against scheduled debt and loan payrments

About the Company

Samasta. an NBFC and MFI, is a majornity-owned subsidiary of IIFL Finance. Samasta started operations in March 2008 by
taking ower Colanac Finance Lbd, an MBFC. it folows the standand Grameen Bank model and lends to groups of fve. The
centres have 25-30 members_ IIFL Finance acguired significant stake in Samasta in fiscal 2017

Key Financial Indicators

As on i for the period ended 31 Uinit Dec-20 Bar-20 Mar-13
Total managed asseats# Rs crore F906 3400 2283
Total income Rs crore 481 582 340
Gross MPA* ) 2.5 1.3 0.4
Adjusted gearing Times a1 6.0 7.7
Profit after tax (PAT) Fis crore 45 107 53
Retwrn on managed assets £ 1.3 34 31
o0 oo

2 including the BOC pomitso
Any other information: Mot applicable

Mote on complexaty levels of the rated instrumment:

CRISIL complexity levels are assigned o vanous types of financial mstruments. The CRISIL complexity lewels are available
on yewer el com complexitydevals |isers ane adwised to refer to the CRISIL complexity levels for instruments that they
consider for investment. Ulsers may al=so call the Customer Service Helpdesk with gqueries on specific instruments.

Anmedxure - Details of Instrume: ) . . . . . .
TI5TH Hame of Instrument Date of | Cowpon | Maturity | ssus | Complexity || Rating assigmed
allotnment | rate (%) date size levels with outlook
mHpsAswanw. Crisil ComAmntwins hare/RabngeRatng ListRasngDocsiSamastatdicroinancel imbed_Febnuury 26, 202_FSN_265865. hbm 211

119



Private & Confidential — For Private Circulation Only

Fatng Rafonal=

(Rs
crone}
A Commercal paper MA MA '_g:'aﬁff' s00 Simple CRISIL At+
Losneg-teermn principat Highihy CRISIL PP-MLD
e protected market M MA MA 200 g . :
Ebed Stk ara complex ArMegative
Long-termn principal : =
INES13U07078 protected market - MA L - Highly R -
linkad debenturess =t . Acrriiegatee
Loseg-termn principal : =
IMES 1307087 ed rmarket 13- Ju-18 (A1) 14-Mar- 14 Highly CRISIL PP-MLD
linked debentires = complex Atrihlegative
Privcipal protecied
market inked mon- - ,_
IME4 130103038 conwertinie MA MA LS 21.45 {:E'r’ﬁsgx s 'IS,;,';J:;;!'LLD
subordenated !
debentures
Principal proteci=d
st Enkssd mon- " u
: = e 1By Highly CRISIL PP-MLD
= 2 e, = ] 1% d
IME4 13003028 _conwerticle o0 18 MA 5 o 8 B iy i
debentures
Principal proteci=d
mmaret nked mon- y =
IME413U03036 conwerticis 20na18 | Na VR | exas c;';ﬁ;’;x 3ok ke
subordinated = it o
debentures
Mom-comeertible 05-Jun- DE-Jun- = CRISIL
IME4 13007102 il - MA ey a0 Sirmpie i birares
— Morn-comeertble 28-Jun- 2 1-Auper- A CRISIL
IME4 1300711 et s e M == 15 Simpis PP
e MNorm-comertible 10-Jul- T CRISIL
IME413U07128 e ey 10-Je-20 MA 33 25 it PPk vhcmia 100
Mon-comeertible 11-Aueg- TE-Aug- . o CRISIL
IME4130L07137 s e >0 MA T T4+ Cirrmis P el 0
MA R oewwes i de A MA A 85 Simple =T
A M Do MA MA NA TE0 Simple P e
MLA Term loan - Ma | F93ER 744 A L
A Terrn o 24 Dt 1D MA -=sz3‘-" 15.83 A A_?E'S"-.
i s 11-2hﬂ.ar- = :1_é..z1ar_ . A A‘I:T‘FITISIL_
o S 11-2hﬂ.ar- =T :1_é..z1ar_ A A A‘I:T‘FITISIL_
S0-Mar- 30-Dec- | . CRISIL
hL& Term ko= 13 P >0 By A AsMegative
ZE-Mar- 31-Mar- = CRISIL
Pl Term lo=n A 347 P 5
18 x2 AsiNegative
o TR To-hiar A T8-Mar- | g = an CRISIL
18 21 T A=Megative
A Term loan P MA e o By MA P O
MA, Term loan e A 0Dec- | 43 54 A i Y
21-Mar- 21-Feb- | - CRISIL
FlAy Term oz a0 A o3 2531 P, Aeitl .
A Terrm losm 16-Apr-13 MA 0 oo A i
A Term joan 13’;]9“' MA& '5'3"5‘3? 16.70 A Aﬁrﬁa'ﬁ"—.ﬁ
MA Term loan - MA <7 Dec- | 1404 MA v

Fittpsstweanw crisll comATrAwisshare Ratnge R ating ListRatngDoc s Samastall crofnancsl ImBed_Sebrasny 26, 20249_RS_265EE5. htd

120



Private & Confidential — For Private Circulation Only

ZEIT021 Fabdng Raficnals
A Term loan 09-Sep- Ry 21-Mary- 1023 A CRISIL
18 21 A+ Negative
2 B-Ohet- 3 CRISIL
WA Termmn loan ZB-DOet-20 A o3 Lu iCe] A At e
Z21-Dec- 2M-Dec- | . CRISIL
Iy Term loan A (R ILY = S0 P& AsNegative
26-May- 21-Mary- CRISIL
kA Tarm loan 17 1= 1 LR ] (=Y Asih five
2A0-Sep- 21-Mlary- CRISIL
ML, Terrm losn 19 M o7 1487 MA At e
TE-Plone- 28-Feb- CRISIL
A, Term lozn 18 M o1 254 P& Asih e
20-Sep- 20-Sep- CRISIL
M Term losn a0 M& ] 40.00 MA Asih e
o e 20-Jul- CRISIL
A Term loamn 18-Jul-18 A =1 15.00 R At e
18-Jun- Z0-Jun- CRISIL
M, Term lozn 18 M 1 500 P At _—
20-Mar- 28-Mar- CRISIL
P Term loan 19 1Y o T 20 R Aeth e
2E-Mar- 29-Mar- CRISIL
M Term loamn 19 A =1 4 38 L2 ) e
28-Jun- 28-Jun- CRISIL
ML, Terrm losn 19 M 1 206 MA A _—
21-May- Z21-Mary- o CRISIL
P Term loan 19 A o [ bt R At e
Proposed bong-termn CRISIL
MA baank loan fawlity MA M MA, 266.3 M As/Negative
TPl D Be (Ssoed
Hlozyed in ranches
Annexure - Rating History for last 3 Years
Gurrant 261 (Hissory FIes g FTE e
Instume-L Tape '3"‘-;-"-'“':"“ Harna Date | Fasng Dt Faling Date Feating Ciste Farmimug g
Fund E:aced oISl . Il CREEE. | .. .. .. CRIsIL CRIZIL
Foollies LT 20000 P : - BRURDO || o e | TE12E | e 2HAZE | e || Aret
AL o | CRESE - CRIEIL
- - 00820 || o e | 2OFT-1S | TE 1S0e1E | T -
CRIEIL CRESE - - CRIEL
- - DS | e | 1SEEID | e | 1ROEE | -
- - (== =] Cr 2tpsqe | JORER | o e .-TE; -
e S e E e E Dot
- CRIEIL
- - Z4-04-210 hi'?,g';;, 17013 ..;_%E 1307-18 | _AMSich -
- - - - 01051 .-?".?iua!ﬁ -
Do
- - - - insaz | AAmich —
Doemsmd iy
CRIEIL
- - - - OSHO2-18 | AAMEIch -
Dhmsmd oapiirag
Cormrnanaial eT =ao CRIEL Al - 2420 | cREE At | 151249 | CREEL - -
- - 100520 || CRER AN | 20-11-1g | CREE - -
- - 20520 || cRER AN | 15osqs | CRER - -
- - 040520 || CRESE A+ | 34-Ds-1s | CREEL - -
- - 240420 || CRE® At | 17081 CREE - -
Hmm LT 150.0 ..nms"' - 241220 _.._fﬁ.haﬂ_"m 1512413 ..E_E‘E'.EEEE 21-12-18 E‘Sﬂaluz -
- - 10-DE-20 _*_hﬁ%_l! agarg | CREL | gspgas CRISEL -
- - 2E-DE-20 1AL 1E-0S-1S | CREEEL - -
gt e

Eftpswranw Crisllcomimntwins hare 'R abng s R ating L isbRatng Docs S amastatd ionoinancel ImBed_F ebrnuany 26, 2021_RS_2&5865. hb=

121



Lo Tesrmn
Principal
Proimobed LT 1l
Miariort Linssd
Do b=
LT oo

i

AN ayroesTts e b A O

CFEEIL
gt e

Private & Confidential — For Private Circulation Only

Falbng Ratocnai=

Anmexure - Details of various bank facilities
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ANNEXURE D — BOARD RESOLUTION

sSamasta

CERTIFIED TRUE COFY OF THE EXTHRACTS OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED AT THE
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY FOR THE FINANCIAL
YEAR 2020-21 HELD ON MONDAY, MAY 20, 2020 AT 11.00 AM, AT THE
REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY SITUATED AT 110/3, LALBAGH »MAIN
ROAD, KRISHNAPPA LAYOUT, BENGALURL- 560027, KARNATAKA

“"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 42 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act. 2013, the Companies [Prospectus and
Allotrment of Securities) Rules, 2014 as may be amendesd from thoe to time, and in
accardance with the enabling provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of
Associastion of the Company and SEBI (Listing ©Obligations and Disclosures
Requirecment), 2015 as may be amended from time b time and other applicable
regulations, subject to the approvil of members ar an ensuing general meeting, consent
of the Board {hereinafter referred to as 'the Board” which term shall be deemed to
Include Issue and Allotment Commities or herginafier consttute to exercise lis powers
including the powers conferred by this Resolution] be and is hereby accorded toissue,
offer and. allot Securedy Unsecured) Listed) Unlistedy HRated/ Unrated/ Mon -
Convertible Market Linkedy Swobordinated Debt) Perpetual Debentures; Fixed
Maturity Debentures or any other securities of the Company upto an amount of Bs 2500
Crores [Rupees Two Thousand Five Hundred Crore] on private placement bazis o one
or mare tranches, on such terms and conditions &s may be determined by the Board,
from tdme to time, and subject to compliance with the applicable law, rules, directions
issued by the government or any other cegulatony authority, in this regard.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, for the purpose of creating. affering, issuing and allotting
the Debentures, subject to the approval of members at an ensuing general meeting, the
Board [including [ssuwe and Allotment Committes thereof] be and is hereby autharized
an behalf of the Company to doall such acts, deeds, mateers and things, as it may, inits
abzalute discretion, deem necaszary or expedient in the Interest of the Company and
with power on behalf of the Company to detgrmine the terms and conditions afthe issue
at the securities, sertle all the gquestions, difficulties or doubts that myay arise in chis
regard without requiting the Board to secure any further consent or approval of the
Members of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT authority and approval of the Board of Directors be and is
hereby accorded vo the lssue & Allotment Committes of the Board of Birectors to dieal
with the matters relating to issue and aflotnvent of various types of Debit Securlties and
finalization «of all the terms and condition=s of such Debt Securities to be Iszued and
allotted from time o time within the aggregate limit ahove, deciding the terms of the
isgue, deciding the Fssue Date, Redemption, Minimum Application Money, loterest on
Applicadon Money, Put and Call Gpriens, Securcity and Allotment date and on listing the
Debentures on the Stock Exchanges on private placement basis and other related
makters.

Samasta Miocrmodinance Liméced
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the issue and Allotment Committee of the Board of
Directors be and is hereby authorized and empowered to consider, transact and decide
matters, from time o time, pertaining to the private placement of Debt Securities,
including finalization and issuance of any offer document, opéning of a separate bank
account and allot the Debt Securities in one or more tranches. including where so
considered appropriate, amount pavable on application and further amouats as may be
called from time to time and the allotment thereof, to sign, verify, execute and file all
necessary forms and decuments, if any, with any governmental authority including but
not limited to the Registrar of Companies, Securities and Exchange Board of India and for
such other authorities as may be required from time to time, Appointing Debenture
Trustee and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things necessary or expedient to give
effect to the issue of Debt Securities and ensuring compliance and/or any actions as may
be required under applicable law.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT authority and approval of the Board of Directors be and is
hereby accorded to the Issue and Allotment Committes of the Board of Directors to deal
with the matters {including but not limited to finalization of the notice for obtaining of
the approval from the shareholders of the Company through convening Extra Ordinary
General Meeting of the shareholders and take decision in this regard,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, Mr. Venkatesh N., Managing Director / Mr. Shivaprakash
D, Whole Time Director fCompany Secretary fChief Financial Officer be and are hereby
saverally autherized to do all such acts, deeds or things which may be necassary in order
to give effect to the above resolution.”

/[ Certified True Copy //

Pramod Kulkarni
Company Secretary
Membership No. A49450

Date: February 27, 2021
Place: Bangalore
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samasta

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE EXTRACTS OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED AT THE
MEETING OF MEMBERS OF THE ISSUANCE AND ALLOTMENT COMMITTEE OF THE
COMPANY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2020-21 HELD ON SATURDAY, FEBRUARY 27,
Z0Z1 AT 11.30 A.M. AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY SITUATED AT
110/3, LALBAGH MAIN ROAD, KRISHNAPPA LAYOUT, BENGALURU- 560027,
HARNATAKA:S

APPROVAL OF TERMS OF NOMN-CONVERTIBLE MARKET LINKED DERENTURES:

a) Difer of Non-Convertible Debentures;

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the approval of Board of Directors at their mecting heid
cn May 11, 2020 and the approwval of shareholders ar their Extra Ordinary General
Mesting on May 20, 2020 for issue of Non- Convertible Debentures of the Company, and
in accordance with the provisions of the Information Memorandum, Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company, the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed
there under (including modifications, amendments thereto or enactment thereof from
fime to time], applicable Regulaticns of the Reserve Bank of India and the Securities and
Exchange Board of India, if any, the approval of the Committes be and is hereby accorded
o (4] raise funds by offer of 300 Rated, Listed, Senion Secured, Redeemable, Taxable,
Principal Protected, Market Linked. Non-Comvertible Debentures aof Face Value of
Rs.10,00,000 {Rupees Ten Lakh Only) each, aggregating to Rs. 30,00,00,000 on such terms
and conditions specified in the Term Sheet placed before the Commitvee.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company do and hereby negotiate and finalize the
terms and conditions for appointment of a deberture trustes, a registrar and transfer
agent, a credit rating agency, a depository and such other intermediaries as may be
required to be appointed, including their successors and their agents.

. RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, Mr. Venkatesh M., Managing Director, Mo Shivapralash [
Whaole Time Director, Mr Anantha Kuomar T, Chief Financial Officer, Mo Pramod Eulkarni,
Company Secretary of the company authorized as [CAuwthorized Officers") be and are
hereby severally authorized:

(i} to do all such acts, deeds and things as the Authorized Officers may deem
necessary or desirable in connection with the isswe, offer and allotment of the
Debentures;

(i) seeking, if required, any approwval, consent or waiver from any/all concerned
government and regulatory authorities, and for any other approvals, consent or
waivers that may be required in connection with the issue, offer and allotment of
the Debentures;

decide the terms and conditions of the issue of

[iii] negotiate, approve of a
Debentures; :
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execute the term sheet;

seeking the listing of the Debentures on the Stock Exchange, submitting the listing
application to the Stock Exchange and taking all actions that may be necessary in
connection with obtaining such Tisting;

finalize terms and conditions of the appointment of a debenture trustee, =
registrar and transfer agent; a credit rating agency, a depository and such ather
intermediaries as may be required to be appointed, including thefr successors and
their agents;

suthorize the maintenance of a register of holders of the Debentures;

creating and perfecting the Security as required in accordance with the terms of
the Transaction Decuments {as defined below];

finalize the date of allocation and deemed date of allotment of the Debentures;

negotiate, execute, file and deliver any documents, instruments, deeds,
amendments, papers, applications, notices or letters as may be required in
connection with the Issue and deal with regulatory authorities in connection with
the Issue including but not limited to SEBI, Registrar of Companies, Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, BSE and such other authorities as may be required;

to generally do any other act or deed, to negotiate and execute any documents,
applications, agreements, undertakings, deeds. affidavits, declarations and
certificates and to give such directions as it deems it or as may be necessary or
desirable with regard to this Issue;

to execute all documents, file forms with, make applications with the Stock
Exchange, the Registrar of Companies, or any depository or any authority as may
be required from time to time;

sign and/or despatch all documents and notices to be signed and/or despatched
by the Company under or in connection with the Transaction Documents;

to take all steps and do all things and give such directions as may be required,
necessary, expedient or desirable for giving effect to the Transaction Documents,
the transactions contemplated therein and the resolutions mentionad herein;

including without limitation, approve, negotiate, sign, execute, amend, suppiement
and / or issue the following:

A. information memorandum / disciosure document and for the Debenture Issue
(the Information Memorandum) and the private placement offer letter;

B, tripartite agreement between the Company, the depository and the registrar
and transfer agent;

C. the memorandum of understanding hetween the Company and the registrar |

and transfer:
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D. debenture certificate for the DPebentures:

E. debenture trust deed, debenture trustee agreement, deed of hypothecation
and other requisite documents for the creation of a security over the
Company’s movabie properties and assets, {including any powers of attorney
in comnection thereto) and any other document in relation thereto

{collectively, the Transaction Documents);

F. documents for opening of bank accounts and issuing instructions of bank
accounts related thereto in connection with the Debentures including without
limitation for the purposes of recognizing the rights of the debenture trustes
to operate such bank accounts;

G. any other documents required for the purposes of the Issue and the
transactions contemplated thereby, inciuding but not limited to letters of
undertaking, declarations, agreements, reports; and

H. any other document designated as a security document by the debenture
trustee.

{xvi) doall act necessary for the proposed listing of the Debentures in accordance with
the terms set out in the Information Memorandum and the Transaction

Documents; and

(xvii} do all other acts, deeds and things as may be deemed necessary to give effect to
the foregoing and the other terms of this resolution. '

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authorized Officers be and are hereby severally
authorized to take all necessary steps relating to the creation, perfections and registration
of charges and also to sign and submit the necessary forms with the Registrar of
Companies and other relevant governmental authorities.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, any one of the Divectors or the Company Secretary of the
Company be and are hereby severally authorized to record the name of holder of the
Debentures in the register of debenture holders and to undertake such other acts, deeds
and acts as may be required to give effect to the issuance, allotment and listing of the

Pebentures.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company be and is hereby authorized to open any bank
Accounts with such bank or banks in India as may be required in connection with the
Issue and that any one of Authorized Officers, be and are hereby authorized ta sign and
execute the application form and other documents required for opening the said
account/s, to operate the said account/s, and to give such instructions including closure
therecfas may be required and deemed appropriate by them, and that the saig bank/s be
and isfare hereby authorized to hanor all cheques and other negotiable instruments
drawn, accepted or endarsed and instructions given by any of the Authorized Cfficers on

behalf of the Com pany.”

Page 3 of §
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by Declaration of Trost and appoiniment of Debenture Trustee:
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and the rales made thereunder,
the Company do and hereby constitute a crust for the purpose of issue of the Debentures.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the approval of the Committes be and is hereby accorded
for appointing Catalyst Trusteeship Limited, as the debenture trustee in connection with
the Issue and as the debenture trustes in connection with any and all the security interest
created or proposed to be created or any guarantes, indemnities or undertakings issued
or praposed to be issued pursuant to the dehenture trust deed or any transactions
contemplated therein for the benefit of holders of the Debentures.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authorised Officers be and are hereby severally
authorized to execute the dehenture trustee agreement, the debenture trust deed and the
other Tranzaction Documents in relation to the [ssue and the creation of security and
such other documents, applications, undertakings, deeds, and declarations as may be
required and ta give such directions as may be deemed fit or as may be necessary or
desirable with regard to this [ssne"

] Application for issue of Debentures in Dematerialised form:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the Debt Listing Regulations, the Company do and hereby
seck admission of non-convertible debentures, to be issued by the Company, to the
depository system of Mational Securities Depositories Limited to issue the non-
convertible debentures in dematerialised form.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authorised Officers be and are herebhy severally
authorized to do acts and deeds as necessary 1o give effect to the above resolution.”

o) r Tt ation M

"RESOLVED THAT the Authaorised Officers be and are hereby severally authorized to
approve and finalize, on behalf of the Company, the terms of the information
memorandum and the private placement offer letter to be provided to the idencified
investors that propose to subscribe to the Debentures on a private placement basis, and
to sign and execute the aforementioned docurments on behalf of the Company.

RESOLYVED FURTHER THAT the Authorized Officers be and are hereby severally
authorized to pay all stzmp duty requiced to be paid for the Debenture [ssus in
accordance with the laws of the Republic of India and procure the stamped documents
from the relevant governmental authorities.

Page 4 of S
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the Autharized Officers be and are hereby severally
authorized to approve and finalize, sign, execute and deliver documents in relation to the
Issue as set out in this resojution and such other agreements, deeds, undertakings,
indemnity and documents as may be reguired by the debenture trustee, or any of them
in connection with the Debentures to be issued by the Company,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the Authorized Officers be and hereby severally authorized
to register or lodge for registration upon execution documents, letter{s) of undertakings,
declarations, and agreements and other papers or doecuments as may be required in

relation to any of the above with any registering authority or governmental authority
competent in that behalf.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the Authorized Officers be and are hereby severally
authorized to affix the Common Seal of the Company, if required, on the documents
related to Issue (including the Transaction Documents), and any of the said agreements

and documents, and any further documents and agreements as may be required from
time to time,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the company be and are hereby
authorized to delegate the powers as may be deemed necessary to do such acts and
execute such documents as may be required in connection with any of the matters relating
ro the issue of the Debentures,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT certified true copy of the aforesaid resolution by any one of

the Directors or the Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally
authorized to give effect to the above resolution.”

// Certified True Copy //

Pramod Kulkarni
Company Secrelary
M.No. A49450

Date: February 27, 2021
Place: Bengaluru

™
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ANNEXURE E — SHAREHOLDERS RESOLUTION

samasta

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE EXTRACTS OF THE SPECIAL RESOLUTION PASSED AT THE 157
EXTRA ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING OF THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY FOR THE
FINANCIAL YEAR 2020-202 1 HELD ON WEDNESI}AY 2000 DAY OF MAY, 2020 AT 10:30 A_M. AT
THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY SITUATED AT 110,/3, LALBAGH MAIN ROAD,
KRISHMNAPPA LAYOUT, BANGALORE- 560027

Approval of the limit of issuance of securities an Private Placement basks for the financial
year Z020-2021

"RESOLVER THAT pursuant to the provizions of Secrion 42 and other applicable provisions, IF any,
of the Companles Act, Z013, the Companies (Frospectus and Allotment of Spcurities] Rules, 2014 as
may bBe amended ffom time to dme, and in accordance with the enabling provisions of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and SEBI (Listing Obllgations and
Disclosures Requirement]. 2015 as may be amended from tme o time and other applicable
reguiations, censent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to issue, affer amd
allor Secured) Unsecured Listed, Unlisted, Rated/ Unrated, ¥an -Convertible/ Market Linkedy
Suboerdinated Debty Perpetual Debenturesy Fived Maturity Debentures or any ather securities of
the Company upto an amount of R8.2500 Crores (Rupees Twa Thousand Five Hundred Crore) on
prrvate placement basis n one or more tranches, om souch terms and eonditions as oy T
determined by the Board, from time to tme, and subject 1o complianog with the applicable law,
rules, directivns issued by the governmaent or any other regulatory auwtharlty, i this regacd.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT consenl of the mambers of the Company he and Is hereby accorded ta
the Board of Directors or any authorzed commitiee thereof for the purpoza of creating, offering,
issuing and allotting the Debentures and to do all such acts, deeds, maiters znd things, ax it may, in
Itg absolute discredon, deem necessary or expedient In the interest of the Company and with power
on behalf of the Company 1o determine the terms and conditions of the Essire of the securites, setrie
all the questiens, difficulties or douhts that may arise in this regard without requiring the Board 1o
secure any further consent or approval of the Members of the Company,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Venkatesh M., Managing Director © Mr, Shivaprakash Tr. Whole
Time DMrector ¢ Company Secretury / Chief Financial Offcer be and are hereby severally authorlbzed
to do all swch scts, deeds or things which may he necessary in order to give effect to the abowve
resolution.”

i sy B A A5OM
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For Samasta Microfin

Pramod Kulkamni
Company Secretary
M.No. A49450

Approval of the limit of issuance of securities on Private Placement basis for the financial
year Z020-2021

The Company in its Board Meeting held on May 11, 2020 has passed for the issvance of 2500 crores
Non- Convertible Debentures (NCD). Your company needs to pass Special Resolution for issuance of
debt securities pursuant to Rule 14 (2] of the Companies {Prospectus and Allotment of Securities)
Rules, 2014, Board has approved the Issuance of securities such as Secured SUnsecured /Listed
fUnlisted fRated flUnrated /Non - Convertible /Market Linked/Subordinated Debt /Perpetual
Debentures /Fixed Maturity Debentures upto 2500 crore for the FY, 2020-21 atits meeting held on
11% May, 2020. The price of the securities shall be decided by the Board or other autharized
Committee in accordance with applicable laws.

Pursuant to Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 14 of Companies (Prospectus and
Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, and such other appilicable provisions and rules, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 (including any amendment(s). statutory modification{s) or re-epactment
thereof] prior approval of members of the Company by way of special resolution is required for any
private placement of securities. The said approval may he taken only oence in a year for all the offers
on private placement basis for the non-convertible debt securities proposed to be issued during the
vear. The Board of Directors has recommended the passing of the speciat resolution as set out in
item no. 1 of the Neotice for issuance of debt securilies, None of the Directors or Key Managerial
Personnel of your Company including their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested,
financiaily or othenwise, in the proposed resolution,
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samasta

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF EXTRACTS OF THE MINUTES OF THE FIRST([157) EXTRA
ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING OF THE COMPANY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2018-
2019, HELD ON SATURDAY, APRIL 25, 2018 AT 10:00 A.M. AT THE REGISTERED
OFFICE OF THE COMPANY:

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

INCREASE IN BORBOWING LIMITS OF THE COMPAMNY:

To consider and if thought fir, to pass with or without modification(s], the following
restluticn as SPECIAL RESOLUTION:

"RESOLVED THAT, pursuant bo the provisions of section 180(1]{c] of the Companies Act
201F and all cther applicable provisions IF any, or any other law for the Eime being in
force (including amy statutory modification(s] or amendments(s} thereio or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force] and in terms of Articles of Association of
the Company, the Company hereby accords its consent to the Board of Directors (herein
after referred o as "the Board” which term shall be deemed to include the Resourcing &
Business Commities or any other Committee which the Board may constitetey authorize
for this purpose) of the Company to increase the borrowing limit of such sam or sums of
monies and for availing all kinds and types of loans, advances and credit facilities
inciuding issuance of debentures and other debts instruments, (spart from temporary
leans from the company’s bankers), from time to time, from the existing limit of Rs. 1,000
crore [Rupees One Thousand Crore Only] to Rs.5,000 crorve {Rupees Five Thousand Crore
Only) outstanding at any point of ime on account of principal, for and on behalf of the
Company. from its bankers, other banks, NBFCs, inancial institutions, companies, firms,
bodies corporate, or from any other person, in Inditan rupees or any foreign currencies,
as may be permitted under applicable laws, whether unsecured or secured,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, purscant to the provizions of Section 180(1] (a) of the
Companies Act 2013 and all other applicable provisions if any, or any other law for the
time being In force {including any statutory modification or amendment thereto or re-
enactment thereof for the time belng in force) and in terms of Articles of Association of
the Company, the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded o the Board of
Directors of the Company (which term shall be deemed e include the Resourcing &
Business Committee and any such committea which the Board mav canstitute/ authorize
for this purposa] for mortgaging/ charging/hvpothecating il or any of the immovahle
= Samasta Fhicrafimanncs Linited
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and mowvable properties and assets of the Company both present and future and the
whole or substantially the whole of the undertaking or the undertakings of the Company
on such terms and conditions, as may be agreed to between the Board and Lender(s) and
debenture holders or holders of orther instruments 1o secure the |lpans/
borrewings/credit facilities obtatned or as miaybe obtained or debenturesy bonds and
ather instruments issued or to be issued by the company to or in favour of the financial
Insgitutions, non-banking finance companies, co-operative banks, Investments institution
and their subsidiaries. banks, mutual funds, truses and other bodies corporate ar trustees
for the holders of debentures/ boads and/ or other instruments, which may exceed the
paid-up capital and free reserves provided that the total amawnt of monies borrowed )/
credit facilitles availed shall not at any time exceed a sum of Re.5,000 crore (Rupees Five
Thowusand Crore Only) cutstanding at any point of time on account of princ pal,

For and on behalf of
Samasta Microfinance Limited

Pramod Kulkarni
Company Secretary
A49450

Date: February 27, 2021
Flace: Banpalore

The Above mentioned resolution is valid and subsisting as on February 27, 2021

Page 2 af 2
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ANNEXURE F - FORM PAS 4

Form No. PAS -4
PART-A

PRIVATE PLACEMENT OFFER CUM APPLICATION LETTER
[Pursuant to Section 42 and Rule 14(3) of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014]

THIS DOCUMENT AS AN OFFER LETTER IN RESPECT OF 300 NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES AGGREGATING TO RS. 30,00,00,000/-
(RUPEES THIRTY CRORES ONLY) TO BE ISSUED BY SAMASTA MICROFINANCE LIMITED (“COMPANY”)

1.2 GENERAL INFORMATION:

A. Name, address, website, if any and other contact details of the Company, indicating both registered office and the Corporate

office:
Issuer / Company: Samasta
Microfinance Limited
Registered Office: 110/3, Lalbagh Main Road, Krishnappa Layout, Bangalore- 560027
Corporate
Office: 37A, Sannathi
Street, Theradi, Thiruvottiyur, Chennai- 600019
Telephone No.: 080-
42913500
Website:
www.samasta.co
.in
Fax:

+91 80 22244538
Contact Person:

Venkatesh.N
Email:

venkateshn@sa
masta.co.in
B. Date of Incorporation of the Company:
09/08/1995

C. Business carried on by the Company and its subsidiaries with the details of branches or units, if any;

Please refer to Section lll of the Information Memorandum titled ‘Issuer Information’.

D. Brief particulars of the management of the Company:
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Please refer to Section lll of the Information Memorandum titled ‘Issuer Information’

E. Name, addresses, Director Identification Number (DIN) and occupations of the directors:

Please refer to Section lll of the Information Memorandum titled ‘Issuer Information’

F. Management’s perception of Risk Factors:

Please refer to Section Il of the Information Memorandum titled ‘Risk Factors’

G. Details of defaults, if any, including the amounts involved, duration of default, and present status, in repayment of:

(i) Statutory Dues: Nil

(ii) Debentures and interest thereon: Nil

(iii) Deposits and interest thereon: Nil

(iv) Loans from banks or financial institutions and interest thereon: Nil

H. Name, designation, address and phone number, email ID of the nodal / compliance officer of the Company, if any, for the Issue:

Compliance/  Investor  Relations Pramod Kulkarni

Officer:

Designation/Department: Company Secretary

Address: 110/3, Lalbagh Main Road, Krishnappa Layout,

Bangalore- 560027

Tel. Nos.: 080-42913540
Fax Nos.: +91 8022244538
Email address(s): pramod@samasta.co.in

I.  Any Default in Annual filing of the company under the Companies Act, 2013 or the rules made thereunder: Nil

PARTICULARS OF THE OFFER:

Financial position of the | Please refer to Section IV of the Information Memorandum titled ‘Financial Information of the
Company for the last 3 | Issuer’.
financial years

Date of passing of Board | Board resolution dated May 11, 2020.
Resolution

Date of passing of | Shareholders resolution passed under Section 42 dated May 20, 2020.
resolution in  general
meeting, authorizing the
offer of securities

Kinds of securities offered | Rated, Listed, Senior, Secured, Redeemable, Taxable, Principal Protected, Market Linked, Non-
(i.,e. whether share or | Convertible Debentures

debentures) and class of
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security, the total number
other
securities to be issued

of shares or

Price at which the security
is being offered, including
premium if any, along with
justification of the price

At par i.e. Rs. 10,00,000/- per Debenture(At Par)

Name and address of the

valuer who performed
valuation of the security
offered and the basis on
which the price has been
arrived at along with
report of the registered

valuer

Not Applicable

date with
reference to which the
price has been arrived at

Relevant

Not Applicable

The class or classes of
persons to whom the
allotment is proposed to
be

Made

The Persons to whom this private placement offer cum application letter is being issued, being
, are eligible to apply for this private placement of

Debentures subject to fulfilling their respective investment norms/rules and compliance with laws
applicable to them by submitting all the relevant documents along with the Application Form
(“Eligible Investors”).

All Investors are required to comply with the relevant regulations/guidelines applicable to them for
investing in this issue of Debentures.

Intention of promoters,
key
managerial personnel to

directors or

subscribe to the offer
(applicable in case they
intend to subscribe to the
offer)

N.A.

The proposed time within
which the allotment shall
be completed

Allotment to be completed within 2 days from the date of issuance of Debentures

the
and

The
proposed

names  of
allottees
the percentage of post
private placement capital
that may be held by them

N.A

The change in control, if
any, in the company that
would occur consequent
to the private placement

N.A.

The number of persons to

whom allotment on

Issue Price
16.83 (including Premium of Rs. 6.83)

No. of Shares
2,97,08,853

Date
30.09.2019
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preferential basis/private 04.03.2020 2,82,48,587 17.7 (including Premium of Rs. 7.7)
placement/ rights issue | | 24.03.2020 2,82,48,587 17.7 (including Premium of Rs. 7.7)
has already been made 21.12.2020 5,65,68,196 15.91(including Premium of Rs. 5.91)
during the year, in terms

of number of securities as

well as price

The justification for the | N.A.

allotment proposed to be
made for consideration
other than cash together
with valuation report of
the registered valuer

Amount, which the
Company intends to raise
by way of proposed offer
of securities

Rs. 30,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty Crores Only)

Terms of raising of
securities

Refer Term Sheet

Proposed time schedule
for which the Issue is valid

Issue Opening Date: 2nd March, 2021

Issue Closure Date: 2nd March, 2021

Purpose and objects of the
Issue

The proceeds of the Issue will be used for onward lending, refinancing of existing debt and other
general corporate purposes of the Issuer.

Contribution being made
by the Promoters or
directors either as part of
the offer or separately in
furtherance of the object

Nil

Principal terms of assets
charged as security, if
applicable

Security by way of first ranking exclusive charge in the nature of hypothecation over the identified
recievables of the Company.

The details of significant
and material  orders
passed by the Regulators,
Courts and  Tribunals
impacting  the  going
concern status of the
company and its future
operations

Nil

The pre-issue and post-
issue shareholding pattern
of the company

There will be no change in shareholding pattern of the Company pursuant to the issue, as non-
convertible debentures are being issued in terms of this private placement offer cum application
letter. The details of the shareholding pattern of the Company can be found in Section Ill of the
Information Memorandum titled ‘Issuer Information’.

MODE OF PAYMENT FOR SUBSCRIPTION:

o Cheque
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DISCLOSURE WITH REGARD TO INTEREST OF DIRECTORS, LITIGATION, ETC:

Any financial or other material interest of the
directors, promoters or key managerial
personnel in the Issue and the effect of such
interest in so far as it is different from the
interests of other persons

NIL

Details of any litigation or legal action pending or
taken by any Ministry or Department of the
Government or a statutory authority against any
Promoters of the Company during the last 3
(three) years immediately preceding the year of
the issue and any direction issued by such
Ministry or Department or statutory authority
upon conclusion of such litigation or legal action
shall be disclosed

NIL

Remuneration of directors (during the current
year and last 3 (three) financial years)

Name of Director FY 18 FY 19 FY 20
Mr. Badrinarayanan S. 58,332 85,554 122,221
Mr. Vikramana A. 58,332 99,998 155,554
Mr. Ramanathan A. 47,222 88,888 88,888
Ms. Malini B Eden - 77,778 111,110

Related party transactions entered during the
last 3 (three) financial years immediately
preceding the year of issue of this Disclosure
Document including with regard to loans made
or, guarantees given or securities provided

Please refer to Annexure 1 annexed hereto.

Summary of reservations or qualifications or
adverse remarks of auditors in the last 5 (five)
financial years immediately preceding the year
of issue of this Disclosure Document and of their
impact on the financial statements and financial
position of the Company and the corrective
steps taken and proposed to be taken by the
Company for each of the said reservations or
qualifications or adverse remark

NIL
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Details of any inquiry, inspections or
investigations initiated or conducted under the
Companies Act or any previous company law in
the last 3 (three) years immediately preceding
the year of issue in the case of the Company and
all of its subsidiaries. Also if there were any were
any prosecutions filed (whether pending or not),
fines imposed, compounding of offences in the
last 3 (three) years immediately preceding the
year of issue and if so, section-wise details
thereof for the Company and all of its

subsidiaries

NIL

Details of acts of material frauds committed
against the Company in the last 3 (three) years,
if any, and if so, the action taken by the company

Please refer to ‘Annexure 2’ annexed hereto

FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY:

The capital structure of the Company in the following manner in a tabular form:

The authorised, issued, subscribed

Please refer to Section Il of the Information Memorandum titled ‘Issuer Information’.

and paid up capital (number of

securities, description and

aggregate nominal value)

Size of the Present Issue

Rs. 30,00,00,000/-

Paid-up Capital:
a. After the offer:

b. After the conversion of
Convertible Instruments

(if applicable):

Not applicable in case of this Issue

Share Premium Account:
a. Before the offer:

b. After the offer:

Not applicable in case of this Issue

Details of the existing share capital of the Issuer:

Please refer to Section Il of the Information Memorandum titled ‘Issuer Information’.

Details of allotments made by the
Company in past 1 (one) year
along with details of allotment
made for consideration other than
cash

Nil

Profits of the Company, before
and after making provision for tax,

for the 3 (three) financial years

140




Private & Confidential — For Private Circulation Only

immediately preceding the date of Particulars EY 20 FY 19 FY 18
circulation of this Disclosure
Document Profit Before 1,403.30 724.31 93.88
Tax (In
million)
Profit After 1,073.04 532.09 60.94
Tax (In
million)
Dividends declared by the
Company in respect of the said 3 | | p_ o 1ars FY 20 FY 19 FY 18
(three) financial years; interest
coverage ratio (Includes hedging | | Dividend (Rs 118.0 NIL NIL
expenses and forex loss) for last | | million)
three years (cash profit after tax | | Interest 1.79 1.61 1.14
plus interest paid/interest paid) Coverage
Ratio

A summary of the financial
position of the Company as in the
3 (three) audited balance sheets
immediately preceding the date of
issue of this Disclosure Document

Please refer to Section IV of the Information Memorandum titled ‘Financial Information of the

Issuer’

Audited Cash Flow Statement for
the 3 (three) years immediately
preceding the date of circulation
of this Disclosure Document

Please refer to Section IV of the Information Memorandum titled ‘Financial Information of the

Issuer’

Any change in accounting policies
during the last 3 (three) years and
their effect on the profits and the
reserves of the Company

Yes, there was a change in the accounting policy from IGAAP to IND- AS, below are the impact

on the reserves and profits.
Equity Reconciliation

Particulars

Year ended
March 31' 2018

Equity as per Indian GAAP 1,16,97,96,865
Add/(less):

- Effective interest rate on financial assets (5,65,84,019)
- Effective interest rate on financial liabilities 1,23,78,667
- Expected credit loss (1,52,60,633)
- Interest strip amortisation 20,88,919
- Interest recognition on NPAs (16,30,784)
- Deferred tax impact on above adjustments 1,70,17,864
Equity as per Ind AS 1,12,78,06,878
Net Profit Reconciliation

Year ended

Particulars

March 31' 2018

Profit after tax as per Indian GAAP

2,37,62,849
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Add/(less):

- Fair valuation of Investments

- Effective interest rate on financial assets

- Effective interest rate on financial liabilities
- Expected credit loss

- Interest strip amortisation

- Interest recognition on NPAs

- Reclassification of actuarial gains/losses on post-employment
benefits to OCI

- Deferred tax impact on above adjustments

(4,53,93,226)
1,39,57,011
7,82,57,159

20,88,920
30,73,795

2,67,817

(1,50,70,076)

Profit after tax as per Ind AS (Before OCI) 6,09,44,250
Other Comprehensive Income
- Reclassification of actuarial gains/losses on post-employment
benefits from P&L (2,67,818)
- Deferred tax impact on above adjustments

77,989
Total Comprehensive Income 6,07,54,420
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SAMASTA MICROFINANCCE LIMITED
A public limited company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956
Date of Incorporation: 9™ August, 1995; CIN: U65191KA1995PLC057884
Registered Office:: 110/3, Lalbagh Main Road, Krishnappa Layout, Bangalore- 560027, Karnataka
Telephone No.: 080-42913540
Website: https://samasta.co.in/

(PLEASE READ THE INSTRUCTIONS GIVEN IN THE MEMORANDUM CAREFULLY BEFORE FILLING THIS FORM)

Application Serial

Date -

Having read and understood the contents of the Disclosure Document of Private Placement, We apply for allotment of Bond. The amount payable
on application as shown below is remitted herewith. We bind ourselves by the provisions as contained in the Memorandum.

The application shall be for a minimum of one bond of Rs.10,00,000/- each and in multiple 1 bonds thereafter

We are applying FOR OFFICE USE ONLY Interest . Percent per
for Bonds under Rate annum
No of Bonds (in Date of receipt of application Date of realization of cheque /
figures) draft
Face value Rs. 10,00,000/- Staff Initial
(in words) (Rupees Ten lakh only)

Total Amount (in
figures)

Total Amount (in
words)

Banking only through RTGS (*Banking details of SAMASTA overleaf)

UTR No.

APPLICANT’S NAME IN FULL

ADDRESS IN FULL (Do not repeat name, Post Box No. is not sufficient)

Pincode Telephone
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DEPOSITORY NAME - NSDL / CDSL DP NAME
DP-ID CLIENT ID.
Tax Payer’s / Applicant’'s PAN PAN/GIR No IT Circle/Ward IT CIRCLE / WARD

or GIR No. [Refer Instruction 7]

TOBEFILLED IN BY INSTITUTIONAL INVESTORS ONLY

NAME OF AUTHORISED SIGNATORY DESIGNATION SIGNATURE
1 1. 1
2 2. 2
3 3. 3
RTGS details:
Bank Account No. Name of the Bank and Branch
IFS Code

(Kindly remit the funds as per EBP guidelines on the Pay-in date) (If applicable)

Acknowledgement Slip
Samasta Microfinance Limited
110/3, Lalbagh Main Road, Krishnappa Layout,
Bangalore- 560027, Karnataka

Application Form

Serial No.

Received from:

An Application for Bonds alongwith

UTR No. Dated

For Rs.

Rate of Interest 10.00% (SA) p.a, ( % p.a.)

SAMASTA’S SEAL
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INSTRUCTIONS

Banking Details — Through ICCL

Application form must be completed in full in Block letters in English. A blank space must be left between two or more parts of the name
Signatures should be made in English or in any of the Indian languages

Application forms duly completed in all respects may be lodged with SAMASTA Bengaluru.

Receipt of applications will be acknowledged by SAMASTA in the Acknowledgement Slip appearing below the Application Form. No separate
receipt will be issued.

All applicants should mention their Permanent Account Number or the GIR number allotted under Income-Tax Act, 1961 and the Income-Tax
Circle/Ward/District. In case neither PAN/GIR number has been allotted, the fact of non-allotment should be mentioned in the application form in
the space provided. Income Tax as applicable will be deducted at source at the time of payment of interest. Those desirous of receiving the
interest without deduction of tax are required to submit a certificate in the form 15 AA issued by the assessing officer

SAMASTA is entitled, at its sole discretion to accept or reject any application, in part or in full, without assigning any reason thereof. An application
which is not complete in all respects is liable to be rejected

The applications must be accompanied by certified true copies of (i) Power of Attorney/Board Resolution or authorization empowering the
investment and (ii) duly attested specimen signatures of the authorized persons.

Application once submitted and acknowledged by SAMASTA cannot be withdrawn.

Funds to be realized into our bank account as given in the Banking instructions, before 10.30AM on the Pay-in-date.
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DECLARATION

The Company and each of the directors of the Company hereby confirm and declare that:

a. the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder, including the compliances in relation
to making a private placement of the Debentures;

b. the compliance with the Act and the rules does not imply that payment of dividend or interest or repayment of Debentures, if
applicable, is guaranteed by the Central Government;

c. the monies received under the Issue shall be used only for the purposes and objects indicated in this offer letter;

| am authorized by the Board of Directors of the Company vide resolution number dated
to sign this form and declare that all the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder
in respect of the subject matter of this Disclosure Document and matters incidental thereto have been complied with. Whatever is
stated in this form and in the attachments thereto is true, correct and complete and no information material to the subject matter of
Disclosure Document has been suppressed or concealed and is as per the original records maintained by the Promoters subscribing to

the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association.

It is further declared and verified that all the required attachments have been completely, correctly and legibly attached to this form.

Signed for and on behalf of

Sd/-

Name: Venkatesh N
Authorised Signatory

Date:

Place:

Attachments:

Copy of Board resolution
Copy of shareholders’ resolution

Optional attachments, if any

REFER TO DECLARATION (Table of Contents)
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Annexure 1

Related party transactions entered during the last 3 (three) financial years

Nature of Relationship

Name of the Related Party

Holding Company

IIFL Finance Limited

Fellow Subsidiary Company

India Infoline Home Finance Limited

Others

IIFL Management Services Limited

IIFL Investment Adviser And Trustee Services Limited

IIFL Wealth Management Limited

IIFL Alternate Asset Advisors Limited

IIFL Wealth Finance Limited

Key Management Personnel

Mr. N. Venkatesh Managing Director

Mr. D. Shivaprakash Whole-time Director

Mr .Sumit Bali Non Executive Directior upto 24/06/2020

Mr .Venkatraman Non Executive Directior upto 16/09/19

Mr Gauav Malholtra Non Executive Directior upto 06/12/19

Mr. A. Vikraman Independent Director

Mr. A. Ramanathan Independent Director

Ms. Malini B Eden, Women Director

Mr. Badrinarayan Seshadri Independent Director

Mr. Anantha Kumar T Chief Financial Officer wef 21/10/19

Mr. Shreepal Jain Chief Financial Officer upto 30/08/19

Mr. Shreyas D Company Secretary upto 14/08/20

Mr. Sutheja K Company Secretary upto 31/07/19

Mr. Monu Ratra, Non-executive Director w.e.f. 24/06/2020

Mr. Pramod Kulkarni - Company Secretary w.e.f 14/08/20

Nature of Transaction

F.Y. 2019-20

Service Fee on
Business
Correspondence-
Income

Interest Expense
Interest Income
Dividend Paid

Loans

Purchased

Inter Corporate
Deposit Received from
IIFL Finance Limited
Inter Corporate
Deposit Repaid to IIFL
Finance Limited

Holding Company

104.79

36.24
8.42
116.53
1,723.50

610.00

610.00

Fellow Direct Other related Key Total

Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries parties Managerial

Personnel

and their

relatives
- - - - 104.79
- - - - 36.24
- - - - 8.42
- - - - 116.53
- - - - 1,723.50
- - - - 610.00
- - - - 610.00
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Inter Corporate
Deposit Given to IIFL
Finance Limited

Inter Corporate
Deposit Repaid by IIFL
Finance Limited
Equity Share Capital
Received
Others(Assignment
Payment)
Remuneration to Key
Managerial Personnel
Outstanding Balance
as on March 31,2020
Inter Corporate
Deposit - Holding
Company

Sundry Payable -
Holding Company
(after TDS deduction)
Sundry Receivable -
Holding Company
(after TDS deduction)
FY 2018-19

Service Fee on
Business
Correspondence-
Income

Interest Expense

Arranger Fee Expenses
Reimbursement of
Expenses

Inter Corporate
Deposit Received from
IIFL Finance Limited
Inter Corporate
Deposit Repaid to IIFL
Finance Limited

Cash Credit Facility
received from IIFL
Finance Limited

Cash Credit Facility
Repaid to IIFL Finance
Limited

Loan Repaid to IIFL
Finance Limited
Equity Share Capital
Received

Market Linked

1,650.00

1,150.00

1,500.00

3.39

500.00

0.27

1.12

189.91

11.31

0.13

3,345.00

4,093.62

200.00

200.00

196.12

1,000.00
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- - 1,650.00

- - 1,150.00

- - 1,500.00

- - 3.39

- 17.86 17.86

- - 500.00

- - 0.27

- - 1.12

- - 196.05
- - 11.31
106.72 - 106.72

- - 0.13

- - 3,345.00

- - 4,093.62

- - 200.00

- - 200.00
- - 196.12

- - 1,000.00
1,214.99
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Debentures issued - - - 1,214.99 -
during the year
Remuneration to Key
Managerial Personnel - - - - 17.41 17.41
Outstanding Balance
as on March 31,2019 - - - - - -
Sundry Receivable -
Holding Company
(after TDS deduction) 17.19 - - - - 17.19
FY 2017-18

Service Fee on

Business

Correspondence-

Income 65.25 1.20 - - - 66.45
Interest Expense 62.26 - - 0.01 - 62.27

Rent Expenses - - - - - -
Inter Corporate

Deposit Received 3,994.50 - - - - 3,994.50
Loan received 315.00 - - - - 315.00
Inter Corporate

Deposit Repaid 3,245.88 - - - - 3,245.88
Loan Repaid 118.88 - - - - 118.88
Equity Share Capital

Received 500.00 - - - - 500.00
Remuneration to Key

Managerial Personnel - - - - 11.65 11.65

Outstanding Balance

as on March 31,2018 - - - - - -
Inter Corporate

Deposit - Holding

Company 748.62 - - - - 748.62
Term Loans -Holding
Company 196.12 - - - - 196.12
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Annexure 2

Details of material fraud committed against the Company in the last 3 years

Financial Year ended March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020

Nature of Frauds Cash Misappropriation Cash Misappropriation Cash Misappropriation
Aggregate the amount 40,90,965 21,23,589 4,34,252

involved (in Rs. lakh)

Corrective actions were taken o Chaired 3 Fraud Control Meets with peer MFls across the country to adopt industry best
by Samasta practices on fraud prevention.

e  Rolled out online learning modules on Fraud Prevention & Awareness.
e  Monthly Fraud awareness campaigns are being cascaded for fraud prevention.

e Devised Customer Declaration Forms for all products to ensure compliance and mitigate
the risk of fraudulent activities.

e Vigilance & empanelled Retired Police officers jointly conducted training sessions on IPC
sections and fraud trends/triggers.
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SAMASTA MICROFINANCE LIMITED
CIN: U65191KA1995PLCOSTRE
Registercd Office: Mo. 418, 124, 4th Cross, Gth Main, Wilson Genden, Bangalore - S60027,

BALAMCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2018

As at As at
Particulars Nate Mo, arch :'I 18 March :].!II'I?
| EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1] Sharcholders® funds
(a) Shane Capial 2 1,14.34,48,118 B1.34, 46,110
() Reserve and Sumplus 3 559 16,061 3.00,845, 348
1,16,93,62,171 §4,35,32 458
|(2) Share application money pending slletment
[3) Mon-Cumrent Liablilties
[8) Lorsg-lerm bomawings 4 1,85,64_14,B08 £68,26.70,317
(&) Oehar Long-term kabiltes . -
{£) Long-term provisaons 5 10,09,84,530 2,35 &7 235
z,n_s\,?m 239 70,6227, 542
{4) Current Liabilities
{a) Short-tarm bomowings L 1.37,66.02,650 -
{b) Trade payables 7 3,06,78,874 8,14,85 650
{c) Other cumant kabikkas 8
Curmrent malurities of long lerm bomowings 212,93, 77,029 T8,36,37,803
“Orihers 60,31,67,056 3,85,83,552
{d) Short-term provisions g 1,87.81,207 14.50,000
4,17 85,58 B 16 90,51,37,008
TOTAL T.40,53,18, 237 i.iﬂarm
il ASSETS
(1) Nan-current assets
{8) Fiued assats A0
{l) Tangiblg essets 44504, 269 2,13,15419
{ii} Intangitle assets 9,25, 02 7.25,20
(i) Capilal work-n-progress - -
{iv) Intangile assels under development - -1
4,54,29 306 2.0 40,638
{b) Mon-cumant investments 1" 1,05,00,000 1,05,00.000
{c) Deferred tax assels (Mel) 12 24653572 AT AT.0MS
{d) Long-term boans & advances 13 )
=Loars 2.11,33,82.081 36.891,65.027
Lehers - -
{e) Other pon-cuman assets 14 33,58,21.406 15,86.65.088
2.48,43,67.069 54,31,17,930
(2} Current assots '
{a) Cumant invesimenis
{B) Inventories . N
(€] Trade receivables 15 3,70.16,290 98,52, 907
{d) Cash and Bank balancas 1 459586218 56,14, 82.281
(&) Shon-lem loans & advances 17
Loans 4,22 67,03,969 1,06. 73,714,077
Lhers 6,03.11.528 41,938,856
(1) Crihver cument assels 18 9,10,03.836 4,68.90.796
4,87,55 21.862 1,68,97,38 435
TOTAL T.40,53,18.227 2,25,48,97,006

|Significant Accountng Palcies Bnd Nots 1o Accounts

As per our attached report of even date

Far Gowthama & Com
:mmmu&x & Cﬂ#ﬁa For and an behall of the Beard of Direcicrs
Firm Mo, 00581782 —~ “f& of Samasta Mic
(o i Y] Lﬁ.q:&.:ﬂ s
W_jei *
H.V. Gowthama £ M. Verkabesh
Partner * = Managng Direcier
M No. 014353 ¢ ' DIM : 1018821
'S__;,%
R [ B 5V
T. Anantha Kumar
Chied Financial Officar
Place: Bangalare

Diale: 26.04.2018

. Shi
Whicha-lime Director
N : 02216802

K. J. Suihejs
Company Secretary




SAMASTA MICROFINANCE LIMITED
CIN: UB5191KA1995PLCO5TEE4

Registered Office: No. 418, 1/2A, 4th Cross, 6th Main, Wilson Garden, Bangalore - 560027,

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
T 4

Revenue
{A) Revenue from Operations 19 95,98,05,592 32,03,82,354
(B) Other Income 20 B0,25679 80,64,934
{C) Total Revenue (A+B) 96,78,31,271 32,84,47,288
(D) Expenses

a) Employee benefits expenses 21 28,00,81,104 11,21,74,370

b) Finance costs 22 31,30,24,282 14,63,08,160

c) Depreciation and amrotization expenses 10 1,30,81,181 45,80,939

d) Administrative and Other expenses 23 12,27,25,532 4,86,32,269

&) Provisions / write off receivables under financial activity 24 19,51,23,626 1,05,17,255
Total Expenses (D) 92,40,35,725 32,22 12,992
(E) Profit for the year before.tax-(C-D) 4,37,95,546 62,34,295
(F) Tax expenses

{a) Current tax 3,65,00,000 14,50,000

{b) Deferred tax 12 (1,98,76,557) (19,63,203)

{c) MAT credit availed and utilised 13,42,390 {13,42,390)
Total tax expense (F) 1,79,65,833 (18,55,593)
(G) Profit for the year after tax (E-F) 2,58,29,713 80,89 888
(H) Profit for the period from continuing operations 2,58,29,713 B80,89,888
() Loss for the period from discontinuing operations - -
(J) Tax expense of discontinuing operations - -
(K) Profit from discontinuing operations(after tax) (1-J) - -
(L) Profit for the period { H+K) - -
(H) Earnings per Equity Share (Face value of ¥10/- each):
(a) Basic 0.32 0.59
(b) Diluted 0.32 0.59

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

As per our attached report of even date

As per our attached report of even date
For Gowthama & Company
Chariered Accountants

Firm Mo, UUEQWiwh & Cﬁ"’fﬂ

w 'y .
(AL *
H.V. Gowthanid :

Partner * . 5

M. No. 014353 % Gﬁs‘
“Fngp A

Place: Bangalore
Date: 26.04.2018

N. Venkatesh
Managing Director
DIM : 01018821

TW—’\._

T. Anantha Kumar
Chief Financial Officer

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Samasta Microfinance Limited

D. Shivaprakash
Whole-time Director
DIN : 02216802

K. J. Sutheja
Company Secretary




SAMASTA MICROFINANCE LIMITED
CIN: Us5191KA1995PLCO5T8E4
Registered Office: No. 418, 1/2A, 4th Cross, 6th Main, Wilson Garden, Bangalore - S60027.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars March :1. 2018 March 31, 2017
T
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Met Profit Before Tax 437,95 545 62,34.205
Adjustments for:
Depraciation 1.30,81,181 45,680,939
Dividend on Mutual funds - (69,47 850)
Short Term Capiral Gain (48,51,909)) =
Provisions for Standard and Non Perfoming Assets 4,90.45,000 75,58,375
Bad Debis Written Off 12,06.78,626 29,58,880
Interest on Fixed Deposits {1.86,03,421)( {1,30,81.047)
Interest on Income Tax 15,009,368 -
Loss on sale of Fixed assels - 87 965
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes A 20,46,54 391 13,91,557
Working Capital Changes:
(Increase) / Decrease in trade and olher receivables . (2.80,63,363) {56,78,91,098)|
| {increase) / Decrease in Short term loans and advances (3,21,55,02 584) {1.04,98254)
{Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets (4.41,13,540) (1,77,87 465)
{increase) / Decrease in Loans & Advances {1,91,39,40,690) {19,08,84,377)
{Increase) / Decrease in Other Man- Current Assels {16,15,65,145) {3,54,54,235)
Increase / (Decrease) in Long term Liabilities 2,02,65,31,224 {33,97,01,973)
Increase / {Decrease) in long term provisions 7.59,77,405 (15,79,164)|
Increase / (Decrease) in Other curreni liabilities (1,65,72,75,007) 40,31,55,.821
Increase / {Decrease) in Irade payables (5,08,56,776) -
Changes in Working Capital B {4,96,88,08,475)] {76,06,40,745)
Cash generated from operations A+B {4,76,41,54,084) (75,92 49,188)
Imcome taxes paid (1,69,32 764) (78,69.013)
Net cash from operating activities {4,78,10,86,848) | (76,71,18,201}|
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale of Fixed Assels 29,73 5.90,500
Dividend frem Mutual Funds - 69,47 850
Shorl Term Capital Gain 48.51,909
Purchase of Fixed Assets (3,64,99,570) (1,64,26.835)|
Interest on Fixed Deposils 1,86,03 421 1,30 81,047
Net Cash used in Investing activities {1.30,14,508) 41,82,562
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of Equity Share Capital 50,00,00,000 50,00,00,000
Redemption of Preference Share Capital - -
Proceeds from Bormowings 6,39,72 27 364 1,36,12,86.036
Repayment of Borrowings (2,20,50,22,072) (66,56,04,845)
Dividends paid (including DOT) - (19,39.376)
Met cash used in financing activities 4,69,22,05,292 1,19,37 41,815
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents (10,18,96,064) 43,08,16,176
Cash and cash equivalents as at 01.04.2017 56,14,682,281 13,06,66,105
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31.03.2018 45,95 86,218 56,14,82,281

The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method™ as set out in Accounting Standard -3 en Cash Flow Statement.

As per our atlached reporl of even date
For Gowthama & Company
Charerad Accountants
&C
whboa LOg, A

)

Firm Mo, D-Clr'l;';ﬂll's
¥ %
Pariner

ST
! *
e
M. No. 014353 . g

M 0
H.V. Gowthama <3 i::ﬁ,_d
"1_‘.
o m@ﬁ

Place: Bangalore
Date: 26.04 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Direclors

of Samasta Microfinance Limiled

Veecmaane A

M. Ven;am:h
Managing Direclor
DN : 01018821

TA_RIA

T. Anantha Kumar

Chief Financial Officer

-
D. Shivaprakash
Whaole-time Direclor
DIN : 02216802

K. J. Sulhaja
Company Secretary
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SAMASTA MICROFINANCE LIMITER
CIN: USS191 KAI995PLCOSTERS

Registered Office: 110/3, Lal Bagh Main Rd, Krishnappa Layout, Bengaluru, Karnataka- 560 027
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2020
{Amount in T)
. ) An i As af
dsinsese HolelNo, March 31,2020 March 31, 2049
ASSETS
1 Financial Assels
(n) Cash and cash equivadents 4 2.00,90,95,484 55,6147,044
(b) Bonk Balawce other than (a) above 4 79,96,08,628 40,33.80,266
(e) Dervative financial instruments 3 21278203 5,54.22.749
() Receivables
(i)Trade Receivables L] 1,8539,576 3.61,93.926
(i1} Other Receivabiles i
{e} Loans 7 21.87,38.82,351 17,489,784, 127
() lovestments ] 5,00,000 1,12,21,636
{g) Other Fimancial asscts a9 64 84,83 533 15,99,28,0%4
1 Non-Financisl Assets
(1) Otber non-Huancial assels 1 1,04,66 860 36,10,243
(h) Current tax assets (Net) #,18,93,595 2,62,35,122
(€) Deferred tax Assets (Net) i 6,47,77,568 5,05 .40 369
(d) Investment Property 12 5.58,196 584,875
(¢} Property, Plant and Equipment 3 8,07,84,708 9,52,34,333
(f) Ripht to Use 13 46345783 -
() Capstal work-in-progress 14 - 75,53,750
() Other Lutangible assets 15 31,B5.494 49,469,146
Total Assels 26,61,93,99.979 19,30,%0,09,680
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
I Financial Liabilitics
{a) Derivative financial instruments 5 2,12,78,203 5.54.22, 749
(b} Payables
(1) Trade Payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro T nned skl P : -
(ii) total autstanding dues of ereditors other than micro enterprises and 16
small enterprises 3,53,07,295 111288157
(c) Debt Securities 17 4,52,12,54,170 5,55,62,62,246
(1) Borrowings (Other than Delnt Securitics) 1% 13,89,54,64 874 9,04,G7,73,401
{e) Subordinated Liahilities 14 99.25,53,593 98,90.20.737
(0 Lease Liability 20 4,67,30,787 -
(g) Other finuncial labilities 21 195,38 53 145 84,7030, 102
2 Nan-Financial Liabilities
(a) Current tax labilities {Net) - -
(b)) Provisions 22 3,70,61,793 1,82 32,890
() Other non-financial Habililics 23 2,43,42,225 2,51,96,808
3 Equity
() Equity Shure capital ] 2,64.24,51,400 1.78,08.91,130
() Other Equity 25 2.44,91,02.494 88,53.91370
Total Liabilities and Equity 26,61,93.99,.979 19,30,90,09,630
As per our attached report of even date el
Faor ¥ Sankar Aiyar & Co ;.::r-‘-_'_-‘:‘—-i:-
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf af the Board of Directors ROFAAN
Firm Na. 1092068W of Samasta Microfimance Limited N
A W N Z} . r@ .
i v
§ Venkalaramun ; " N, Venkatesh
Partner "P Managing Direclor
M. No. 623116 DIN : 81018821 I :
5/ CHARTERED Q - /}
o /&} ;
S\MCOUNTANTS)s UAauus_ [
Ansiiha Komar T .5l
Chief Fianeial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Bamgalore
ate: 11-05-2020




SAMASTA MICROFINANCE LIMITED
CIN: U6S191 KAT995PLCOSTES4
Registered Oifice; 11003, Lal Bagh Main Rd, Krishnappa Layeul, Bengaluru, Karmataka- 560 027

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(Amount in Rs ¥)

i Year Ended Year Ended
Fartisubus NoteNO. | wpareh 31,2020 March 31,2019
Revenue from operations
Interest Income 26 5.10,18,73,458 2974198671
Fees and commission Income 27 19,23,56,728 25.65,19,084
Net gain on derecognition oF financial insteuments under smostised cost category 28 4540,16.216 10,58,04,143
Total Revenue from operations 5,74.82,46,402 3,33,65,21,901
Othier Income 29 728,531,966 6,10,13,649
Tatal Income 582.10,78,.368 3.39,71535.550
Expenses
Finance Costs a0 1,77.57.47 988 1184552612
Net loss on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost catepory kil 12,90.86,077 8.08.16,680
Impainment on financial instrmients a2 46,61,13,155 16,01 55,517
Employee Benefits Expenses 13 1,35.72,20,037 84,94,71,292
Depreciation, amonization and impairment 7.34,82 548 5.46,59.854
Oithers expenses 34 58,51,09.650 34,35.73.526
Total Expenses 4,38,67,59455 2,67,32,29,482
Profit before exceptional items and tax 1434318913 72,43,06068
Exceptional items (Refer Note No 48) 3,1021,709
Profit before tax 1403297 204 T2.43,06,068
Tax Expense:
Current Tax 33.61,54.696 19.92,82.744
‘Tax related to Earlier Years 11,16,300 -
Deferred Tax {138.68.165) (70,68.355)
Total Tax Expense 32.34,02.831 19,22,14.388
|Profit Before impact of rate Change on Opening Deferred Tax 1,07,98,94 374 53.2091,679
{impact of Change in the tax rate on Opening deferred tax 68,359,050 -
Profit for the period 1073035324 53,20,91,679
Other Comprehensive Income
{A) (1) liems that will not be reclassificd to profit or foss (66,95,982) {61,48,967)
(a) Remeasurement of defined benelit liabilities/(assets)
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 16,85.245 17.90,579
Subdotal (A) (50,10,737) (13,58.388)
(B (i) lems that will be reclassified 1o profit or loss
(i) Income tax relafing (o ilems that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Subtotal ()
Oihier Comprehensive Inconie (50,710,737 (43,58,38K)
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (Comprising Profit and other Comprehensive
Income for the period) 1,06,50,24,587 51,77,33,291
Earnings per equity share
Basic (Rs.) 547 386
Diluted (Rs,) 547 1B

As per our altached report of even date
For ¥V Sankar Aiyar & Co

Chartered Accountanis

Firm No. 109208

5 Venknturnman
Partner
M. No. 023118

Place: Bangalore
Date: 11-05-2020

For and on behnll of the Board of Directors
of Samasta Microfinance Limired
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Managing Director
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SAMASTA MICROFINANCE LIMITED
CIN: U6SI91 KAI9ISPLCOSTES4

Repistered Office: 110/3, Lal Bagh Main Rd,Krishnappn Layout, Bengalury, Karnataks- S60 027

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(Amonnt in )
SR. Year Ended Year Ended
Mo, Particuiars March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
| Cash flows from eperaring setivities
Net profit before faxation, and extraordinary item 1,40,32,97,204 T2,43,06,068
Adjusiments for
Deprecintion 7.34,82,548 546,59 83
MNet (gamn) / loss on d pnitian of i ial i under
cost category (45,15,87.630) (10,46,87.036)
Interest income (6.21,44,496) £2,56,06,242)
Short Term Capital Gain {6,74,22.753) (58631721
Gratnity and Leave Salary 1,38,18.165 99.99,902
Dividend income {1,50,553) (9.21,636)
Inlarest expeee
Provisions for Stamdard and Non Performing Assets 46.61,13.155 16,01.55,517
Bad Debts Wiitten OIT 12.940.86,078 £ (08, 16,680
Operating profit before working capital chunges 1.50,44,91,718 84,00,91.386
Increase in Trade Receivables 1,76,54.350 17,22.363
{Increase) / Deerease in loans (5,57.10,97.456) (11,43.40,64.729)
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Assets {4,90,26,568) (8,72,30,330)
{Increase) / Decrease in Loans & Advinces (2,65,65.698) (1.24,84.069)
Incrense / (Decrease) in Long term Lisbilijes L1031 44922 93,21.86,594
I N ) in Other abali - (1.B1,12,773)
Inerense 7 (Decrease) m trade payables (7,59.80.862) 8.72.43.880 |
Changes in Working Capital (4,60,18,71,312) (10,53,07.39.063)
Cash pencrated from operations (3,09,73,79,594) (9,69,06,47,677)
| Income taxes pad (32,16,59,136) {23,68,94,675)
Net cash from operating activities (3,41,90,38,730) (9,92,75,42,352)
2 Cash lows from investing activities
| Purchase of fixed assets (5.14.71,776) (11.76,10.952)
Proceeds from sale of equipment 77,16 481 34,289
Purchase of Investments (32,95,11,73,688) (19,31,25.58,628)
(Incrense)Decrease in fixed deposit (lien marked) (1.64,96,21,821) 39843335
(Increase)Decrease in Other Deposit (39,62,28,362) (14,49,01 376)
Sale of lnvesimenis 33.02.93,18077 19,37,11,90.349
I regetverd 4.88.08.155 1.76.06.659
Dividends recerved 1.50.553 4,16,998
Net cash from investing activities (1,96,2502,381) (14,59,79,326)
¥ Cash fows from financing activities
Praceeds from issuance of share capital 1.:49.99.99.976 1,60,00,00,000
Proceeds from long-term borrowimgs 1547.27,16,194 17,5250 49,980
| Repayment of long-term homrowings {11,63,90,83,748) (8.14.97,18,702)
Dividends paid (14,22,53,170) >
Met cash used in financing activities 5.19,13,79,252 10,37.53.31.278
4 Net incrense in cash and cash equivalents (19.01,61,859) 30,18,09,600
5 Cush and cash equivalents at beginning of period 43,16,13,149 12,98,03,549
G Cash snd eash equivalents at end of period 24,14.51.290 43,16,13,149
As per our attiched report of even date
For V Sankar Ajyar & Co p
Chartered Accnuuunls For and on behaif of the Bosrd of Divectors
Firm Jo. 1092 of Samasta Microfinance Linited
7] L
: R /K,l, 9 t
§ Venl N =l T e e Gl ""‘f“ o
Partner N: Yenkaitesh D. Shivaprakash
AL Mo 023116 < Managing Director wlnle‘trme Director
.:'r'r »-HIBHT;HED O DNz 01018521
(j—:l ALUUJ.J‘hI\To O
f\_/"}”" LA, !
Date 2 11-05-2020 : Anpantha Kumar T
Pluce: Bangaiore o Chiel Financial Officer Commw Secretury
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41, Circular Road, 1st Floor, United India Colorny, Kodambakkam, Chennai - 600 024.
Phone: +91 (044) 43565627 / 23725720 E Mail : chennai@usa.co.in Website: www.vsa.co.in

LIMITED REVIEW REPORT ON THE UNAUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM 15T APRIL 2020 TO 31°t DECEMBER 2020

The Board of Directors
Samasta MicroFinance Ltd.
Bengaluru.

1. We have reviewed the accompanying statement of unaudited financial results of M/s. Samasta
MicroFinance Ltd. (“the Company”) for the period from 1%t April 2020 to 31%t December 2020 (the
Statement). This Statement is the responsibility of the Company’s management and has been
approved by the Board of Directors. Our responsibility is to issue a report on the Statement based
On our review.,

2. We conducted our review in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagement (SRE) 2410,
Review of Interim Financial Information performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity. This
Standard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate assurance as to whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. A review is limited primarily to inquiries
of company personnel and analytical procedures applied to financial data and thus provide less
assurance than an audit. We have not performed an audit and, accordingly, we do not express an
audit opinion.

3. Based on our review conducted for the period from 15t April 2020 to 31st December 2020 of the
financial results, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying
Statement of unaudited financial results prepared in accordance with the recognition and
measurement principles laid down in the Indian Accounting Standard 34 (‘Interim Financial
Reporting”) (Ind AS 34), prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with
relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, has
not disclosed the information required to be disclosed in terms of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing
Agreement and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as modified by Circular No :
CIR/CFD/FAC/62/2016 dated July 5, 2016 including the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or
that it contains any material misstatement.

4. The standalone unaudited financial resuits reflect total revenue of Rs. 4,81,45,52,324/- total Net
Profit after tax of Rs. 44,88,33,807/- for the period from 15t April 2020 to 31% December 2020 as
considered in the standalone unaudited financial results.

For V. SANKAR AIYAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Regn. No.109208W

[UDIN | 21023116AAAABH3469 / ry M .
A )

S. VENKATARAMAN
Place: Chennai Partner
Date: 21 January 2021 M. No.023116

Mumbai  2-C Court Chambers, 35, New Marine Lines, Mumbai - 400 020. Tel ; (022) 2200 4465 / 2206 7440 E-mail : mumbai@vsa.co.in .
Delhi 202-301, Satyam Cinema Complex, Ranjit Nagar Community Centre, New Delhi - 110 008. Tel: (011) 2570 2691 / 2570 2074 E-mail : newdelhi@vsa.co.in



Balance Sheet as at 31.12.2020

Particulars

As at 31 Dec 2020

As at 31 Mar 2020

As at 31 Dec 2019

ASSETS
(1) |Financial Assets
(a) |Cash and cash equivalents 1,16,55,11,536 2,00,90,95,484 3,09,38,60,624
(b) |Bank Balance other than (a) above 1,15,49,82 440 79,96,08,628 52,64,38,598
(c) |Derivative financial instruments 7,47,28,217 2,12,78,203 5,19,73,027
(d) |Receivables 1,04,94,818 1,85,39,577 3,96,56,037
(e) |Loans 30,17,77,14,637 22,87,38,82,351 18,26,27,50,725
() [Investments 5.00,000 5.00,000 5,00,000
(g) |Other Financial assets 57,93,16,177 64,84,83,534 53,45,83,030
(2) [Non-financial Assets
(8) [Current tax assets (Net) 1,42,27 800 4,18,93,595 2,59,70,053
(b) |Deferred tax Assets (Net) 28,88,23,836 6,47,77,568 2,05,66,570
{c) |Investment Property 482264 5,58,196 430,277
(d) |Property, Plant and Equipment 6,68,11,846 8,07,84,709 8,74,99 663
(e) |Rightto Use 4,19,13,624 4,63,45783 -
() |Other Intangible assels 15,48,731 31,85,494 32,76,223
(g) |Other non-financial assets 1,33,14,824 1,07,25,999 1,74,62,178
Total Assets 33,59,03,70,750 26,61,96,59,118 22,66,49,67,005
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
(1) |Financial Liabilities
(a) |Derivative financial instruments 74728217 2,12,78,203 5,19,73,027
{b) |Payables
(1) Trade Payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises
(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises 6,15,53,604 3,53,07,295 4,76,15,759
(c) |Debt Securities 6,82,07,28,535 5,19,15,40,390 5,07,86,39,339
(d) |Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 16,95,93,16,821 13,99,58,94,223 10,38,52,88 417
{e) |Subordinated Liabilities 1,2477 84 847 1,16,14,01,977 1,13,39,01,057
(f) [|Lease Liability 4,46,05,690 4,67,30,787 .
(g} |Other financial liabilities 1,77,85,92,028 1,01,42,89,192 1,73,07,23,304
(2) |Non-financial liabilities
(a) |Current tax liabilities (Net) 7,91,50,381 - 5,45,12,268
(b) |Provisions 5,80,53,325 3,70,61,793 3,33,31,327
{c) |Other non-financial liabilities 2,54,69 603 2,48,01,384 2,88,43,853
(3) |[Equity
{a) |Equity and Share Capital 3,20,81,33,360 2,64,24,51,400 2,07,74,79,660
(b) [Other Equity 3.23,22,54,339 2,44,91,02,494 2,03,16,58,995

Total Liabilities and Equity

33,58,03,70,750

26,61,96,59,118

22,66,49,67,005




Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31.12.2020

Particul As at 31 Dec As at 31 Mar As at 31 Dec
i 2020 2020 2019
Revenue from operations
(i) Interest Income 4741540635 | 5,10,18,73.458 | 3,66.79,94.683
(i) Fees and commission Income 3.97.83,855 19,23.56,728 16,11.47 508
(i) Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category . 45,40,16,216 30,14,88,899
m Total Revenue from operations 4,78,13,24,489 | 5,74,82.46.402 | 4,13,06,31,100
[} Other Income (to be specified) 3,32,27,834 6,88,21,216 6,06,64,278
(1) Total Income (I+i1) 4814552324 | 581,70,67,618 | 4,19,12,95378
Expenses
(1) Finance Costs 1,79,62,98,347 | 1,77,17,37,238 | 1,27.14.56,943
(ii) Net loss on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category 13,49,83,289 12,90,86,077 -
(i) Impairment on financial instruments 73,52,63.214 46,61,13,155 17,18,55,965
(iv) Employee Benefits Expenses 1119548703 | 1,35.72.20.037 97,23,54,476
{v) Depreciation. amortization and impairment 4,33,52,793 7,34,82,548 5,10,40,528
(vi)  |Other expenses (to be specified) 421054854 | 5851,09,650 | 42,41,43.345
(v) Total Expenses (IV) 4,2505,01,200 | 4,38,27.48,704 | 2,89,08,51,258
) Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional items and tax (llIl-IV) 56,40,51,123 | 1,43,43,18,913 | 1.30,04,44,120
(V1) Exceptional tems 3,10,21.709
{vi)  [Profit{loss) before tax (V-VI) 56,40,51,123 | 1,40,32,97,205 | 1,30,04,44,120
(Vill) |Tax Expense:
(1) Current Tax 33,6397, 770 33,61,54,696 28,50.78.220
(2) Tax related to Earlier Years 853973 11,16,300 11,16.300
(3) Deferred Tax (22,35,39.928) (1.38,68,165), 29753678
Total Tax Expense 11,37,11,816 32,34,02,831 31,59.48 198
Profit Before impact of rate Change on Opening Deferred Tax 45,03,33,308 | 1,07,98,94,374 98,44,95,922
Impact of Change in the rate on Opening deferred tax 68,59,050 68,589,050
(1X)  |Profitf{ioss) for the period 45,03,39,308 | 1,07,30,35,324 |  97,76,36,872
(X) Other Comprehensive income
A (i) tems that will not be reclassified Lo profit o loss (specify items and amounts) {20.11,841) (66,95,982) (43,55.008)
(i) Income tax refating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 5.06,340 16.85,245 10,96,091
Subtotal (A) {15,05,501) (50.10,737) (32,59.005)
B (i) Hems that will be reclassified to profil or loss (specify items amounts)
(ii) Incorne tax relating 10 items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Subtotal (B) . - -
Other Comprehensive Income (A+B) (15.05.501) (50,10,737) (32,59,005)
{X1) Total Comprehensive Income for the period 44.88.33.807 | 1.06.80.24.587 97.43.77.867
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